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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

October 16, 2012

John Alberts, Mayor ~ Ward 2
Ken Smith, Vice Mayor ~ At-Large
Nick Grba, Council Member ~ Ward 1
Rick Opitz, Council Member ~ Ward 3
Michael McEachern, Council Member ~ Ward 4
Grayson Bottom, City Manager
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Yukon City Council / Yukon Municipal Authority Work Session
Conference Room - Centennial Building - 12 South 5™ Street
October 16, 2012 - 6:00 p.m.

There is no work session prior to the October 16, 2012 City Council meeting.
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City Council - Municipal Authority Agendas
October 16, 2012 - 7:00 p.m.
Council Chambers - Centennial Building
12 South Fifth Street, Yukon, Oklahoma

The City of Yukon strives to accommodate the needs of all citizens, including those who may be disabled. If you would like to attend this
Council meeting but find it difficult to do s0 because of a disability or architectural barrier, please contact City Hall at 354-1895. We will make
a sincere attempt to resolve the problem. If you require a sign-language interpreter at the meeting, please call or notify City Hall, 500 West
Main, by noon, October 15, 2012,

Invocation: Pastor Bob Younts, First United Methodist Chruch

Flag Salute:

Roll Call:  John Alberts, Mayor
Ken Smith, Vice-Mayor
Nick Grba, Council Member
Michael McEachern, Council Member
Rick Opitz, Council Member

Presentations and Proclamations

“Head Start Month”

Visitors

(Recess as Yukon City Council and Reconvene as Yukon Municipal Authority)

1A. YMA Consent Docket

This item is placed on the agenda so the Yukon Municipal Authority, by unanimous consent, can
designate those routine items they wish to be approved by one motion. If an item does not meet with
the approval of all Authority Members, that item will be heard in regular order.

The City Manager recommends a motion to approve:
A) The minutes of the regular meeting of October 2, 2012
B) Payment of material claims in the amount of $192,779.59
C) The restatement of the Fiscal Year 2011 Independent Auditor’s Report

ACTION
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2A. Consider authorizing the Mayor to sign the Note, Security Agreement and Loan
Agreement, to Purchase Emergency Vehicles, Specialty Equipment and other City
vehicles, at the current tax exempt rate of 2.55%, in the maximum amount of
$1,500,000.00, for the term of 4 years, with Arvest Bank

ACTION

3A. Consider and approve Resolution No. YMA 2012- 05, a resolution authorizing
the issuance of the Yukon Municipal Authority 2012 Revenue Note (the
“Revenue Note”), in an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed
$2,000,000; waiving competitive bidding and authorizing said Revenue Note
to be sold at a price less than par value by negotiated sale within the limits
provided by Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes, Section 176; authorizing and
approving documents, procedures and payments related to issuance of the
Revenue Note; designating the Revenue Note as “qualified tax-exempt
obligations” as contained in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; providing

the City of Yukon and the Yukon Municipal Authority and agreeing that the
term of the lease shall extend so long as the Revenue Note remains
outstanding and unpaid

ACTION

(Adjourn as YMA and Reconvene as Yukon City Council)

1. Consent Docket

This item is placed on the agenda so the City Council, by unanimous consent, can designate those
routine items they wish to be approved by one motion. If an item does not meet with the approval of all
Council Members, that item will be heard in regular order.

The City Manager recommends a motion that will approve:

A) The minutes of the regular meeting of October 2,2012

B) Payment of material claims in the amount of $743,939.27

C) Designating the items on the attached list from the Technology Department as
surplus, and authorizing their sale, donation, or trade

D) The restatement of the Fiscal Year 2011 Independent Auditor’s Report

E) Setting the date for the next regular Council meeting for November 6, 2012,
7:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers of the Centennial Building, 12 S. Fifth St.

ACTION
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2. Reports of Boards, Commissions and City Officials
3. Consider accepting the New Yukon Fire Station Project and placing the

Maintenance Bond into effect, as recommended by Triad Design Group

ACTION

Page 3

4. Consider approving an expenditure of funds in the amount of $39,200.00, for

conversion of eight (8) Whelen Storm Warning Sirens to solar power, from the
Capital Improvement Fund, as recommended by the Emergency Management

Director

ACTION

S. Consider and approve Ordinance No. 1282, an Ordinances amending Ordinance
No.657, Appendix A of the Code of the City of Yukon, Oklahoma, by providing that

the zoning designation for a part of block “B”, Yukon Hills addition, second

section, to Yukon, Canadian County, Oklahoma, (Bass Ave. and Cornwell Dr.) be

changed from “C-4” (planned shopping center district) to “C-3” (restricted
commercial district); and declaring an emergency

ACTION

5B. Consider and approve the Emergency Clause of Ordinance No. 1282.

ACTION

6. Consider and approve Resolution No. 2012-10, a resolution approving the
incurrence of indebtedness by the Yukon Municipal Authority ~ (the
“Authority”) issuing its 2012 Revenue Note (the “Revenue Note”), in an
aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $2,000,000; waiving competitive

Statutes, Section 176; authorizing and approving a sales tax agreement
providing security for the Revenue Note; designating the Revenue Note as
“qualified tax-exempt obligations” under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986;
providing that the Trust Indenture shall be subject to provisions of the
Revenue Note; ratification of lease agreement and operation and
maintenance contract between the City and the Authority and agreeing that
the term of the lease shall extend to long as the Revenue Note remains
unpaid; and, authorization of documents and procedures related to issuance

of the Revenue Note

ACTION
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7. Consider and approve Ordinance No. 1281, an ordinance amending Sec. 2-
137(b) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Yukon by determining that
certain obligations, including the Yukon Municipal Authority 2012 Revenue
Note in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,000,000, do not
exceed debt limitations; repealing all conflicting ordinance provisions; and
declaring an emergency

ACTION

7B. Consider and approve the Emergency Clause of Ordinance No. 1281

ACTION

8. City Manager’s Report — Information items only
A. Sales Tax Report
B. Emergency Bridge Repairs

9. New Business

10. Council Discussion

11. Consider a motion to recess as Yukon City Council and convene into Executive
Session, to discuss pending litigation, as provided for in 25 OS 2003, Section 307

(B) (4)

ACTION

12. Consider a motion to adjourn from Executive Session and reconvene as Yukon City
Council

ACTION

13. Adjournment



PROCLAMATION

Whereas, Head Start is a comprehensive, family oriented child development program for
low income families; and

Whereas, since the establishment of Head Start on May 18, 1965, Head Start has
provided comprehensive health, education, nutritional and social services to more than eight
million preschool children and their families; and

Whereas, major research findings document the program’s lasting positive effects on
children; and

Whereas, October has been designated as Head Start Awareness Month and the Yukon
Head Start Center will join more than 32,000 Head Start Classrooms across the country in
celebrating the accomplishments of Head Start: and

Whereas, the support of this community has been made possible by the local Head Start
Program;

Now, THEREFORE, I, John Alberts, Mayor of Yukon, Oklahoma,
do hereby declare the month of October 2012, to be

“Head Start Month”

in the City of Yukon, Oklahoma.

Given under my hand and Seal of the City of Yukon this 16th day of October, 2012.

John Alberts, Mayor Douglas A. Shivers, City Clerk



Yukon Municipal Authority Minutes
October 2, 2012

ROLL CALL: (Present)  John Alberts, Chairman
Michael McEachern, Trustee
Nick Grba, Trustee
Rick Opitz, Trustee

(Absent) Ken Smith, Vice-Chairman
(Recess as Yukon City Council and Reconvene as Yukon Municipal Authority)

1A. YMA Consent Docket

This item is placed on the agenda so the Yukon Municipal Authority, by unanimous consent,
can designate those routine items they wish to be approved by one motion. If an item does
not meet with the approval of all Authority Members, that item will be heard in regular order.

The City Manager recommends a motion to approve:
A) The minutes of the regular meeting of September 18, 2012

The motion to approve the YMA Consent Docket, consisting of the approval of the minutes of
the regular meeting September 18, 2012, was made by Trustee Grba and seconded by
Trustee Opitz.

The vote:

AYES: Opitz, McEachern, Grba, Alberts
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

2A. Consider approving an expenditure of funds in the amount of $42,957.00, for a
Vaughn Chopper pump, from the Capital Improvement Fund, as recommended by
the Public Works Director.

The motion to approve an expenditure of funds in the amount of $42,957.00, for a Vaughn
Chopper pump, from the Capital Improvement Fund, as recommended by the Public Works
Director, was made by Trustee McEachern and seconded by Trustee Opitz.

Trustee Opitz wanted to know if the old pump could be rebuilt for the next time it was to go
down. Arnold Adams, Public Works Director, stated the new pump is a different style of
pump. The current pump has been rebuilt three times in the past two years and to replace it
would cost $86,000. Trustee Opitz wanted to know if the new chopper pump could be rebuilt.
Mr. Adams stated, yes.

Mr. Bottom asked Mr. Adams to explain the reason behind going to a chopper pump. Mr.
Adams said that carpet and lumber is making its way into the sewer system. As of right now,
employees have to go down 15 feet in a hole, remove a plate and stick their hand in the pipe
to remove the trash. By going to the chopper pump, it will actually chop these items up and
allow the sewer system to keep flowing.

Trustee Grba questioned the life cycle of the chopper pump. Mr. Adams stated 20 years.

Mayor Alberts wanted to know what the pump looked like. The old pump is water sealed and
the new pump is oil-sealed. Mayor Alberts wanted to know, if the new pump would shut its
self off. Mr. Adams said it will shut itself down, so it won't burn up. The old pump did not
have that feature.
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Trustee McEachern questioned the warranty of the chopper pump. Mr. Adams stated it has
one year of full replacement and pro-rated after that. Trustee McEachern wanted to know
about an extended warranty. Mr. Bottom said it is cheaper to repair because of pro-rated
warranty versus buying the extended warranty.

The vote:

AYES: Grba, Opitz, Alberts, McEachern
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

(Adjourn as YMA and Reconvene as Yukon City Council)

sz



EXHIBIT A
YUKON MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
(Yukon, Oklahoma)
SALES TAX AND UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2011

PAYMENT REQUISITION
YUKON MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
CONSTRUCTION FUND
Project Account

TO: Bank of Oklahoma, N.A., Trustee
FROM: Yukon Municipal Authority

DATE:

Pursuant to the provisions of the General Bond Indenture dated June 1,
1996, and Supplemented by the Supplemental Bond Indenture dated January 1,
2011 by and between Yukon Municipal Authority and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.,
Oklahoma, as Trustee, you are directed to pay Creditor from the Construction
Fund of said Authority as indicated below, the amounts shown for the purposes
set forth in this Requisition.

Ch L 81-9130-16-2
CREDITOR TRUST NO.
iITEM ITEM NO.

< % " N 8
0/23/12 Fire Stdion Lyupwont g 27018
DATE PURPOSE AMOUNT

AUTHORIZATION AND CERTIFICATE OF GENERAL MANAGER
With reference to the above requisition, the undersigned certifies:

The above requisition is approved.

Each obligation therein has been properly incurred and is now due and unpaid
and that insofar as such obligation was incurred for work, materials, equipment or

supplies, such work was actually performed, and such materials, equipment or
supplies were actually installed or delivered to or for the Project as evidenced by



the certificate of the supervising architect or engineer or other appropriate
certification.

That there has not been filed with or served upon the Yukon Municipal

obligation.

That such requisition contains no item representing payment on account of any
retained percentages which Yukon Municipal Authority is at the date of such
certificate entitled to retain.

YUKON MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY

Chairman or Vice Chairman

Date

Date Approved:
Date Paid

Authorized Officer
Submit in triplicate:
1 to Bank

1 to General Manager
1 to City



% 800.808.4239

THANK YOU FOR YOUR ORDER
Order Number: 1B967RC

COW I S R —
Government ! INVOICE DATE b INVOICE NUMBER _ INVOICE TERMS |___DUE DATE }
75 Remittance | ! e | ,
Drive | er2712012 | R277635 | Net 30 Days-Govt State/Local | 10/27/2012
Suite 1515
Chicago, IL 60675
| - 1 | ] | 7
‘ P QTY  QTY | QTY | g ]
OUR PART NO. | DESCRIPTION | ORD ismpl BIO | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL
2245206 IC2G Pro Series HDMI CL2 Cable - video /1 I 2 [ B $11 4.004 $11 4004
audio cable - HDMI - 50 ft i ; | |
Mfg Part # : 41225 f : f | ;
44444444444 ) _ Contract : NJP | A {
469144 C2G 50ft Pro Series HDISMM UXGA | 1 | 1 | 0 | $42.18 $42.18
Monitor Cable ; ! ; i |
Mfg Part # : 28016 ; j
;Contract : NJP J ; j
A— ’ . ' ’ /
ORDER DATE ?SHIP VIA J PO NUMBER CUSTOMER NO. PRODUCT 1 $156 1Bf
9,,@7/201,2,,,,, FedEx Ground | 13-09272012 J10856056 ) SUBTOTAL ! T , N
BILL TO: : | SHIPPING & | $0 Od
CITY OF YUKON HANDLING | N
ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABL e ;
PO BOX 850500 US Tax $0.00
YUKON,OK 730850500 el @oiinc . )| T ;
P (405) 354-1895 INVOICE
AMOUNT

ACCOUNT MANAGER
Casey Cronin
(312) 705-1875

casecro@cdw.com

cow
An lilinois Corporation FEIN 36-4230110

HAVE QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR ACCOUNT? PLEASE E-MAIL
US AT CREDIT@CDW.COM.

This page was printed on 10/3/2012 10:20:54 AM.



W 800.808.4239
THANK YOU FOR YOUR ORDER
Order Number: 1B967RC
CDhwW e § K
Government . INVOICE DATE | INVOICE NUMBER INVOICE TERMS | DUEDATE |
75 Remittance !
Drive 10/2/2012 | R449342 Net 30 Days-Govt State/Local i 11/1/2012 |
Suite 1515
Chicago, IL 60675
‘ f % | ]
QrY | QTY | QTY | | :
OUR PART NO. DESCRIPTION ' ORD | SHIP , B/O UNIT PRICE [ TOTAL f
2245208 IC2G Pro Series HDMI CL2 Cable - video / ’ 2 ] 1, 0 | $114.00 $1 14.00{
audio cable - HDMI - 50 ft I I |
Mfg Part # : 41225 f | g | |
Contract : NJP | _[ , J E [
ORDER DATE  SHIP VIA ' PO NUMBER CUSTOMER NO. PRODUCT | $114.00
9/27/2012 FedEx Ground | 13-09272012 110856056 SUBTOTAL | e 0
BILL TO: SHIPPING & 50 ooj
CITY OF YUKON HANDLING T
ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABL  pomsiicorel o 0 o) 1
PO BOX 850500 US Tax $0.00
YUKON , OK 73085-0500 5
P (405) 354-1895 Vv !
“08) e $114.00

ACCOUNT MANAGER
Casey Cronin
(312) 705-1875
casecro@cdw.com

Cbw
An lilinois Corporation FEIN 36-4230110

HAVE QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR ACCOUNT? PLEASE E-MAIL
US AT CREDIT@CDW.COM.

This page was printed on 10/3/2012 10:21:32 AM.



EXHIBIT A
YUKON MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
(Yukon, Oklahoma)
SALES TAX AND UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2011

PAYMENT REQUISITION
YUKON MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
CONSTRUCTION FUND
Project Account
TO:  Bank of Oklahoma, N.A., Trustee
FROM: Yukon Municipal Authority

DATE:

Pursuant to the provisions of the General Bond Indenture dated June 1,
1996, and Supplemented by the Supplemental Bond Indenture dated January 1,

DowvNey  (ovtgacrine  LLC 81-9130-16-2
CREDITOR TRUST NO.

ITEM ITEM NO.

[0/33 /(1 {nkﬂw‘ ‘FEKE—‘ 57‘,:}7"{'04*\/ 3/7,7, SAO‘,.Z-{-—A
DATE PURPOSE AMOUNT

AUTHORIZATION AND CERTIFICATE OF GENERAL MANAGER
With reference to the above requisition, the undersigned certifies:

The above requisition is approved.

Each obligation therein has been properly incurred and is now due and unpaid
and that insofar as such obligation was incurred for work, materials, equipment or

supplies, such work was actually performed, and such materials, equipment or
supplies were actually installed or delivered to or for the Project as evidenced by



the certificate of the supervising architect or engineer or other appropriate
certification.

YUKON MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY

Chairman or Vice Chairman

Date

Date Approved:
Date Paid

Authorized Officer
Submit in triplicate:
1 to Bank

1 to General Manager
1 to City



D DESIGN GROUP
T\ Architecture « Enginsering « Planning

Mr. Michael Malmfeldt September 3, 2012

City Clerk

City of Yukon, City Hall Bldg.

500 West Main

Yukon Oklahoma, 73099 Re: New Yukon Fire Station, 2011

Dear Mr. Malmfeldt,

Attached, please find one copy of the Contractors Final Application and Certificate for Payment
for the retainage, in the amount of $192,509.41. Also enclosed are the Contractor’s Consent of Surety
for approval of the final payment, and the Contractor’s Lien Release. We have reviewed the application
and have inspected the project and have found that, to the best of our knowledge, belief, and available
information, this application and certificate for payment and the project is complete in accordance with
the Contract Documents. We therefore recommend payment of this final application as submitted.

Payment breakdown for this project as of this date is as follows:

Contract Amount: $3.825,500.00
Change Orders to date: $ 24,688.25
Sub-Total: $3,850,188.25
Amount Paid (including this Pay Application) $3.850,188.25
Balance Remaining $ 0.00

If you have any questions, or require additional information, please advise.

Sincerely,
Triad Design Group, Inc.

.
Randy S. Thomas, P.A.
Encl.

Ce:  File A167.0
Tammy Kretchmar

3020 Northwaest 149™ Street o Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73134 Telephone (405) 752-1122 e Fax (405) 752-8855
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CLAIM OR INVOICE AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF OKLAHOMA )

)
COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA )

The undersigned (contractor), of lawful age, being first duly sworn, on oath says that this
(invoice, claim or contract) is true and correct. Affiant further states that the (work,
services, or materials) as shown by this invoice or claim have been (completed or
supplied) in accordance with the plans, specifications, orders, or requests furnished to the
affiant. Affiant further states that (s)he has made no payment, given, or donated or
agreed to pay, give, or donate, either directly or indirectly, to any elected official, officer,
or employee of the State of Oklahoma, of money or any other thing of value to obtain
payment or award of this contract.

"~ 7 k
E’DafZ/f’méb’é)lrfan
Downey Contracting, LLC

Subscribed and sworn to before me miil’;@ June 2012.
21l A -

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: 6/7/2016
My Commission Number: 04005093



CONSENT OF OWNER 0
SURETY COMPANY  arcuirzer O
TO FINAL PAYMENT conrracror O

ATEAT — 0
MA DOCUMENT G707 SURETY 09031607
OTHER Bond #
PROJECT: NewYukon Fire Station
TO (Owner)
City of Yukon, Oklahoma ARCHITECT’S PROJECT NQ:

CONTRACT FOR;
CONTRACT DATE: ;

CONTRACTOR: Downey Contracting, L.L.C.

In accordance with the provisions of the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as indicated above, the
(here insert name and address of Surety Company)
Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland

1400 American Lane, Tower 1, 18th Floor
Schaumburg, IL 60196 ,SURETY COMPANY,

on bond of (hrs insert name and address of contractor)
Downey Contracting, L.L.C. ’
3217 NE 63rd Street’ .CONTRACTOR,

Oklahoma City ,OK 73121
hereby ‘approves of the final pavment to the Contractor, and agrees that final payment to the Contractor shall

not relicve the Surety company of any of its obligations 10 (here insert nume and uddress of Owner)
City of Yukon
P.O. Box 85055

Yukon, OK 73085 JOWNER,
as sct forth in the said Surcty Company s bond

IN WITNESS WHEROF,
The Surcty Company has hercunto sct its hand this  20th day of  August 20 12

idelity and Deposit Company of Maryland

Surel Compa&
Oorynf

Signature o@mcd Rdgrésentative

Attest ‘ ‘%

(seal) WM W Patsy A. Payne Attomey-in-act
Title

NOTE: This form is to be used as a companion document 1o AIA DOCUMENT G706, CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT OF PAYMENT OF DERT AND CLADMS,
Cusren Edition

ALA DOCUMENT G707 * CONSENT OF SURITY COMPANY 10 FINAL PAYMENT SAPRIL 1970 EDITIOR ALA
1970 T AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCINTICES, 1735 NEW YORK AVIEL NW WASTHMYION, 130 2o

WARMING: Unlicansed pholocopying violates U.S. copyright laws and is subject to lega! prosecution.



Power of Attorney
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, corporations of the §
J. MILLS, Vice President, and GERALD F. HALEY, Assistant Secretary, in pursyance @
Section 2, of the By-Laws of said Companies, which are set forth on the-reversoside here
full force and effect on the date hereof, does hereby nominate,¢
Randy WEBB, Gary LILES, Patsy A. PAY L :‘..uw& ATe)
lawful agent and Attorney-in-Fact, to makeygs AT
any and all bonds and undertak g

04, as

hiH ranted by Article VI,
reby certified to be in

ds or undertakings in pursuance of these presents, shall
all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly executed and
the Company at its office in Baltimore, Md., in their own proper persons.
This power of attorn h ued on behalf of Donna STEVENS, Diane DOWDY, Randy WERBB, Gary LILES,
Patsy A. PAYNE, Ca§y AYNE, dated September 3, 2009,

The said Assistant Secretary does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article VI
Section 2, of the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force. ’

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President and Assistant Secretary have hereunto subscribed their names and
affixed the Corporate Seals of the said FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the COLONIAL
AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, this 29th day of October, A.D. 2010.

ATTEST: FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY

be as binding upon s
acknowledged by thg

)
%
3 7 , o /’/’ s
C By:
Gerald F. Haley  Assistant Secretary William J. Mills Vice President

State of Maryland
City of Baltimore

On this 29th day of October, A.D. 2010, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly
commissioned and qualified, came WILLIAM J. MILLS, Vice President, and GERALD F. HALEY, Assistant Secretary of
the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND
SURETY COMPANY, to me personally known to be the individuals and officers described in and who executed the
preceding instrument, and they each acknowledged the. execution of the same, and being by me duly sworn, severally and
each for himself deposeth and saith, that they are the said officers of the Companies aforesaid, and that the seals affixed to the
preceding instrument is the Corporate Seals of said Companies, and that the said Corporate Seals and their signatures as such
officers were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said Corporations.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Official Seal the day and year first above
written.

Wity
\‘\\»A A ”’1

RO

)"f,;""":lﬁ" N
Yy
Constance A. Dunn Notary Public
My Commission Expires: July 14, 2015

POA-F 076-0024



EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND

“Article VI, Section 2. The Chairman of the Board, or the President, or any Executive Vice-President, or any of the Seniot
Vice-Presidents or Vice-Presidents specially authorized so to do by the Board of Directors or by the Executive Committee,
shall have power, by and with the concurrence of the Secretary or any one of the Assistant Secretaries, to appoint Resident
Vice-Presidents, Assistant Vice-Presidents and Attorneys-in-Fact as the business of the Company may require, or I
authorize any person or persons to execute on behalf of the Company any bonds, undertaking, recognizances, stipulations.
policies, contracts, agreements, deeds, and releases and assignments of judgements, decrees, mortgages and instruments in
the nature of mortgages,...and to affix the seal of the Company thereto.”

EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY

“Article V1, Section 2. The Chairman of the Board, or the President, or any Executive Vice-President, or any of the Senio
Vice-Presidents or Vice-Presidents specially authorized so to do by the Board of Directors or by the Executive Committee,
shall have power, by and with the concurrence of the Secretary or any one of the Assistant Secretaries, to appoint Resident
Vice-Presidents, Assistant Vice-Presidents and Attorneys-in-Fact as the business of the Company may require, or (c
authorize any person or persons to execute on behalf of the Company any bonds, undertaking, recognizances, stipulations,
policies, contracts, agreements, deeds, and releases and assignments of judgements, decrees, mortgages and instruments in
the nature of mortgages,...and to affix the seal of the Company thereto.”

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, do hereby certify that the foregoing Power of
Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and 1 do further certify that the Vice-President who
executed the said Power of Attorney was one of the additional Vice-Presidents specially authorized by the Board of Directors
to appoint any Attorney-in-Fact as provided in Article VI, Section 2, of the respective By-Laws of the FIDELITY AND
DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY.

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the
Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND ut a meeting duly called and held on
the 10th day of May, 1990 and of the Board of Directors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY
COMPANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 5th day of May, 1994.

RESOLVED: "That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced scal of the company and facsimile or mechanically
reproduced signature of any Vice-President, Secretary, or Assistant Sccretary of the Company, whether made heretofore or
hereafter, wherever appearing upon a certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company, shall be valid and
binding upon the Company with the same force and effect as though manually affixed.”

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the corporate scals of the said Companies,

this 20th _ day of August , 2012

o 2. frrf—

Assistant Secretary



CONSENT OF OWNER 0
SURETY COMPANY arcurreer O
TO FINAL PAYMENT conrracror O

S ALRAST - 0
A DOCUAENT G707 SURETY 09031607
(FFHER B(‘}nd #
PROJECT: NewYukon Fire Station
TO (Owner)
City of Yukon, Oklahoma ARCHITECT’S PROJECT NO:

CONTRACT FOR:

CONTRACT DATE: ;
CONTRACTOR: Downey Contracting, L.L.C.

In accordance with the provisions of the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as indicated above, the
(here insent name and address of Surety Company)
Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland
1400 American Lane, Tower 1, 18th Floor

Schaumburg, IL 60196 ;SURETY COMPANY,

on bond of (hers insert name and address of contractor)
Downey Contracting, L.L.C. ’
3217 NE 63rd Street’ L.CONTRACTOR,

Oklahoma City ,OK 73121
hereby ‘approves of the final payment to the Contractor, and agrees that final payment to the Contractor shall

not relieve the Surety company of any of its obligations to (here insert nume and address of Ovner)
City of Yukon
P.O. Box 85055

Yukon, OK 73085 LOWNER,
as sct forth in the said Surcty Company's bond

IN WITNESS WHERQF,
The Surcty Company has hercunto sct its hand this  20th dayof  August 20 12

Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland

20D

Signaturc of @omw Rc&scnmﬁvc

Attest
(seal) WW PW Patsy A. Payne Attomey-in-tact

Title

NOTE: This jorm is 1o be used a8 & companion document 10 AIA DOCUMENT G706, CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT OF PAYMENT OF DERT AND CLADMS,
Cusrcot Edition

ALA DOCUMENT G7 * CONSER Y OF SLRETY QOMPARY 1O FINAL PAYMERNT *APRE, 1970 EDITON *A1A
T9F THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTN, 1733 NEW YORK AVE NW WASHINGTON, D 2006

WARMING: Unlicensed photocopying violates U.S, copyright taws and is subject o legat prosecution.



Power of Attorney
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the

COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, corporations of the State “
J. MILLS, Vice President, and GERALD F. HALEY, Assistant Secretary, in purs u@ hORity-Branted by Article VI,
Section 2, of the By-Laws of said Companies, which are set forth on the se Asde he :

full force and effect on the date hereof, does hereby nominate,-¢ui k w-appoin 8 STE NS, Diane DOWDY,

Randy WEBB, Gary LILES, Patsy A. PAY and-Glaney f ol G C ahowtd, Oklahoma, EACH its true and
lawful agent and Attorney-in-Fact, to O eXECyie, \sba N\ (OF ARG-OIT its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed:
any and all bonds and undertak 3 ; or undertakings in pursuance of these presents, shall

be as binding upon .;:@ niganies, as 6@? all intents and purposes, as if they had been duly executed and .
acknowledged by th r5-of the Company at its office in Baltimore, Md., in their own proper persons.

gular
This power of attorn@h ued on behalf of Donna STEVENS, Diane DOWDY, Randy WEBB, Gary LILES,
Patsy A. PAYNE, Ci¢yN="PAYNE, dated September 3, 2009,

The said Assistant Secretary does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article VI,
Section 2, of the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President and Assistant Secretary have hereunto subscribed their names and
affixed the Corporate Seals of the said FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the COLONIAL

AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, this 29th day of October, A.D. 2010.

ATTEST: FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY

S
| ,7 W7 it , ,
' r - By: &

Gerald F. Haley  Assistant Secretary William J. Mills Vice President

State of Maryland S
City of Baltimore

On this 29th day of October, A.D. 2010, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly
commissioned and qualified, came WILLIAM J. MILLS, Vice President, and GERALD F. HALEY, Assistant Secretary of
the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND
SURETY COMPANY, to me personally known to be the individuals and officers described in and who executed the
preceding instrument, and they each acknowledged the execution of the same, and being by me duly sworn, severally and
each for himself deposeth and saith, that they are the said officers of the Companies aforesaid, and that the seals affixed to the
preceding instrument is the Corporate Seals of said Companies, and that the said Corporate Seals and their signatures as such
officers were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said Corporations.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Official Seal the day and year first above
written.

me a ’/*/;)W AT

Constance A. Dunn Notary Public
My Commission Expires: July 14, 2015

POA-F 076-0024



EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND

“Article V1, Section 2. The Chairman of the Board, or the President, or any Executive Vice-President, or any of the Senior
Vice-Presidents or Vice-Presidents specially authorized so to do by the Board of Directors or by the Executive Committee,
shall have power, by and with the concurrence of the Secretary or any one of the Assistant Secretaries, to appoint Resident
Vice-Presidents, Assistant Vice-Presidents and Attorneys-in-Fact as the business of the Company may require, or 0
authorize any person or persons to execute on behalf of the Company any bonds, undertaking, recognizances, stipulations,
policies, contracts, agreements, deeds, and releases and assignments of judgements, decrees, mortgages and instruments in
the nature of mortgages,...and to affix the seal of the Company thereto.”

EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY

“Article VI, Section 2. The Chairman of the Board, or the President, or any Executive Vice-President, or any of the Senior
Vice-Presidents or Vice-Presidents specially authorized so to do by the Board of Directors or by the Executive Committee,
shall have power, by and with the concurrence of the Secretary or any one of the Assistant Secretaries, to appoint Resident
Vice-Presidents, Assistant Vice-Presidents and Attorneys-in-Fact as the business of the Company may require, or to
authorize any person or persons to execute on behalf of the Company any bonds, undertaking, recognizances, stipulations,
policies, contracts, agreements, deeds, and releases and assignments of judgements, decrees, mortgages and instruments in
the nature of mortgages,...and to affix the seal of the Company thereto.”

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, do hereby certify that the foregoing Power of
Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and I do further certify that the Vice-President who
executed the said Power of Attorney was one of the additional Vice-Presidents specially authorized by the Board of Directors
to appoint any Attorney-in-Fact as provided in Article VI, Section 2, of the respective By-Laws of the FIDELITY AND
DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY.

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the
Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND at a4 meeting duly called and held on
the 10th day of May, 1990 and of the Board of Directors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY

COMPANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 5th day of May, 1994.

RESOLVED: "That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced seal of the company and facsimile or mechanically
reproduced signature of any Vice-President, Secretary, or Assistant Secretary of the Company, whether made heretofore or
hereafter, wherever appearing upon a certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company, shall be valid and
binding upon the Company with the same force and effect as though manually affixed.”

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the corporate seals of the said Companies,

20th

this day of August . 2012

Ve D fuirf—

Assistant Secretary



CONSENT OF OWNER O
SURETY COMPANY arcmrreer [
TO FINAL PAYMENT conrracrorn O

o ia LA L .
MA DOCUMENT G707 SURKTY 09031607
OTHER Bond 4
PROJECT: NewYukon Fire Station
TO (Owner)
City of Yukon, Oklahoma ARCHITECT’S PROJECT NO:

CONTRACT FOR;
CONTRACT DATE: :

CONTRACTOR: Downey Contracting, L.L.C.

In accordance with the provisions of the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as indicated above, the
(here insert name and address of Surety Company)
Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland
1400 American Lane, Tower 1, 18th Floor

Schaumburg, IL 601986 ,SURETY COMPANY.,

on bond of (hers insent name and address of contractor)

Downey Contracting, L.L.C. )

3217 NE 63rd Street’ .CONTRACTOR,
Oklahoma City ,OK 73121

hereby ‘approves of the final payment to the Contractor, and agrees that final payment to the Contractor shall
not relieve the Surety company of any of its obligations to (here insert nume und wddress of Owner)

City of Yukon

P.O. Box 85055

Yukon, OK 73085 LOWNER,
as sct forth in the said Surcty Company s bond

IN WITNESS WHEROF,
The Surcty Company has hercunto sct its hand this  20th day of  August 20 12

Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland

Attest ' ' '
(seal) WMPW Patsy A. Payne Altorney-in-Yact

Title

NOTE: This form is 1o be usad as a companion document 10 ALA DOCUMENT G706, CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT OF PAYMENT OF DERT AND CLAIMS,
Cusre Edition

ALA DOCUMENT (07 * CONSER T OF SLRIETY COMPARY 10 FINAL PAYMENT *APRI, 19 EDITION *ALA
TR THE AMERICAN INSTITUITE OF ARCHITECTEN, 1735 NEW YORK AVE NW WASHINGTON, 13¢* 26

WARKING: Unlicensed phokicopying wiotates U.S. copyright taws and is subject 16 lega! prosecution.



Power of Attorney
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the

¢ i abdarpoint- Do S, Diane DOWDY,
aen LAPAYNE, « c abonta, Oklahoma, EACH its true anc
C. o ?Jé ; its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed:

{ 3‘”‘; XLt ds or undertakings in pursuance of these presents, shall
be as binding upon 1@!‘?‘_ iog, a8 " puberall intents and purposes, as if they had been duly executed and
acknowledged by th gular e% - e Company at its office in Baltimore, Md., in their own proper persons.
This power of attommn isSued on behalf of Donna STEVENS, Diane DOWDY, Randy WEBB, Gary LILES,
Patsy A. PAYNE, C Y EPAYNE, dated September 3, 2009,

The said Assistant Secretary does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article V1
Section 2, of the By-Laws of said Companies, and is now in force.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President and Assistant Secretary have hereunto subscribed their names anc
affixed the Corporate Seals of the said FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the COLONIAL

AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, this 29th day of October, A.D. 2010,

ATTEST: FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY

7 i 2 /f
Gl 7 bt PR/
(/ By. /
Gerald F. Haley  Assistant Secretary Willium J. Mills Vice President

State of Maryland
City of Baltimore

On this 29th day of October, A.D. 2010, before the subscriber, Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly
commissioned and qualified, came WILLIAM J. MILLS, Vice President, and GERALD F. HALEY, Assistant Secretary of
the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND
SURETY COMPANY, to me personally known to be the individuals and officers described in and who executed the
preceding instrument, and they each acknowledged the execution of the same, and being by me duly sworn, severally and

written.

Constance A. Dunn Notary Public
My Commission Expires: July 14, 2015

POA-F 078-0024



EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND

“Article VI, Section 2. The Chairman of the Board, or the President, or any Executive Vice-President, or any of the Senior
Vice-Presidents or Vice-Presidents specially authorized so to do by the Board of Directors or by the Executive Committee,
shall have power, by and with the concurrence of the Secretary or any one of the Assistant Secretaries, to appoint Resident
Vice-Presidents, Assistant Vice-Presidents and Attorneys-in-Fact as the business of the Company may require, or (o
authorize any person Or persons to execute on behalf of the Company any bonds, undertaking, recognizances, stipulations,
policies, contracts, agreements, deeds, and releases and assignments of judgements, decrees, mortgages and instruments in
the nature of mortgages,...and to affix the seal of the Company thereto.”

EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY

“Article V1, Section 2. The Chairman of the Board, or the President, or any Executive Vice-President, or any of the Senior
Vice-Presidents or Vice-Presidents specially authorized so to do by the Board of Directors or by the Executive Committee,
shall have power, by and with the concurrence of the Secretary or any one of the Assistant Secretaries, to appoint Resident
Vice-Presidents, Assistant Vice-Presidents and Attorneys-in-Fact as the business of the Company may require, or to
authorize any person or persons to execute on behalf of the Company any bonds, undertaking, recognizances, stipulations,
policies, contracts, agreements, deeds, and releases and assignments of judgements, decrees, mortgages and instruments in
the nature of mortgages,...and to affix the seal of the Company thereto.”

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the
COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY, do hereby certify that the foregoing Power of
Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and I do further certify that the Vice-President who-
executed the said Power of Attorney was one of the additional Vice-Presidents specially authorized by the Board of Directors
to appoint any Attorney-in-Fact as provided in Article VI, Section 2, of the respective By-Laws of the FIDELITY AND

DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, and the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY.

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the
Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND at a meeting duly called and held on
the 10th day of May, 1990 and of the Board of Directors of the COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND SURETY
COMPANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 5th day of May, 1994.

RESOLVED: "That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced seal of the company and facsimile or mechanically
reproduced signature of any Vice-President, Secretary, or Assistant Secretary of the Company, whether made heretofore or
hereafter, wherever appearing upon a certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company, shall be valid and
binding upon the Company with the same force and effect as though manually affixed.”

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the corporate seals of the said Companies,

20th August ) 2012

this day of

oo D rrf—

Assistant Secretary



FINAL
WAIVER OF LIEN

TO ALL WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

Whereas the undersigned DOWNEY CONTRACTING. LLC, has been contracted by City of

Yukon to furnish labor and materials for the Building and Premises known as Yukon Yukon
Fire Station in Oklahoma City, OK for the project known as City of Yukon New Yukon

Fire Station.

Now, therefore, know ye that DOWNEY CONTRACTING, LLC the undersigned for and in
consideration of the total sum to be received of $3.850,188.25 dollars to be paid with funds due,

do hereby waive and release any and all lien or claim or right to lien upon receipt of the above

identified amount, on the above described building and premises under the Statutes of the State
of Oklahoma relating to Mechanics’ or Materialmens’ Liens, on account of labor or material, or
both furnished by the undersigned to or on account of the said firm or persons therein named for

said building or premises.

STATE OF Qklahoma

COUNTY OF _Oklahoma

This 20" day of August, 2012

Company: _, DOWNEY CONTRACTING, LLC

-

By: T

=/
Title: pﬂ()}fc# mamaﬂw

Subscripid and sworn to before me this 20" day of Astgu

poudloy e |

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: 06/07/2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Board of City Commissioners, . o ' ' -
Cityof Yukon - S S |
Yukon, Oklahoma :

', We have augited the accompanying ﬁnaﬁciaji statements of the govémmenfal activities, the busk:éss—type activities;

-each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Yukan, Okiahoma, (City) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City's basic fihancial statements as listed in the table of

- contents. These financial staterhents are the responsibility ofthe City's management, Our responsibiity is to express

opinions on these financlal statements based on our audit-

- We conducted our auditin accardance with auditing standards generally acoepted in the United States of Amefica and

the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller

- @General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
- assurance about whether the financial statements are fres of material misstatement. -An audit includes examining, on

a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes

- - assessing thé accounting principlés used and significant estimates made by management, as welt as evaluating the -

overall financial statement p{esentaﬁon. We believe that our audit provides a ré,asonabfe basis for our opinion.

In our original report.datéd ,Ndvémber 10‘ /20114, we issued an unquaﬁﬁ:ed opinion on the financial statements referred
to above but subsequently became aware of facts that existed at that date which affected-our report. As more fully -
explained in Note 2’tc the financial statements, the City did not presenta revenue bond 53509 in the original financial’

statements.

Inour opinion, the financial statements referred to above ére,sentfaiﬁy, inall matériéi respects, the respecﬁveﬁnahé;al ’

position of the governmental aclivities, the business-type activities, each'majorfund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the-City of Yukon, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with' accounfing principles gene}raﬂy

. accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with’ Govermment Auditing Standards, we have also nssued .ourreport dated Névemb_er 10,2011 on.our

consideration of the City's internal control over finanicial reporting and our tests.of its compliance with certain provisions .

; of laws;, regulations, contracts and grant agréements and other matters. The purpose of that reportis to describe the
. scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, andnotto

provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting-or on compliance. Thatreport is an integral part of an
audit perfdormed iri accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results
of our audit. : e :

-

Members of American Institute and Oklahoms Sqcisty of CPA's and Inpact Americas, an International Network of indepeadent accounting firms - -
. , . Serving Our Clients Since 1960 ‘ - o

¢



_ Cityof Yukon
. November 10, 2011

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3-11, budgetary comparison information on pages 41 through 42
and the notes on page 43 are not a required part of the financial statements but dre supplementary Information
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and-express.no
opinfon on it, . ’ S ) g ’ S

" Ourauditwas conducted for the purpose of forming opinjons on the financial statements that collectively comprise tha’
Clty of Yukon's basic financlal statements. The accornpanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and is not
. @ required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual. non-major ‘governmental fund
statements listed'in the table of contents are presented for additional analysis and arenotarequired part of the basic
financial statements. We subjected this informiation to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, jn our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects, in relation {o the basic financial
statements takenr as a whole, « . . ' :

CReD Kssco  LBevup LL P
' CBEW Professional Group, LLP - '
Certified Pgﬁli{:,Acgauptants : ’ A



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Within this section of the City of Yukon's annual financial report, management provides narrative discussion
and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The City's financial
performance is discussed and analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial statements and
note disclosures following this section.

Financial Highlights

The City's net assets (assets minus liabilities) were $33,934,208 in 2011 compared to $45,391,107 in
2010.

Total net assets are compriged of the following:

1) Capital assets, net of related debt, which was $32,483,870 in 2011 compared 0 $37,139,134 in 2010,
includes property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, increased for assets set aside in bond
proceeds accounts for the purchase or construction of capital assets and reduced for outstanding debt
related to the purchase or construction of capital assets.

2) Restricted net assets, which were $8,357,253 in 2011 and $1,667,535 in 2010. These amounts
represent the amount of sales taxes that are, by ordinance, to be held in reserves until the amount in
reserves reaches 25% of General Fund revenues.

3) Unrestricted net assets were $(7,072,917) in 2011 compared to $6,584,438 in 2010, and represent the
portion of net assets available to maintain the City's continuing obligations to citizens and unsecured
creditors.

Total liabilities of the City were $53,591,702 in 2011 compared to $35,838,945 in 2010. This includes
bonds payable, notes payable and capital lease obligations of $36,741,611 in 2011 compared to
$31,826,370 in 2010, and accrued compensated absences of $1,914,725 in 2011 compared to $1,811,570
in 2010.

Program revenues of the City were $9,284,907 in 2011 compared to $8,544,084 in 2010. General
revenues of the City were $21,639,176 In 2011 compared to $20,690,689 in 2010. Of the total general
revenues, tax revenues (sales, property and franchise) were $19,657,323 in 2011 compared to
$18,776,391 in 2010.

The City's governmental funds reported a fotal ending fund balance of $16,357,733 in 2011 compared o
$16,337,899 in 2010, while the unreserved fund balance totaled $8,589,320 in 2011 compared fo
$9,949,825 in 2010.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund, the main operating
governmental fund of the City, was $3,342,170 or 18% of fotal General Fund expenditures in 2011
compared to $5,935,238 or 44% of total General Fund expenditures in 2010.

City of Yukon, Oklahoma
Management's Ciscussion and Analysis For The Year Ended June 30, 2011
Unaudited
Paged




Overview of the Financial Statements

Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the City’s basic financial statements.
The basic financial statements include: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2)
fund financial statements, and (3) notes to financial statements. The City also provides
additional information to supplement the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The City's annual report includes two
government-wide financial statements. These statements provide both long-term and
short-term information about the City's overall status. Financial reporting at this level
uses a perspective similar to that found in the private sector with its basis in full accrual
accounting and elimination or reclassification of internal activities.

The first of these government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Assets. This is
the City-wide statement of financial position presenting information that includes all of
the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. Over time,
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City as a whole is improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the
overall economic health of the City would extend to other non-financial factors such as
diversification of the taxpayer base or the condition of City infrastructure in addition to
the financial information provided in this report.

The second government -wide statement is the Statement of Activities. This statement
reports how the City’s net assets changed during the current fiscal year. All current
year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or paid.
An important purpose of the design of the statement of activities is t o show the financial
reliance of the City's distinct activities or functions on revenues provided by the City's
taxpayers.

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities of the
City that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, such as
grants, from business-type activities that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges. Primary governmental activities
include general government, public safety, public services, and culture and recreation.
Business-type activities include water, wastewater utiliies and solid waste
management.

The City’s financial reporting includes the funds of the City (primary government) and
organizations for which the City is accountable (component units). Most of these legally
Separate organizations operate like City departments, serve as financing vehicles for
City services (revenue bond issuers), or are governed by a board of trustees wholly
comprised of the City’s Mayor and Council. These organizations are blended into the
primary government for financial reporting purposes.

City of Yuken, Odlaloma
Management’s Discussion and Analysls For The Year Endeg June 30, 2011
Unaudited
Page 4




Fund financial statements. A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control
over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses funds to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations. Within
the basic financial statements, fund financial statements focus on the City's most
significant funds rather than the City as a whole. Major funds are separately reported
while all others are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund
data for non-major funds is provided in the form of combining statements in a later
section of this report.

The City has three kinds of funds:

Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass
essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government -
wide financial statements. However, the focus is very different with fund statements
providing a distinctive view of the City's governmental funds. These statements report
short-term fiscal accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources during the
year and balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. They are
useful in evaluating annual financing requirements of governmental programs and the
commitment of spendable resources for the near -term.

Since the government-wide focus presents the long-term view, comparisons between
these two perspectives may provide insight into the long-term impact of short-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to the government-wide statements to assist in understanding the
differences between these two perspectives.

A budgetary comparison statement is included for the General Fund as required
supplementary information. This statement demonstrates compliance with the City's
adopted and final revised budget.

Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report
services for which the City charges customers a fee. There are two types of proprietary
funds. Enterprise funds essentially encompass the same functions reported as
business-type activities in the government-wide statements. Services are provided to
customers external to the City. Proprietary fund statements provide both long -term and
short-term financial information consistent with the focus provided by the government -
wide financial statements but with more detail. Internal service funds report services
provided within the city organization. Currently the City of Yukon does not have internal
service funds.

Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements, but are excluded
from the government-wide reporting. Fiduciary fund financial statements report
resources that are not available to fund City programs. Fiduciary fund financial
statements report similarly to proprietary funds.

City of Yukon, Oklahoma
tanagements Discussion and Analysis For The Year Ended June 30, 2011
Unaudited
Page5




Notes to financial statements. The accompanying notes fo the financial statements
provide information essential to a full understanding of the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin immediately following
the basic financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning
the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees
and a budgetary comparison statement for the General Fund. Other supplementary
information includes combining nonmajor fund and fiduciary fund financial statements
within the reporting entity. Supplementary information follows the notes to the financial
statements.

Major funds and component units are reported in the basic financial statements as
discussed. Combining and individual statements and schedules for non -major funds
are presented in a subsequent section of this report.

City of Yukon, Oklahama
kanagement's Discussion and Anaiysis For The Year Ended June 30, 2011
Unaudited
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Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole

The City’s net assets at June 30, 2011 are $33,768,206. The following table provides a
summary of the City’s net assets:

Summary of Net Assets at June 30, 2011

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Totals

Current and other assets 17,082,520 13,670,710 30,753,230
Capital assets 46,730,419 9,876,258 56608678
Total Assets 63,812,938 23,546,969 87,359,808
Current liabilities 15,340,738 4,518,085 19,859,833
Long term liabiiities 10,461,094 23,270,775 33,731,869
Total Liabilities 25,801,832 27,789,870 53,581,702
Net assets:

invested in capital 43,371,521 (10,887,651) 32,483,870
assets, net of debt

Restricted 7,768,413 588,840 8,357,253
Unrestricted (13,128,827) 6,055,910 (7,072,917}
Total Net Assets 38,011,107 (4,242,901} 33,768,208

The City’s net assets at June 30, 2010 are $45,391,107. The following table provides a
summary of the City’s net assets:

Summary of Net Assets at June 30, 2010
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Totals

Current and other assets 17,440,840 86,771,678 24,212,518
Capital assets 46,903,228 10,114,308 57,017,534
Total Assets 64,344,085 16,885,887 81,230,052
Current liabilities 2,473,508 4,134,493 6,608,001
Long term liabilities 11,143,763 18,087,181 29,230,944
Total Liabilities 13,617,271 22,221,674 35,838,045
Net assets:

Invested in capital 45,008,953 (7,869,819) 37,139,134
assets, net of debt

Restricted 1,667,535 - 1,667,535
Unrestricted 4,050,306 2,534,132 6,584,438
Total Net Assets 50,726,794 {5,335,687) 45,391,107

The City reported a positive balance in net assets for governmental activities and a
negative balance in net assets for business-type activities.

City of Yukon, Oklahoma
Management's Clscussion and Analysls For The Year Ended June 20, 2011
Unaudited
Page7




Governmental activities. The graph below shows the major governmental activities
and their associated program revenues for the year ended June 30, 2011. You can see
that all governmental activities are financed almost entirely by taxes, rather than user
fees. You can also see that public safety activities account for approximately $8.02
million of the total $21.869 million in governmental expenditures.

2011 Expenses and Program Revenues For Governmental Activities
RExpenses @Program Revenues
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2011 Non-Program Revenue by Source For Governmental Activities

The next graph shows non-program revenue by source. Sales and use tax accounts for
over 81 percent of non-program revenue. Property tax is only available for debt service
on previously approved general obligation bond debt.
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Business-type activities. The graph below shows the major business-type activities
and their associated program revenues. Business -type activities are financed almost
entirely by user fees.

6000
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Thousands

Water Sewer Sanitation

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

The City of Yukon uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Yukon's governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable
resources. This information is used to assess Yukon's financing needs. Unreserved
fund balance is used to measure net resources available for spending at the end of the

fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, total governmental fund balance is $16,357,733 in
2011 compared to $16,337,898 in 2010. Of these amounts, $8,589,320 in 2011
compared to $11,323,496 in 2010 is unassigned. The remaining balance is restricted

for specific governmental fund purposes.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. Most governmental activities
are funded through this fund. Unassigned fund balance was $3,342,170 in 2011
compared to $7,263,572 in 2010, while total fund balance was $8,575,945 in 2011

compared to $8,931,107 in 2010.

City of Yukon, Ollahoma
Hanagements Discussion and Analysis For The Year Ended June 30. 2011
Unaudited
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The FY 2011 budget had no increases by budget adjustments.

General fund revenues were $377,008 less than budgeted.

Expenditures were $427,448 less than the final amended budget.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Yukon’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) for both governmental and business-type activities totaled $56,619,869 in
at June 30, 2011 compared to $57,017,534 in at June 30, 2010. This investment
includes land, buildings, equipment, park facilities, street and drainage improvements,
water system and wastewater system improvements.

Capital asset additions during the year totaled $2,952,609 in 2011 compared to
$3,907,412 in 2010.

Capital asset additions in 2011 included the following:

o Street and drainage projects and improvements totaled approximately
$1,356,000

» Fire station construction in process totaled approximately $644,625
« Water and sewer projects and improvements totaled approximately $391,000

« Purchases of machinery, equipment, and vehicles fotaled approximately
$846,000

Long-term debt. The City had bonds (revenue and general obligation), capital lease
obligations, and notes payable in the amount of $31,229,566 at June 30, 2011
compared to $31,826,370 at June 30, 2010.

City of Yukon, Oklahoma
Management’s Discussion and Analysis For The Year Ended June 30, 2011
Unaidited
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The City of Yukon is located west of Oklahoma City in eastem Canadian County,
Oklahoma. This area of Canadian County is still experiencing above average
residential and retail growth as the result of a recently completed tumpike system in the
area and the growth of the Oklahoma City metropolitan area to the west. The City
continues to attract significant retail business as a result of this urban spread. This
growth will force the City to further accelerate improvements to roads, bridges, water,
and wastewater systems, even though significant progress has already been made in
improving infrastructure.

Many of our Yukon’s citizens work in Oklahoma City and the surrounding municipalities.
Economists with the Oklahoma State University College of Business Administration do
not expect this to change and predict modest job growth in the area through the next
several years.

The Yukon City Council is aware that the economic conditions of the region are
important in the budgeting process. The Council is also aware that quality municipal
services are important to our citizens. Accordingly, for the fiscal year 2011-2012, the
City Council General approved a General Fund budget of $20,257,155. This
compares to $18,005,532 for the previous budget year. This slight increase reflects a
balance between services provided and sales tax available to pay for those services.
To help fund the costs of these services, the City of Yukon is continuing significant
efforts to attract additional retail business.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors
and creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the
City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or
need additional financial information, contact the City of Yukon’s Finance Department.

City of Yukon, Oklahoma
Management's Discussion and Analysis For The Year Ended June 30, 2011
Unaudited
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CITY OF YUKON

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,806,329 $ 1,221,021 $ 8,127,350
Accounts receivables (net) - 1,228,701 1,229,701
Taxes receivables 3,108,716 - 3,106,716
Fines receivable 34,861 - 34,861
Grants receivable 232,485 232,485
Deferred charges, net of amortization 107,882 - 107,882
Due toffrom other funds - - ~
Restricted assets:
Cash deposit, insurance 69,918 - 69,918
Cash 6,192,478 6,335,205 12,527,681
Investments 427,502 3,743,720 4,171,222
Other assets 4,351 1,127,872 1,132,223
Capital assets (net) 48,730,419 9,889.450 56,619,868
Total assets 83,812,939 23,546,969 87,359,908
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 437,127 311,777 748,904
Contracts payable - 12,610 12,610
Accrued salaries 179,778 23,075 202,853
Accrued interest 144,996 212,925 357,921
Accrued compensated absences, current 465,518 43,293 508,811
Capital lease obligation, current 175,499 - 175,499
Deferred ravenue - 6,652 6,652
OPEB liability 13,257 820 - 13,257,820
Notes payable, current - 1,668,763 1,668,763
Revenue bonds payable, current - 2,240,000 2,240,000
General obligation bond payable, current 680,000 - 680,000
Customer deposits payable - 348,606 348,606
Capital lease obligation, non-current 198,377 - 198,377
Accrued compensated absences, non-current 1,329,594 76,320 1,405,814
General obligation bonds payable 8,925,000 - 8,825,000
General obligation bond premium 8,123 - 8,123
Revenue bonds payable, net of unamortized bond discount - 22 845 849 22,845,849
Total liabilities 25,801,832 27,789,870 53,691,702
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 43,371,521 (10.887,6851) 32,483,870
Restricted 7,768,413 588,840 8,357,253
Unresticted (13.128.827) 6,055,810 (7,072,917}
Total net assets $ 38011107 $ (4242901 $ 33,768,206

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Functions/Programs:

Governmental activities:
General government

Public

safety:

Police
Municipal court
Fire

Animal control

Public

services

Cultural and recreation

OPEB

Interest on long term debt
Total Governmental activities

liability

Business-type activities:

Water
Sewer

Sanitation

interest on long term debt
Total Business-type activities

Total

Net {expense) revenue

General revenues:

Taxes:

Sales and use taxes

Property taxes

CITY OF YUKON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants & (Expense)
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Revenue

$ 7,594,155 $ 234,931 $ - $ - $ (7,389,224)
4,633,788 719,812 - - (3,.913,974)
203,440 - - - (203,440)
3,045,266 - - - (3,045,268)
139,080 - - - (139,050)
3,021,420 - - 14,340 (3,007,080}
2,555,281 108,145 - - (2,449,136)
13,257,820 - - - (13,257,820}
877,692 - - - (677,692)
35,127,810 1,060,888 - 14,340 (34,052,682)
3,847,404 5,005,731 - - 1,358,327
1,268,377 1,523,835 - - 254,258
1,265,689 1,680,313 - - 414,654
800,692 - - - (800,692)
6,083,132 8,209,679 - - 1,226,547

$ 42111042 § 92708687 § - $ 14,340  $ (32,826,135)

Franchise and public service taxes

Investment income
Intergovernmental

Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year, restated

Net agsets - end of year

Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ (34,052,682) $ 1226547  $ (32,826,135)
16,823,732 - 16,823,732
1,076,033 - 1,076,033
1,757,558 - 1,757,558
81,600 29,645 111,245
450,558 - 450,558
703,291 448,759 1,150,050
444223 (444223 _ -
21,336,995 32,181 21,368,176
(12,715,687) 1,258,728 (11,458,959}
50,726,794 (5,335,687) 45,381,107
$ 38011,107 § (4,076959) § 33,934,148

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Fines receivable, net of allowance
Grants receivable
Due from other funds
Retricted cash:
Cash depostt, insurance
Cash
Investments
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balance:

Restricted for:
Reserves
Capital asset acquisitions
Community development grant
Community support
Bond retirement

Unassigned, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Capital projects fund

96 Sales Tax Capiial projects fund

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF YUKON

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Capital 96 Sales Tax Other Total

General Projects Capital Projects Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 2399897 3 83936 § 2613628 $ 1,799,068 $ 6,906,329
3,094,180 - - 12,568 3,106,716
34,881 - - - 34,861
- - 3,826 228,559 232,485
- - 1,681,333 - 1,681,333
69,918 - - - 69,918
5,234,875 957,801 - - 6,192,476
- - 427,502 - 427 502
4,381 - - - 4,351
$ 10837652 $ 1,051,737 $ 4726388 § 2,040,193 $ 18,655,971
3 400,596 8 - $ 16,928 § 16,608 $ 437,127
179,778 - - - 179,778
1,681,333 - - - 1,681,333
2,281,707 - 19,925 16,606 2,298,238
5,233,775 - - - §,233,775
- 1,051,737 - - 1,051,737
- - - 82,520 82,520
- - - 478,434 478,434
- - - 921,847 921,847
3,342,170 - - - 3,342,170
- - - 540,686 540,688
- - 4,706,464 - 4,706,464
8,575,945 1,061,737 4,706,464 2,023,587 16,357,733
$ 10837652 $ 1081737 $ 4726388 & 2,040,183 $ 18,855,971

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF YUKON
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Total fund balance - all governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net agsets are different because: $ 18,357,733
Capital assets of $92,995,028, net of accumulated depreciation of $46,264,609, are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 46,730,419
Lang-term liabilites ($11,773,988) are not due and payable in the current period and
are not reported in the funds. (11,773,988)
OPERBR liability (13,257,820)
Accrued interest on long-term liabilities ($144,996). (144,996)
Deferred charges for bond issuance costs of $153,668, net of accumulated amortization of ($45,786), and for
the premium on the General Obligation Bonds of ($12,054), net of accumulated amortization of $3,831,
99,759
o o———————

are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

-+

Net assets of governmental activities $ 38,011,107

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
15



CITY OF YUKON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Capital 96 Sales Tax Other Total
General Projects Capital Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues: R
Taxes $ 18397878 3 - $ 183412 § 1076033 §$ 19,657,323
Intergovernmental - - - 450,558 450,558
Charges for services 106,145 - - - 106,145
Fines and forfettures 719,812 - - ~ 719,812
Licenses and permits 234,931 - - - 234,931
Investment income 56,128 6,382 8,877 10,213 81,600
Grant revenue - - - 14,340 14,340
Miscellaneous 455,045 - - 248,247 703,292
Total revenues 19,969,939 6,382 192,289 1,799,391 21,968,001
Expenditures:
General government 6,897,736 - - - 6,897,738
Public safety:
Pofice 4,235,547 - - 60,184 4,295,731
Municipal court 203,440 - - - 203,440
Fire 2,797,459 - - - 2,797,459
Animal control 135,197 - - - 135,197
Public services 1,218,623 - - 205,323 1,423,948
Cultural and recreation 2,105,955 - - 341,429 2.447,384
Debt service 196,076 - 248,503 1,082,228 1,527,807
Capital outlay 877,153 468,844 900,712 329,099 2,575,808
Total expenditures 18,667,186 468,844 1,150,215 2,018,263 22,304,508
Excess revenues over (under)
expenditures 1,302,753 (462,462) (957,926) (218,872 (336,507,
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 6,474,573 - 4,768,721 197,723 11,432,017
Transfers out (8,132.488) (284,995) (2,628 655) (28,538) (11,075,676}
Total other financing sources and uses (1,657 915) (284.995) 2,130,066 169,188 356,341
Net change in fund balances (355,162) (747,457) 1,172,140 (49,687) 19,834
Net assets - beginning of year 8,931,107 1,799,194 3,534,324 2,073,274 16,337,899
Fund balance - end of year $ 8575045 $§ 1051737 § 4706464 S 2,023587 3 16,357,733

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF YUKON
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 19,834
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of

those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is

amount by which capital cutlay expense ($2,575,808) exceeded depreciation expense ($2,836,496) in the

current period. (260,688)

Transfers of capital assets from proprietary funds are not reported on the governmental fund financial statements, but are
reparted on the statement of activities ($87,882). 87,882

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in
the statement of net assets. There was repayments of ($868,248). 868,248

The change in accrued interest of $10,979 on long-term debt and the net amortization expense on debt issuance costs and
premium of $7,156. (18,135)

Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets report OPEB liabilities in the period
incurred. However, Governmental Funds do not pay on this liability. The amount of the change for the
OPEB liability recorded in the current period. (13,257,820)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Compensated absences increased §1 55,008 in the

governmental funds and are shown as an expense in the statement of activities. {155,009)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (12,71 5,6872

Thee accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Assessments recelvable
Due from other funds
Restricted assets:

Cash

Investments

Capital assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings
Infrastructure
Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Other assets:
Bond issuance costs (net of amortization)

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued salaries
Accrued compensated absences, current
Capital lease obligation, current
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds
Notes payabie, current
Payable from restricted assets:
Bond interest payable, current
Bonds payable, current
Customer deposits payable
Capital lease obligation, non-current
Accrued compensated absences, non-current
Bonds payable, net of unamortized bond discount

Total liabilities
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CiTY OF YUKON

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Water/ Yukon Total
Sewer Sanitation Municipal Stormwater Proprietary
Fund Fund Authority Fund Funds
$ 51842 § 840777 § (595 $ 328997 § 1,221,021
- 232,417 997,284 - 1,228,701
367,694 - 5,877,511 - 6,335,205
- - 3,743,720 - 3,743,720
- 6,735 91,008 - 97,740
- - 327,401 - 327,401
- - 141,002 - 141,002
- - 31,871,188 - 31,671,188
- 1,109,366 698,047 - 1,807,413
- (726,229) {23,428,085) - (24,155,284)
- - 1.127.872 - 1,127,872
$ 408536 § 1463088 § 21345370 $ 328,997 § 23,546,969
3 276829 $ 13216 § 18,082 § 3556 § 311,777
12,610 - - - 12,610
11,878 9,403 - 1,797 23,075
28,808 - - 14,485 43,293
- - 6,652 - 8,652
- - 1,668,763 - 1,668,763
- - 212,925 - 212,925
- - 2,240,000 - 2,240,000
348,808 - - - 348,606
41,614 34,708 - - 76,320
- - 22,845,849 - 22845849
720,442 57,319 26,992,271 19,838 27,789,870
- 389,872 (11,277,523) - (10,887,651)
- - 688,840 - 588,840
(310,906) 1015875 5,041,782 309,159 6,055,910
{310,908) 1,406,747 (5,646,901} 308,158 (4.242,901)
3 409536 § 1463086 § 21345370 S 328,997 § 23,548,969




CITY OF YUKON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Water/ Yukon Total
Sewer Sanitation Municipal Stormwater Proprietary
Fund Funds Authority Funds Funds
Operating revenues:
Water revenues $ - 3 - $ 5008731 $ - $ 5005731
Sewer revenues - - 1,523,635 - 1,523,635
Sanitation revenues - 1,680,313 - - 1,680,313
Total operating revenues - 1,680,313 6,529,366 - 8,209,679
QOperating expense:
Personal services 1,028,407 728,483 - 127,600 1,884,490
Maintenance operations and contractual services 2,644,835 93,172 - 21,746 2,759,753
Materials and supplies 92,239 352,523 53,511 9,841 508,114
Depreciation and amortization - 91,481 947 862 - 1,039,343
Total operating expenses 3,765,481 1,265,659 1,001,373 159,187 6,191,700
Operating income before non-operating revenues,
expenses and transfers {3.765,481) 414,654 5.527,993 (159.187) 2,017,978
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Investment income - - 28,908 - 29,908
Interest expense - - (957,638) - (957,638
Administrative fees - - 14,800 - 14,800
Cther revenues (expense) (69,701) - 271,437 230,223 431,859
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) (69.701) - (641,492) 230,223 {480,970}
Income (loss) before operating transfers {3,835,182) 414,654 4,886,501 71.038 1,537,008
Transfers in 6,305,851 63,507 3,031,388 6,698 9,407,442
Transfers out {2,527,630) (274,752} {6,874,283) (75,000} (9.851,665)
Change in net assets (56,961) 203,409 943,604 2,734 1,092,788
Net assets - beginning of year {253,945) 1,202,338 {6,590,508) 306,425 (5,335,687
Net assets at end of year $  (310,808) S 1405747 S (5646901 $ 308,158 § (4,242.901)

The accompanying riotes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF YUKON

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Watert Yukon Total
Sewer Sanitation Municipal Stormwatar Proprietary
Fund Fund Authority Fund Funds
Cash flows operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ - $ 1660765 3 6318812 § - $ 7.979,377
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (2,664,407) (481,220) (51,248) (32,343) (3,229,216)
Cash payments to empioyees and professional
contractors for services (1,073,941) (730,528) (2,000} (128,420) (1,825,889)
Other operating revenues (11,730 - - - {11.737)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (3,750,088) 449,017 6,265,366 (155,763) 2,808,538
Cash flows from non.capital financing activities:
Transfers from other funds 6,305,851 63,507 3,031,388 8,698 9,407,442
Transfers 10 other funds (2,527,630} (274,752) (6,974,283 {75.000) (8,851,665)
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital
financing activities 3,778,221 (211,245) (3,942,897) 683 {444,223)
Cash flows from capital and refated financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital agsets - (83,239) {754,871) - {807.910)
Prircipal paid on bonds, notes and lease obligations - B (3,697,988) - (3,697 996)
interest paid on bonds, notes, and lease obligations - - (737,458} - (737,459}
Proceeds from issuance of bonds, notes and lease ohiigations - - 8,432,514 - 8,432,514
Miscetlaneous (69,701 - 285019 230,223 445,541
Net cash provided {used} by capital and related
financing activities (68,701) (53,239) 3,527,407 230,223 3,834,680
Cash flows from investing activities:
Pruceeds from sale of investments - - 41,078 - 41,078
Investment income - - 28,645 - 29648
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities - - 70,721 - 70,721
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivaients {41,565) 184,533 5,920,597 6,158 6,069,723
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 451,101 656,244 56,319 322,838 1,486,503
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 408536 $ 840777 3 5976916 § 328997 § 7.556.226
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equival to the Stat t of Net Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 51842 $ 840,777 B (585) § 328997 § 1,221,021
Restricted assets, cash 357,694 - 5,977,511 - 6,335,205
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $__ 408536 & 840777 S 5576916 S 328,897 § 7,558,228
Reconciliation of operating incoma {loss) to net cash
provided (used} by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (3765481) S 414554 S 5527903 & (159,187) _$ 2.017.978
Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss) to
Net cash provided (used) by operating actlvities
Depreciation - 91,481 947,862 - 1,038,343
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts recaivable - (19.548) (210,754) - {230,302}
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 72,667 (35,525) 265 {758) 38,651
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries 3,365 4,241 - 845 8,455
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (48,899) (6,288) - 3,331 (51,854)
Increase (decraase) in liability for meter deposits {11.737) - - - (11.737)
Total adjustments 15,396 34,363 737,373 3.424 790,558
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (3.750.0852 $ 448,017 5 6265388 § (155.7632 § 2808535

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Asgsets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities:
Escrow liability

Total liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

CITY OF YUKON
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
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Agency
Funds

3 415,426

415,428

415,426
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CITY OF YUKON
Yukon, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Yukon, Oklahoma (the City) complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
(Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also required fo follow the pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through Novemnber 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the City has the option to apply FASB pronouncements
issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the City has chosen not to do so. The
more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed below.

A. Reporting Entity

The government Is a municipal corporation governed by an elected five-member council. As required by
generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the government and its component
units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units,
atthough legally separate entities are, in substance, part of the government's operationis and so data from these
units are combined with data of the primary government. The City's blended component unit has a June 30
year-end.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The City's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net
assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of
financial information. Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records
and reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide Financial Statements — The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the City as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary
government, except fiduciary funds. The activity of the internal service fund is efiminated to avoid “doubling
up” revenues and expenses. The statements distinguish' between those activities of the City that are
governmental and those that are considered business-type activities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type activities
at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each program or function of the City’s governmenta! activities and for the business-type activities
of the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department
and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the
recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program and interest earned on program
revenues are presented as general revenues of the city, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of
direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each business segment or governmental
function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.
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CITY OF YUKON
Yukon, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements — During the year, the City segregates transactions related to certain City
functions or activities in separate funds In order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the City at this more
detailed level. The focus of govermmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds. Major
funds represent 10% of assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures of the corresponding element for all
funds of that category and is at least 5% of the corresponding element total for all governmental and
enterprise funds combined or is a fund that the government believes is important enough for financial
statement users to be reported as a major fund. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-
major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. The internal service fund is presented in a
single column on the face of the proprietary fund statements. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

Fund Accounting — The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds
according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with
finance-related legal and contractual provisions. There are three categories of funds: governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds — are used to account for the government's general government activities.
Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become measurable and available). "Measurable” means the amount
of the transaction can be determined and “available" means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers all revenues
available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due,
and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Sales taxes, gasoline excise taxes and motor vehicle taxes collected and held by the state and county at
year-end on behalf of the City are susceptible to accrual and are recognized as revenue. Other receipts and
taxes (franchise taxes, licenses, etc.) become measurable and available when cash is received by the
government and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual
criteria are met. Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have
been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met.

The following are the City's major governmental funds:

General Fund — is the general operating fund of the City. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund — accounts for the receipt and disbursement of resources for the purpose of building
or buying major capital assets, such as schools, public buildings, or recreational facilities. Resources may
be derived from a variety of sources, including bond proceeds, loans, or grants.

96 Sales Tax Capital Projects Fund - accounts for capital expenditures using the proceeds of the 1996
Sales Tax. This fund also pays back debt of the 1996 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds.
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CITY OF YUKON
Yukon, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting (Continued)
Other governmental funds of the City that are considered non-major funds include:

Special Revenue Funds — accounts for revenues derived from specific taxes or other sources that are
designated to finance particular functions or activities of the City.

Debt Service Funds — accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, governmental
activities debt principal, interest and related costs.

Yukon Community Support Fund ~ accounts for funds for community activities and events. This fund
operates on a calendar year basis. Included in the City's statement is the trial balance for December 31,

2008,

Community Development Block Grant Fund ~ accounts for CDBG funds received by the City.

Proprietary Funds — are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. In compliance with the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 20 the City has applied only Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB),
Accounting Principles Board (APB) and Accounting Research Board (ARB) materials issued on or before
November 30, 1889 that do not conflict with GASB. Proprietary funds are classified as either enterprise or
internal service.

Enterprise Funds — are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs and expenses of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues
received, disbursements made, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purposes. The City operates four enterprise funds, which are
engaged in providing water, sewer and sanitation utility services:

The following are the City’s major enterprise funds:

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund — accounts for operating expenses related fo providing water and sewer
services.

Sanitation Enterprise Fund - collects all revenues and pays all expenses associated with providing
sanitation services.

Yukon Municipal Authority — collects the revenues related to water and sewer operations. The Authority
also issues debt for capital acquisitions related to water and sewer operations.

Stormwater Fund - accounts for operating expenses related to stormwater operating activities.

Fiduciary Funds — account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, other govemmental units, and/or other funds. The accounts of the City include agency
funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities), and do not involve measurement of results
of operations.
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CITY OF YUKON
Yukon, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity

1.

2.

4.

Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include restricted assets in revenue
bond and restricted construction fund accounts at the trustee bank.

Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market unless otherwise indicated.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by
applicable bond covenants.

Fair Value of Financial Insfruments

The City's financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, investments, accounts receivable and
accounts payable. The City's estimates of the fair value of all financial instruments do not differ materially
from the aggregate carrying values of its financial instruments recorded in the accompanying balance
sheet. The carrying amount of these financial instruments approximates fair value because of the short
maturity of these instruments.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Inventories

Inventories in both governmental funds and proprietary funds normally consist of minimal amounts of
expendable supplies held for consumption. The costs of such inventories are recorded as expenditures
when purchased rather than when consumed.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

The City's property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are stated
at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, and comprehensively reported in the
government-wide financial statements. Prior to July 1, 2002, governmental funds’ infrastructure assefs
were not capitalized. These assets (back to July 1, 1980) will be valued at estimated historical cost. The
City capitalized some of the infrastructure assets in the fiscal year June 30, 2005; while the remaining
infrastructure assets were valued and capitalized in the fiscal year June 30, 2007, complying with GASB
34 standards.

Proprietary and component unit capital assets are also reported in their respective fund and combining
component units' financial statements.
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CITY OF YUKON
Yukon, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

6. Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)

8.

Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated. The City capitalizes assets with cost of $5
thousand or more as purchase and construction outlays occur. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets, including those of component units, are depreciated using the straight-line method. When
capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the
respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded in operations.

Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings 40 years

Building Improvements 20-40 years

Vehicles 5 years

Office Equipment 7-10 years

Computer Equipment 5 years

Infrastructure 25-50 years
Compensated Absences

City employees are granted vacation and sick leave based upon length of employment. In the event of
termination, the employee is paid for accumulated vacation leave (maximum 500 hours), Payment of sick
leave is restricted to retiring employees who can be paid up to 120 days of accumulated benefits and are
limited to maximum compensation equivalent of 33 to 68 days. Compensated absences are reported-as
accrued in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary financial statements. Governmental funds
report only matured compensated absences payable to currently terminating employees and is included
in wages and benefits payable. '

Long-term Obligations

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental
fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or
fund financial statements.

Alt long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities
in the govemment-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of notes payable, accrued
compensated absences, and a court-assessed judgment.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The
debt proceeds are reported as revenue and payment of principle and interest reported as expenditures.
The accounting for proprietary fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide
statements.
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CITY OF YUKON
Yukon, Okiahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

9.

Net Assets/Fund Balance

in the government-wide financial statement, net assets represent the difference between assets and
liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when
limitations on their use change the nature or normal understanding of the availability of the asset. Such
constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, laws or other governments,
or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the hierarchy of fund balances. The hierarchy
is based primarily on the degree of spending constraints placed upon use of resources for specific
purposes versus availability of appropriation. An important distinction that is made in reporting fund
balance is between amounts that are considered nonspendable (i.e., fund balance associated with assets
that are not in spendable form, such as inventories or prepaid items, long-term portions of loans and
notes receivable, or items that are legally required to be maintained intact (such as the corpus of a
permanent fund)) and those that are spendable (such as fund balance associated with cash, investments
or receivables).

Amounts in the spendable fund balance category are further classified as restricted, committed, assigned
or unassigned, as appropriate.

Restricted fund balance represents amounts that are constrained either exterally by creditors (such
as debt covenants), grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments; or by law,
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance represents amount that are useable only for specific purposes by formal
action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. Such amounts are not subject
to legal enforceability (like restricted amounts), but cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
government removes or changes the limitation by taking action similar to that which imposed the
commitment. The City Ordinance is the highest leve! of decision-making authority of the City.

Assigned fund balance represents amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes, but
are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the governing body itseif, or a
subordinated high-level body or official who the governing body has delegated the authority to assign
amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned fund balances includes all remaining spendable
amounts (except negative balances) that are reported in governmental funds other than the general
fund, that are neither restricted nor committed, and amounts in the general fund that are intended to
be used for specific purpose in accordance with the provisions of the standard.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. It represents the

amounts that have not been assigned to other funds, and that have not been restricted, committed, or
assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity {Continued)

10. Resource Use Policy

Itis in the City's policy for all funds that when an expenditure/expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted resources, including fund balances, are available, the City considers
restricted amounts to be spent first before any unrestricted amounts are used. Furthermore, it is the
City's policy that when an expenditure/expense is incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or
unassigned resources, including fund balances, are available, the City considers committed amounts to

be spent first, followed by assigned amounts and lastly unassigned amounts.
2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS
A. Deposits and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk

At June 30, 2011, the City held deposits of approximately $14,700,000 at financial institutions.

institutions are required by law to pledge securities in addition to Federal Deposit insurance Corporation
(FDIC) insurance at least equal to the amount on deposit at all times. As of June 30, 2011, the balances in

cash and certificates of deposit were fully secured.

Investment Interest Rate Risk

The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing

its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
Investment Credif Risk

The City has no policy that limits its investment choices other than the limitation of state law as follows:

a. Direct obligations of the U.S. Govemment, its agencies and instrumentalities to which the full faith
and credit of the U.S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full faith and

credit of the State is pledged.

b. Certificates of deposits or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable
collateral with in-state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings

accounts in out-of-state financial institutions.

c. With certain fimitation, negotiable cerlificates of deposit, prime bankers acceptances, prime

commercial paper and repurchase agreements with certain limitations.

d. County, municipal or school district tax supported debt obligations, bond or revenue anticipation
notes, money judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public trusts whose beneficiary is a

county, municipality or school district.

€. Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing Administrator and
debentures issued by the Federal Housing Administrator, and in obligations of the National Mortgage

Association.

f. Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the investments

mentioned in the previous paragraphs (a.-d.).
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2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS (Continued)

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

The investments held at June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Weighted
Average
Maturity Credit Market
Type {Months) Rating Value Cost
Investments
Money Market N/A AAAmM $ 3743720 $ 3,743,720
Certificate of deposit 6.29 N/A 427,502 427,502

Total investments $ 4,171,222 $ 4171222

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets

Governmertal activities $ 427,502
Business-type activities 3,743,720

F e

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk

The City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. The City has the following of credit
risk: 10% in Certificates of deposit ($427,502) and 99% in Money Market funds ($3,743,720).
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2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS {Continued)
B. Capital Assets

Primary Government capital asset activity for the year ended is as follows:

Governmental Activities
Bdance Retirerments/ Balance
June 30, 2010 Additions Transfers Adustments  June 30, 2011
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 2974338 $ - $ - $ - $ 2974338
Cortruction in progress 2,891,281 1,086,590 (1,700,642) - 2371729
Total assets not beingdepreciated $§ 5065618 & 1.086560 & §1§7005642; 3 - $ 535157
Cther capital assets
Infrastructure $ 63718558 $ R5EMB3 $ 1689642 3 - $ 66331,283
Buildngs and improvements 11,747,722 284,290 11,000 - 12,083,012
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 4.926,639 236,628 - - 5,163,267
Vehicles 3.974,791 121,099 - - 4,095,800
Total cther capital assefs 84,365,710 1,577,100 1,700,642 - 87,643,452
Less accurnulated deprediation for
Infrastructure (35519033 (1,572212) - - (37,081,245
Buildngs and improvements (3.081,670) {395,108) - - (3476,778
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 2,360,176 (457,139) - - (2.817,315
Vehides (2467,225) (412.037) - - (2.870.262
Total accurmulated depreciation (43428,104) (2.836,496) - - (46,264,600
Other capital assets, net § 4003706 3 (1,060,06) § 1700847 S - 5§ A13m/;2
P e el
Capital asset summary:
Capital assets notbeing depreciate $ 5965619 $  1,086500 § (1.700842) $ - $ 5351567
Other capitdl assets, at cost 84.365.710 1.577,100 1,700.642 - 87843452
Total cost of capital assels 90,331,329 2,663,690 - - 92.995,019
Less accurmulzted depreciation {43428,104) {2,836,496) - - (46,264,600
Capital assets, net $ 469825 § (172806 $ - $ — $ 46730,419

The amount of capital assets acquired through leases is $588,229 with related accumulated depreciation of
$176,469.
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2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS (Continued)
B. Capital Assets (Continued)

Business-type Activities

Baance Retiremmerts/ Balance
June 30, 2010 Additions Transfers Adjustmerts  June 30, 2011

Capitdl assets ndt being depreciated

Land $ 97,740 $ - $ - 3 - $ 97,740

Contruction in progress 223,800 103,801 - - 327,401
Total assets nct being depreciated 3 321,340 § 103801 % - 3 - 3 425,141
Cther capital assets '

Infrastructure $ 31383240 $ 287948 § - $ - $ 31671,188

Buildings ard improvements - 154,887 - - 154,887

Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 763,908 53238 - - 817,148

Vehicles 976,381 - - - 976,381
Total other capital assets 33,123,229 486,073 - - 3,519,602
Less acournulated deprecigtion for

Infrastructure (22,188,137 (676,859) - - (22,864,996

Buildings and improvements 4,097 (2.849) - - 6,246

Fumiture, fixtures and equipment (393,468) (74,601) - - (468,089

Vehicles (744.851) {70431) - - (815,282
Total accurnulated depreciation (233%0,553 (824,740) - - (24,155,293
Other capital assets, net § 0792076 $ (2866) $ -5 -5 9464,309
Capital asset summary:

Capital assets not being depreciete $ 321,40 $ 103801 § - $ - $ 425,141

Other capital assets, at cost 33,123,529 496,073 - - 33619.602
Total cost of capital assets 33444,869 589,874 - - 34044743
Less accurmulated depreciation (23330,553) (824,740) - - (24,155,293

Capitd assels, net $ 10114316 $ (24866) $ - $ - $ 9889450
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DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS {Continued)
B. Capital Assets (Continued)
Depreciation expense

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmentat activities:
General government 3 541,410
Public safety:
Police 338,055
Fire 247,807
Animal control 3,853
Public service 1,597,474
Culture and recreation 107.897
Governmental activities depreciation expense 2,836,498
Business-type activities:
Water and sewer 733,258
Sanitation 91,481
Business-type activities depreciation expense 824,740
Total depreciation expense $ 3,661,238

C. Long-term Debt and Capitalized Leases

The City has entered into general obligation bonds payable, revenue bonds payable and capitalized leases.
The lease agreements met the criteria of a capital lease as defined by FASB Statement No. 1 3, Accounting
for Leases, which defines a capital lease generally as one which transfers benefits and risks of ownership to
the lessee. Capital lease payments have been reclassified and are reflected as debt service expenditures in
the financial statements for the governmental funds. These expenditures are reported as expenditures on the

fund financial statements.

On February 1, 1996, the City issued the $2.750 million Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996 to refund
priorrevenue bonds of the City. Interest on the bonds is payable semi-annually on April 1¥ and November
1* at rates ranging from 4 to 5.1%. Utility system revenue bonds are pledged to secure payment of these

bonds.

In January 19986, residents of the City approved a 3/4 cents sales tax for the purpose of financing capital
improvements for the use and benefit of the City. To accelerate the planned capital improvements
program, the City issued revenue bonds and used the proceeds from the bonds to fund planned capital
expenditures. Revenues from the 3/4 cent sales tax, along with utility system revenues, were in turn
pledged to secure the payment of these bonds. In June, 1996 the City began issuing the bonds for these

capital improvements. The dates and amounts of issuances are as follows:

June 21, 1996, the City, through the Yukon Municipal Authority, issued $2.200 million in Sales
Tax and Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 1996. Interest on the bonds is payable semi-
annually on June 1% and December 1% at rates ranging from 4.7 to 5.45%.
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2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS (Continued)
C. Long-term Debt and Capitalized Leases (Continued)

January 15, 1997 the City, through the Yukon Municipal Authority, issued $4.995 milfion in
Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 1997. Interest on the bonds is payable
semi-annually on June 1% and December 1% at rates ranging from 4.2 to 5.60%.

January 15, 1998 the City, through the Yukon Municipal Authority, issued $4.995 million of
Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 1998. Interest on the bonds is payable
semi-annually on June 1* and December 1% at rates ranging from 3.8 to 4.75%.

December 1, 1999 the City, through the Yukon Municipal Authority, issued $4.995 million of
Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 1999. Interest on the
honds is payable semi-annually on June 1% and December 1% at rates ranging from 4 to 6%.

January 15, 2005 the City, through the Yukon Municipal Authority, issued $3.080 million of
Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A and $11.180 million of Sales Tax
and Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2005B. Interest on these bonds is payable semi-
annually on June 1 and December 1* at rates ranging from 4.25 to 5%.

April 1, 2007 the City, through the Yukon Municipal Authority, issued $7.575 million of Sales
Tax and Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007. Interest on these bonds is payable semi-
annually on January 1% and July 1* at rates ranging from 4.125 to 5%.

June 1, 2010 the City, through the Yukon Municipal Authority, issued $4.430 million of Sales
Tax and Utility System Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2010. interest on the bonds is
payable semi-annually on June 1% and December 1* at rates ranging from 2 to 3.5%.

January 1, 2011 the City, through the Yukon Municipal Authority, issued $7.500 miltion of Sales
Tax and Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2011. Interest on the bonds is payable semi-
annually on January 1¥ and July 1* at rates ranging from 1t0 5.15%.

On December 9%, 2003, the voters of the City of Yukon approved an ordinance authorizing the issuance of
general obligation bonds for improvements to streets, bridges, water systems, and sanitary sewer systems.
On March 1, 2004, the City issued $4.5 million of City of Yukon General Obligation Bonds, Series 2004 for
the construction and improvement of City streets and bridges. Interest on the bonds is payable semi-
annually on March 1* and September 1% commencing on March 1, 2008, at rates ranging from 3 to 4.25%.
The bonds will be repaid with ad valorem taxes collected on real property of taxpayers in the City of Yukon,
Ckiahoma

On December 9%, 2003, the voters of the City of Yukon approved an ordinance authorizing the issuance of
general obligation bonds for improvements to streets, bridges, water systems, and sanitary sewer systems.
On January 1, 2005, the City issued $3.9 million of City of Yukon General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005 for
the construction and improvement of City streets, bridges, water and sewer systems. Interest on the bonds
is payable semi-annually on March 1% and September 1% commencing on March 1, 2006, at rates ranging
from 3.50 to 4.25%. The bonds will be repaid with ad valorem taxes collected on reai property of taxpayers
in the City of Yukon, Oklahoma

On December 9%, 2003, the voters of the City of Yukon approved an ordinance authorizing the issuance of
general obligation bonds for improvements to streets, bridges, water systems, and sanitary sewer systems.
On January 1, 2008, the City issued $4.6 million of City of Yukon General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006 for
the construction and improvement of City streets, bridges, water and sewer systems. Interest on the bonds
is payable semi-annually on March 1* and September 1% commencing on March 1, 2007, at rates ranging
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from 3.70 to 5.0%. The bonds will be repaid with ad valorem taxes collected on real property of taxpayers in
the City of Yukon, Okiahoma

2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS (Continued)

C. Long-term Debt and Capitalized Leases {Continued)

The
with

On October 17, 2000, the City issued a lease payable to Canadian State Bank in the amount of $300,000
for the purchase of a building. 120 monthly instaliments of $3,256 plus interest of 5.5%.

On Cetober 15, 2007, the City issued 2 lease payable to Ford Motor Credit Company in the amount of
$506,255 for the purchase of police cars. 3 annual instaliments of $178,918 plus interest of 6.15%.

On January 26, 2005, the YMA issued a lease payable to The Empire Companies in the amount of
$208,560 for the purchase of 2 new refuse trucks. 60 monthly installments of $3.988 plus interest of
5.36%.

On September 1, 2004, the YMA issued a lease payable to The Empire Companies in the amount of
$205,429 for the purchase of 2 new refuse trucks. 80 monthly installments of $3,839 plus interest of
4.64%.

current refunding of the YMA Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2001
the YMA Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 resulted in a difference

between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $215,616. This difference,
reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from bonds payable, will be amortized and
charged to operations through the year 2021. As a resuit of the refunding, the Authority reduced its aggregate
debt service payments over the next 10 years by $423,468 and obtained an economic gain (difference between
the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $341,211.

Changes in Long-Term Debt
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2011:
Balance Balance Current
June 30, 2010 Issued Retired June 30, 2011 Partion
Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds $ 10285000 $ - $ (680000) $§ 9605000 $ 680,000
Compensated absences 1,640,103 626,077 (471,068) 1,795,112 465,518
Lease obligations 562,125 - (188.249) 373.876 175,499
Total Governmental Activities 12,487,228 626,077 (1,339,317) 11,773,988 1.321.017
Business-type Activities
Revenue bonds 18,250,000 7,500,000 (1,885,000) 24,855,000 2,240,000
Notes payable 1,688,245 1,782,514 {1,802,996) 1,668,763 1,668,763
Compensated absences 171,467 3,332 (55,188) 118,813 43,293
Total Business-type Activities 21,110,712 9,285,848 (3.753,182) 26,643.376 3,952,056

Total Primary Government Long-term

debt

$ 33507940 § 0911923 $ (5092499) § 38417364 § 5273073
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2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS {(Continued)
C. Long-term Debt and Capitalized Leases (Continued)
Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 855,498 396,405 1,251,804
2013 878,377 362,460 1,240,837
2014 680,000 328,076 1,008,076
2015 680,000 303,588 983,588
2016 680,000 278,438 958,438
2017-2021 3,400,000 993,651 4,393,651
2022-2026 2,805,000 304,364 3,109,364
$ 0078876 $ 2966982 $ 12945858
Business Type Activities
Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2012 3,808,763 1,149,207 5,057,870
2013 1,855,000 919,108 2,774,108
2014 1,470,000 856,639 2,326,638
2015 1,510,000 808,601 2,318,601
2016 1,165,000 759,176 1,924,178
2017-2021 8,175,000 2,983,639 11,158,838
2022-2024 8,440,000 1,792,276 10,232,276

§ 26523763 § 9268646 § 35,792,408
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D. Internal balances

Internal balances and activity are detailed below. All internal balances and activity have been eliminated in the
statements of net assets and statement of activities, respectively.

Due Due
From To
General Fund
96 Sales Tax Capital Projects fund $ 1,681,333 $ -
96 Sales Tax Capital Projects fund
General Fund - 1,681,333

$ 1,681,333 3 1,681,333

Transfers Transfers
From To

Government-wide - governmenta! funds

Yuken Municipal Authority 3 84882 § -
General Fund

96 Sales Tax Capital Projects fund - 4,759,721

Water & Sewer 2,435,103 71,844

Sanitation 274,752 63,507

Stormwater 75,000 6,698

General fund 3,029,885 3,029,985

Special revenue 4,329 200,722
96 Sales Tax Capital Projects fund

General Fund 4,759,721

Yukon Municipal Autherity 2,629,655
Capital projects fund

Yukon Municipal Authority 284,985
Special revenue

General Fund 200,722 4,329

Yukon Municipal Authority 28,538
Water & Sewer

General Fund 71,844 2,435,103

Yukon Municipal Authority 8,234,007

Yukon Municipal Authority 92,527
Sanitation

General Fund 63,507 274,752
Yukon Municipal Authority

Water & Sewer 8,234,007

96 Sales Tax Capital Projects fund 2,629,855

Special revenue 28,538

Capital projects fund 284,995

Water & Sewer 92,527

Government-wide - governmental funds 84,882
Stormwater

General fund 6,698 75,000

$__ 20276275 $  20.276.275
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3. OTHER INFORMATION
A. Employee Retirement System and Plan

City employees participate in three retirement plans, which are discussed below:

Non-Police and Non-Fire employee retirement system

City employees (excluding police and fire) participate in the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OMRF).
OMRF plan is comprised of employees of cities, towns, or municipally owned hospitals in Oklahoma. OMRF is
sponsored by the Oklahoma Municipal League. At June 30, 2011, 117 employees were participating in the plan.
The City’s contribution to the fund for these participants was based on 22.70% of covered salaries and totaled
31,149,349, for the year ended June 30, 2011. As of March, 2011 the date of the most recently completed
actuarial valuation, the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits was $20,560,271. Net assets
available for benefits were $13,288,899. Unfunded liabilities, which are an obligation of the state of Oklahoma,
totaled $7,271,371.

The required contribution from the City for this plan was $1,148,349, $1,113,490 and $1,108,564 for June 30,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The required contribution was 107%, 97% and 92% contributed for June
30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. At June 30, 2011 the system heid no related-party investments of the
City or of its related entities.

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuanal Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL)* (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-3) (a/b) (c) {(b-a)/c)

1172011 13,288,899 20,560,271 7,271,372 65% 5,063,700 144%

14/2010 12,180,557 18,639,528 6,458,972 65% 5,127,986 126%

11172008 11,395,857 17,035,288 5,639,431 67% 5,243,415 108%

*Covered payroll is the total annualized rate of pay as of the valuation date based on actual pay for the
preceding year.

Police pension and retirement plan

The City's police officers participate in the statewide Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System
(System). The System is funded by contributions from employers, employees and the state. The City
employed 54 of the 4,368 active participants in the plan, or slightly less than 1%. The City's contribution to
the system was based on 13% of covered salaries and totaled $501,914, $481 ,038 and $425,504 for the years
ending June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

As of July 1, 2010, date of the most recently completed actuarial valuation, the actuarial present value of the
accrued liability for all participants, including Yukon police officers, was $1 ,959,900,000. Net assets available for
benefits were approximately $1,822,700,000. Unfunded liabilities, which are an obligation of the state of
Oklahoma, totaled approximately $137,200,000.

The required contribution from the City for this plan was $501,914, $481,038 and $425,504 for June 30, 2011,

2010 and 2009, respectively. The required contribution was fully contributed. At June 30, 2011 the system
held no related-party investments of the City or of its related entities.
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OTHER INFORMATION
A. Employee Retirement System and Plan (Continued)

Firemen' nsion and reti nt plan

The City's firefighters participate in the statewide Oklahoma State Firefighters Pension and Retirement System
(System). The System is funded by the contribution from employers, employees and the state. The City
employed 33 of the 4,079 active participants in the plan, or less than 1%. The Cily's contribution to the system
was based on 13% of covered salaries and totaled $257.445, $260, 335 and $248,050, for the years ending
June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2008, respectively.

As of July 1, 2010, the latest available actuarial valuation, the actuarial present value of credited projected
benefits was $2,760,300,000, and net assets available for benefits were $1,757,800,000. Unfunded liabilities,
which are an obligation of the State of Oklahoma, totaled $1,002,500,000.

The required contribution from the City for this plan was $257,445, $260,335 and $248,050 for June 30, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively. The required contribution was fully contributed. At June 30, 2011 the system
held no related-party investments of the City or of its related entities.

. Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan Description: City provides post-retirement benefit options for health care, prescription drug, dental and
vision benefits for retired employees and their dependents that elect to make required contributions. The
benefits are provided in accordance with State law, police and firefighter's union contracts and the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA). The relationship for these benefits is not
formalized in a contract or plan document, only a few sentences in the administrative policy. These benefits
are considered for accounting purposes to be provided in accordance with a single employer substantive
plan. A substantive plan is one in which the plan terms are understood by the City and plan members. This
understanding is based on communications between the employers and plan member and the historical
pattern of practice with regard to the sharing of benefit costs. Substantially all of the government's employees
may become eligible for those post-retirement benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for
the City. As of June 30, 2011, 12 retired employees are receiving benefits under this plan.

Funding Policy. The contribution requirement of the City is an implicit subsidy. The implicit subsidy is not a
direct payment from the employer on behalf of the member but rather stems from retiree contribution levels
that are less than the claims cost at retiree ages. Since claims experience for employees and non-Medicare
eligible retirees are pooled when determining premiums, these retired members pay a premium based on a
pool of members that, on average, are younger and heaithier. There is an implicit subsidy from the employee
group since the premiums paid by the retirees are lower than they would have been if the retirees were
insured separately. The subsidies are valued using the difference between the age-based claims costs and
the premium paid by the refiree. The amount required to fund the implicit rate is based on projected pay-as-
you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2011, the City contributed 70% of premiums of 8 retirees and
0% of premiums of 4 retirees to the plan. Plan members receiving benefits contributed $71,712, or
approximately 50 percent of the total premiums, through their required contribution of $636 per month for
retiree-only coverage and $1,502 for retiree and spouse medical coverage, these amounts include dental and
vision coverage.
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3. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

B.

Other Post-Employment Benefits {Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. GASB 45
requires entities with over 200 employees to have the actuarial valuation performed biennially. The following
table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost the amount actually contributed ta the plan, and
changes in the City's net OPER obligation for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Current Service Cost ($1,560,603) + Amortization Amount ($842,919) = Tofal Confribution
($2,403,522). OPEB obligation for retired employees as determined by Actuarial is $118,856.

Actuaria! valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of cccurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results
are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress presents muitiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial
Actuarial Asset Accrued Unfunded
Valuation Value of Valuation Liability AAL Funded
Date Assets Basis {AAL)* (UAAL) Ratio
8/30/2011 § - Actuarial $ 13,257,820 $ 13257820 0.0%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between
the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
technigues that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. In June 30, 2011
actuarial valuation, since the City does not pre-fund the refiree healthcare benefits, a discount rate 5.25% was
used. There were no assets to determine actuarial value of assets. The UAAL is being amortized over 30
years as level payments. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2011 was twenty-eight years.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; employee heaith benefits; unemployment; and natural disasters. The
City has established a self insurance fund to cover deductibles on claims related to destruction, theft or damage
of assets. Losses related to other risks or those exceeding deductibles are covered by commercial insurance.
Management believes that such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the City.
Settled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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CITY OF YUKON
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

3. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

C.

Risk Management (Continued)

The City is a member of the Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group Workers' Compensation Plan (the Plan),
an organization formed for the purpose of providing workers' compensation coverage through the State
Insurance Fund to participating municipalities in the State of Oklahoma. In that capacity, the Plan is
responsible for providing loss control services and cerain fiscal activities, including obtaining contract
arrangements for the underwriting, excess insurance agreements, claims processing, and legal defense for all
claims submitted to it during the plan year.

As a member of the Plan, the City is required to pay fees set by the Plan according to an established payment
schedule. A Loss Fund has been established from the proceeds of these fees for each participant in the Plan.
The State Insurance Fund provides coverage in excess of the Loss Fund so the City's liability for claim loss is
limited to the balance of that fund.

In addition to the Loss Fund, the City maintains two additional funds with the Plan. The Rate Stabilization
Reserve (RSR), which can be applied against future premium increases and an Escrow Fund made up of
past refunds left on deposit with the Plan. Escrow funds earn interest and are readily available for use by the
govermning board. In accordance with GASB No. 10, the City reports the required contribution to the pool, net
of refunds, as insurance expense. The balances in the RSR Fund and the Escrow Fund were $43,244 and
$26,674, respectively.

Commitments and Contingencies

The City in the past has participated in various grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and
compliance audits by the grantor or its representative. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to
the grantor agency.

The City has certain commitments for operating leases. These leases are of immaterial amounts and are for
only one~year intervals.

The City is a defendant in legal actions arising from normal governmental activities. Most of these actions are
covered by insurance. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, management
believes that the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition
of the City.

4. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 10, 2011, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued and has determined that no additiona! information needs to be added to
the financial statements.
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CITY OF YUKON, OKLAHOMA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INF ORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED
Variance with
Actual Adjustments Actual Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts GAAP Budget Budget Positive
Original Final Basis Basis Basis (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes 10,412,006 10,412,096 $ 18397878 (8,339,024} 10,058,854 § (353.242)
Charges for services 78,611 78,611 106,145 106,145 27,534
Fines and forfeitures 769,634 769,634 719,812 (3,572) 716,240 (53,394)
Licenses and permits 339,344 339,544 234,931 234,931 (104,613)
Investment income 6,712 6,712 56,128 (5,420) 50,708 43,996
Miscellaneous 393,298 393298 455,045 964 456,009 62,711
Total revenues 11,999,895 11,999,895 19.969.939 11,622,887 (377,008)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Legislative
Persomal services 18,000 18,036 7459 7459 10,577
Materials and supplies 33,750 33,714 22,965 22,965 10,749
Other charges and services 1,153,690 897,896 421,476 35248 456,724 441,172
Finance
Personal services 300,913 320,855 333,818 (893) 332,925 (12,070}
Materials and supplies 1,400 1,400 1,139 1,139 261
Other charges and services 2,300 2,483 2,521 2,521 (38)
Engineering
Personal services B - - - -
Materials and supplies - - - - -
Other charges and services 105,000 87,600 69,694 7,927 77,621 9,979
Administration
Personal services 449,548 620,310 627,036 (1,738) 625,298 (4,988)
Materials and supplies 3,250 1,268 3,998 5,998 {4,733)
Other charges and services 9291 5,487 4,937 4,937 550
Building Maintenance
Personal services 312,391 308,459 318461 (1,136} 317,325 (8,866)
Materials and supplies 19,300 18,466 21,292 (2,025) 19,267 (801)
Other charges and services 556,590 567,526 571,310 (4,296) 567,014 512
Equipment Maintenance
Personal services 485,118 463,201 487,100 (9,380) 477,720 (14,429)
Materials and supplies 191,976 229,125 223,779 6,742 230,521 (1,396)
Other charges and services 157,654 170,209 134,568 5,269 139,837 30,372
Human Resources
Personal services 257,134 285,654 280,962 (1,236) 279,726 5,928
Materials and supplies 4,100 2,387 2,397 - 2,397 -
Other charges and services 33,500 24,083 36,439 144 36,583 (12,500)
Insurance
Personal services ' 2,256,525 2,178,570 2,032,787 {72,616} 1,960,171 218,399
Materials and supplies - - - - -
Other charges and services 10,000 10,000 - - 10,000
Technology
Personal services 148,997 147,513 157,815 (9,609 148,206 (693)
Materials and supplies 48,390 48,390 29,434 29,434 18,956
Other charges and services 454,084 454,084 510,128 1,589 stLn7 (57,633)
Emergency Mgmt.
Personal services 166,416 166,416 158,372 (445) 157,927 (10,414)
Materials and supplies 1,725 1,728 857 857 47,533
Other charges and services 11,739 11,739 434,992 434,992 19,092
Public safety
Fire
Personal services 2,612,964 2,612,964 2,695,725 (4,670) 2,691,055 (78,091)
Materials and supplies 52,300 52,300 52,138 52,138 162
Other charges and services 74,210 74,210 49,596 1,404 51,000 23,210
Municipal court
Personal services 147,774 147,774 143,724 (384) 143,340 4,434
Materials and supplies 1,025 1,025 893 893 132
Other charges and services 83,315 83,315 58,822 1,232 60,054 23,261
Police
Personal services 3,879,632 3,966,548 4,088,956 (14,321) 4,074,635 (108,087)
Materials and supplies 49,300 33,929 52,644 297y 52,347 (18,418)
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CITY OF YUKON, OKLAHOMA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED
Variance with
Actual Adjustments Actual Final Budget
Budgeted Amournts GAAP Budget Budget Positive
Original Final Basis Basis Basis {Negative)
Qther charges and services 105,175 93,268 93,948 13,462 107,410 (14,142)
Animnal control
Personal services 115,767 115,767 116,037 (605} 115,432 338
Materials and supplies 1,770 1,770 1,751 1,751 19
Other charges and services 21,708 21,708 17,409 17,409 4,299
Public services
Planning
Personal services 441,297 441,297 445,042 (1,533) 443,509 (2.212)
Materials and supplies 3,158 3,155 2,176 2,176 979
Other charges and services 14,308 14,305 12,838 12,838 1,467
Street and Alley
Personal services 658,696 618,493 636,798 4,708 641,503 (23010)
Materials and supplies 13,800 13,611 15414 - 15,414 {1,803}
Other charges and services 93477 210,209 106,355 4,813 111,168 99,041
Cultural and recreation
Park Maintenance
Personal services 471,790 527,726 548,557 (3,680) 544,877 (17,151)
Materials and supplies 13,680 11,192 12,289 - 12,289 (1,097}
Other charges and services 30,925 23,057 21,598 21,598 1,459
Library
Personal services 306,668 305,480 302,989 (2,208} 300,784 4,696
Materials and supplies 4,100 4,100 3,858 3,858 242
Other charges and services 11,570 12,758 32,795 32,795 (20,037}
Recreation
Personal services 775498 739,949 766,455 4,396 770,851 (30,902)
Materials and supplies 20,866 18,578 19,803 19,803 (1,225
Other charges and services 170,264 156,060 149,227 - 149,227 6,833
Swimming Pool
Personal services 89,375 54,834 64,653 (315) 64,338 (9,504
Materials and supplies 14,283 15,048 16,597 (1,850) 14,747 301
Other charges and services 5,570 5,570 4,295 (1,328) 2,967 2,603
Robertson Activity Center
Personal services 117,644 133,620 140,558 (1,094) 139,464 (5,844)
Materials and supplies 23,811 21,816 20,046 20,046 1,770
Other charges and services 2,285 2,265 2,235 2,238 30
Debt service 196,077 196,077 196,076 196,076 1
Capital outlay 103,551 109,937 221,759 221,759 (111,822)
Total expenditures 17,920,408 17,920,408 18,011,792 (48.725) 17,963,067 427,448
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (5,920,513) (5,920,513) 1,958,147 48,725 (6,340,180) 50,440
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 5,866,637 5,866,637 5819,179 (4,329} 5,814,850 51,787
Transfers out (85,124) (85,124) (8,132,488) 8,132,488 - (85,124)
Total other financing sources and uses 5,781,513 5,781,513 (2,313,309) 8,128,159 5,814,850 (33,337)
Net change in fund balances (139,000) (139,000) (355,162) 8,176,884 (525,330) 83,777
Fund balances, July 1,2010 8,931,107 8,931,107 8,931,107 (8,176,884) 8,931,107
Fund balances, June 30, 2011 $ 8792107 § 8,792,107 S 8575945 $ - $ 8405777 8 8377
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CITY OF YUKON
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2011
(UNAUDITED)

Budget Law

The City prepares its annual operating budget under Titles 11 of the Oklahoma Statutes. Under the provisions of
these statutes, the City uses the following process when adopting their budget:

¢ Prior to June 1, the Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing the following July 1.

+ Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments. At least one public hearing must be held no later
than 15 days prior to July 1.

+ Subsequent to the public hearings but no later than seven days prior to July 1, the budget is adopted by
resolution of the City Council.

» The adopted budget is filed with the Office of State Auditor and Inspector.

The legal level of control at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is object category level by
department within a fund. The Budget Act recegnizes the following objects categories as the minimum legal level of
control by department within a fund:

Personal services
Materials and supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay

Debt service

Interfund transfers

. 5 o s

All transfers of appropriations between departments and supplemental appropriations require City Council approval.
The Major may transfer appropriations between object categories within a department without City Council approval.
Supplemental appropriations must also be filed with the Office of State Auditor and Inspector.

Basis of Accounting

The budget is prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting. Revenues and expenditures are reported when
they result from cash transactions except for certain expenditures, which are recorded when a commitment to
purchase goods or services is made {encumbered).
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CITY OF YUKCN

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Yukon Community Total
Debt Special Community  Development  Non-major
Service Revenue Support Block Grant Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 908,381 § 545685 $ 478434 § (134,432) $ 1,798,068
Due from other funds - - - - -
Taxes receivable 12,566 12,566
Grants recsivable - - - 228,559 228,558
Total assets $ 921947 § 545685 $ 478434 § 94127 $ 2,040,193
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ 4998 % - $ 11,607 % 16,608
Due to other funds - - - - -
Total liabilities - 4,999 - 11,607 16,606
Fund balances:
Restricted for:
Bond retirement 921,847 - - - 921,947
Community support 478,434 - 478,434
Community development grant “ - - 82,520 82,520
Unassigned, reported in:
Special revenue funds - 540,686 - - 540,686
Total fund balances 921,947 540,886 478,434 82,520 2,023,587

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 921,047 $ 545685 § 478434 § 94,127 § 2,040,183
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CITY OF YUKON

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Yukon Community Total
Debt Special Community Development Non-major
Service Revenue Support Block Grant Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $§ 1076033 3 - $ - $ - $ 1,076,033
Intergovernmental - 450,558 - - 450,558
Investment income 8,108 9 2,085 - 10,213
Grant revenue - - - 14,340 14,340
Miscelianeous - - 248 247 - 248,247
Total revenues 1,084,142 450,567 250,342 14,340 1,799,391
Expenditures:
Public Safety:

Police - 60,184 - - 60,184
Public Services - 205,323 - - 205,323
Cuitural and Recreation - 108,408 232,021 - 341,429
Capital Outlay - 234,080 - 95,019 328,099
Debt Service:

Interest and other charges 1,082,228 - - - 1,082,228

Total Expenditures 1,082,228 608,995 232,021 95,019 2,018,263
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 1,914 {158,428) 18,321 (80,679} (218,872)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 197,723 - 187,723
Transfers out - (24,209) - {4,329) (28,538)
Total other financing sources {uses, - 173,514 - (4,329) 169,185
Net change in fund balances 1.914 15,086 18,321 (85,008) (49,687)
Net assets - beginning of year 920,033 525,600 460,113 167,528 2,073,274
Fund balances - end of year $ 921947 $§ 540586 $ 478,434 82,520 $ 2,023,587
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CITY OF YUKON
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Municipal Total
Court Escrow Agency
Fund Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 95894 $ 319532 _§ 415426
Total assets 3 95894 $ 319532 $ 415426
Liabilities:
Escrow liability $ 95894 $ 319532 $ 415428
Total liabilities $ 95894 $ 319532 § 415426




CITY OF YUKON
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Federal Program Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA or Award Revenue Expend-
Grantor/Program Title Number Amount Collected itures
U.8. Department of Justice:
Office of Justice Grants 16.804 32,894 20,680 20,680

State Library Program 45.310 19,700 17,730 19,700

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Passed through the Oklahoma Department of Emergency Management:

SLA grant 63.552 4,000 4,000 4,000

FEMA - Hazard Mitigation 97.042 42,000 31,500 31,500

FEMA - EMPG 97.042 10,000 5,000 7,500

Sub-total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 56,000 40,500 43,000

Total of Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 108,594 % 78910 $ 83,380
RIS SRS —— pee—————————

Note A - This schedule was prepared on an accrual (GAAP) basis of accounting consistent with the preparation of the basic
financial statements.
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" REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND.ON :
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL'

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
' GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS -

November 10, 2011

$

Honorable. Béérd aof City C:omfnis'sioners
City of Yukon L
« quo_n. C_)’klahoma . i

We have éudited,ﬂug accompanying financial statements of the governmental-activities, bugiriess-type activities, each
. mgjor furd, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Yukon, Oklahoma, (Cly) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated Noverber 10, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of ‘America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing .

-Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting : L o Co
‘In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing ourauditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion an the basic financlal statements, but not

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financiaf reporting.
Accordingly, we do hot express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in intemal control exists whenthe design or operation of a control does not ‘allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their -assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct .
misstatements on a timely basis. A maferial weakness is a deficlency, ora combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will -
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. ' . _ '

Our gonsideration of internat controf over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to ideritify all deficiencles in'intemnal ‘control over financial reporting that mightbe
deficiencies, significant deficienties, or material weaknessés. We did not identify any deficieéncies in infernal control
over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certain -
deficiencies in internal -control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings.and-
. responses. that we consider to be- significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting. The finding
- reference nurhbers are 11-1. A significant deficiency Is'a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencles, in internal -
. .control that Is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
gov‘emance' } . . . 4 ) . . R ‘ . . . .

N €
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. Clty of Yukon
November 10, 2011

. Compliance and Other Matters .

As part of 'ot‘:tain}ng reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with cértain provisions of laws, regulaticns, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with thase provisions was not an objective of our

audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opiniori. The resulits of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. -

"The City’s response to the findings idenfified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and

. responses. We did not audit the City's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

~ We also noted certain additional matters that we have repcrtéd to management of 'the City in a separate letter dated
November 10, 201 1. - ' . i o n ’ o

" This report is intended solely forthe information and use of management, alt applicabléfederal and state agerncies,
and those other Governments from which federal financial assistance was received and is.not intended to be and
_should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. ' LT :

% Q‘OQ s%rék& 6(6}&«(.}1-1..?

'CBEW Professional Group, LLP
Certified. Public. Accountants .
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ARVEST -
BANK

September 14, 2012

Yukon Municipal Authority
Grayson Bottom, City Manager
City of Yukon

Re: Equipment Guidance Line
Dear Mr. Bottom:

Thank you for providing Arvest Bank (“Bank”) the opportunity to proposed financing option for the
purchase of equipment and vehicles for the City of Yukon. We appreciate this occasion to serve you and
hope that you find that our proposal meets your needs. While the note, security agreement and loan
agreement might contain additional terms and conditions, I bave included the necessary information to help
you meke your decigion.

Borrower: Yukon Municipal Authority

Purpose: To purchase emergency vehicles, specialty equipment and other city vehicles for
the City of Yukon

Guarantor: N/A

Collateral: First security interest on vehick and equipment purchases. The maximum loan
to cost is equal to an amount up to 90% of cost for new equipment purchases.

Amount: Maximum Guidance Line commitment of $1,500,000.00

Term: Guidance Line = 4 years
Guidance Line traunches ~ 4 years

Amortization: Each traunch will be amortized over a term of up to 48 months.

Rate: Tax exempt rate determined as follows;
30-Day LIBOR ’ 4

Rate Adjustment: During the duration of the Guidance Line, each traunch will be priced by using
the current 30-Day LIBOR rate in effect at the time of issuing the traunch,
utilizing the above rate formula.

Payments: Monthly principal & interest payments adequate to fully amortize each traunch.

Fees: $250.00 documentation fee per traunch. Additionally, Borrower will reimburse
Bank for all out-of-pocket expenses including but not limited to filing fees,
closing costs, attorney fees (if applicable) and any other third-party expenses
associated with closing the subject loan.

Penalties: N/A

arvest.com

@
Sarnbes FOIC o



Page -2
Yukon Municipal Authority (continued)

LOAN AGREEMENT TERMS, COVENANTS & CONDITIONS:

1. Annual audited financial statements for City of Yukon due within 120 days of year-end;
Receipt of the City of Yukon’s Attorney’s Opinion Letter referencing that the Guidance Line
financing arrangement is Bank Qualified and Tax Exempt;

3. Receipt of the minutes reflecting the name change from Yukon Utilities Authority to the Yukon
Municipal Authority;

4. Verification of the appropriation of the loan payments in the City of Yukon’s annual budget for the
subsequent years;

5. Traunches are limited to 90% of the purchase price of the equipment;

6. At no time can the aggregate amount of the principal balances of all the outstanding traunches exceed
the Guidance Line commitment amount of $1,500,000.00;

7. Purchase order/receipt of invoices required for each piece of equipment or vehicle purchased.

This proposal letter supersedes all prior written or oral understandings or agreements between Borrower
and Bank with respect to the matters addressed in the Loan Documents. The terms of this proposa letter
are valid providing that, in the Bank’s opinion, there are no adverse material changes to the financial
condition of the City of Yukon and/or the Yukon Municipal Authority prior to closing.

The terms of the subject proposal will expire if they are not accepted om or before September 30,
2012,

Thank you again for providing Arvest Bank an opportunity to serve you. If you have any questions or wish
to discuss these terms in greater detail, please call me at 419.3380.

Sincerely,

Fr P>

Keith T. Kersten
Sr. Vice President / Division Manager

On behalf of the Yukon Municipal Authority, I accept the above mentioned terms and conditions.

Grayson Bottom, City Manager Date
City of Yukon



RESOLUTION NO. YMA-2012-05

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF THE YUKON
MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY 2012 REVENUE NOTE (THE “REVENUE
NOTE”), IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED
$2,000,000; WAIVING COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND AUTHORIZING SAID
REVENUE NOTE TO BE SOLD AT A PRICE LESS THAN PAR VALUE BY
NEGOTIATED SALE WITHIN THE LIMITS PROVIDED BY TITLE 60,
OKLAHOMA  STATUTES, SECTION 176; AUTHORIZING AND
APPROVING DOCUMENTS, PROCEDURES AND PAYMENTS RELATED
TO ISSUANCE OF THE REVENUE NOTE; DESIGNATING THE REVENUE
NOTE AS “QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS” AS CONTAINED IN
THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986; PROVIDING THAT THE
TRUST INDENTURE SHALL BE SUBJECT TO PROVISIONS OF THE
REVENUE NOTE; RATIFYING A LEASE AGREEMENT AND OPERATION
AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF YUKON AND
THE YUKON MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY AND AGREEING THAT THE

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRUSTEES OF THE YUKON MUNICIPAL
AUTHORITY:

Section 1. Authorization of Issuance of Revenue Note. The Yukon Municipal
Authority (the “Authority”), a public trust organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Oklahoma, the beneficiary of which is the City of Yukon, Oklahoma (the “City”), hereby
authorizes the issuance of its obligation designated:

Yukon Municipal Authority 2012 Revenue Note in an aggregate principal
amount not to exceed $2,000,000 (the “Revenue Note™),

for the purposes of providing capital improvements and equipment for the use and benefit of the
City and the payment of associated indebtedness, the payment of financing costs and for
expenses of issuing the Revenue Note.

Section 2. Waiver of Competitive Bidding on Sale of the Revenue Note. Competitive
bidding on the sale of the Revenue Note is hereby waived and the same is authorized to be sold at
a price less than par value by negotiated sale, pursuant to the terms of the Revenue Note, all
within the limits provided by Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 201 1, Section 176, as amended.

Section 3. Approval of Documents. The following documents are hereby authorized
and approved and the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Authority is hereby authorized and
directed to execute and deliver the same on behalf of the Authority, and such documents shall be
conclusively deemed approved by the Authority upon such execution and delivery, to-wit:

1

10.12.12-3.1
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(A)  Revenue Note, issued by the Authority, in favor of YNB, a bank chartered under
the laws of the State of Oklahoma, or its successors (the “Bank”), in a principal amount
not to exceed $2,000,000, together with interest thereon at a fixed rate per annum not to
exceed the maximum rate prescribed by Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 201 1, Section 176,
as amended, all according to the terms and conditions expressed therein, and a real estate
mortgage(s) covering such property as designated by the Chairman or Vice Chairman in
favor of the Bank securing the Revenue Note.

(B)  Security Agreement between the Authority and the Bank (herein the “Security
Agreement”), providing security for the obligation of the Authority under the Revenue
Note, all according to the terms and conditions expressed in said Security Agreement; and
such other security instruments as necessary to secure the revenue Note, including but not
limited to the granting and extension of real estate mortgages.

(C)  Sales Tax Agreement with the City (the “Sales Tax Agreement”) whereby the City
pledges funds of the City to the Authority for repayment of the Revenue Note, provided
such Sales Tax Agreement shall comply in all respects with applicable Oklahoma law,
including Oklahoma law which provides that the City may not become obligated beyond
its fiscal year (July 1 through June 30), and providing that all payments of funds of the
City to the Authority for payment of the Revenue Note shall be subject to annual
appropriation by the City.

(D)  Financing Statement wherein the Authority is the debtor and the Bank is the
secured party, all according to the terms and conditions expressed in said Financing
Statement.

(E)  Preliminary Offering Document and Final Offering Document describing the
terms, conditions and security for payment of the Revenue Note. The Authority certifies
that the information contained in the Preliminary Offering Document and the Final
Offering Document will at the time of finalization and delivery of same be correct in all
material respects, and will not omit to state any material fact necessary to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not
misleading; and, in furtherance thereof, the Chairman (or the Vice Chairman in the
absence of the Chairman) is authorized to certify the foregoing and to “deem final” the
Preliminary Offering Document and Final Offering Document for purposes of Rule 15¢2-
12 as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission of the United States of
America. Bond Counsel is authorized to execute and file the Preliminary Offering
Document and the Final Offering Document.

(F)  The Closing Order, which shall direct disbursement of proceeds received from the
sale of the Revenue Note and which shall further authorize and direct the payment of the
cost of issuance of the Revenue Note.

(G) Any and all other documents and certifications as necessary to consummate
issuance of the Revenue Note, including as necessary a Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, and contracts for professional and other services incident to issuance of the
Revenue Note.
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Section 4. Reasonable Expectations with Respect to Issuance of Tax-Exempt
Obligations and Designation of Revenue Note as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. The
Authority reasonably anticipates that the aggregate amount of “qualified tax-exempt obligations”
(as defined in section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code™)), which will be issued by the Authority, the City of Yukon (the “City”) and all
subordinate entities thereof during calendar year 2012 will not exceed $10,000,000, and hereby
covenants and agrees, as a material inducement and consideration to the purchasers of its
Revenue Note, that neither the Authority, the City or any subordinate entity thereof will, during
calendar year 2012, issue “qualified tax-exempt obligations” (as defined in Section 265(b)(3)(B)
of the Code), in an aggregate amount exceeding $10,000,000. Further, it is the purpose and intent
of this Resolution that the Revenue Note shall constitute and is hereby designated as “qualified
tax-exempt obligations” as defined in Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code, in order that the
purchasers of the Revenue Note may avail themselves of the exception contained in said Section
265(b)(3)(B) of the Code with respect to interest incurred to carry tax-exempt bonds. The
Authority hereby covenants and agrees that it will not designate as “qualified tax-exempt
obligations” more than $10,000,000 in aggregate amount of obligations issued by the Authority,
the City or any subordinate entity thereof during calendar year 2012. Notwithstanding other
provisions of this section, the Authority and other related entities may issue obligations, provided
that the issuance of such obligations do not disqualify the Revenue Note as “qualified tax-exempt
obligations” as defined by Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code. The Authority hereby covenants and
agrees with the purchasers of the Revenue Note to take such further actions and execute such
documents and instruments as may be necessary or proper to carry out the intent of this
Resolution, and/or as may be in furtherance of the issuance of the Revenue Note, and the
Chairman (or Vice Chairman in the absence of the Chairman) is hereby authorized, empowered
and directed to take such actions and execute such documents as may be deemed necessary or
proper from time to time.

Section 5. Trust Indenture Subject to Revenue Note. The Trust Indenture dated as of
June 20, 1972, as amended, creating the Authority is subject to the provisions of the Revenue
Note.

Section 6. Ratification of Lease. The Authority hereby ratifies and confirms the Lease
Agreement and Operation and Maintenance Contract by and between the City of Yukon,
Oklahoma, and the Authority dated the 3rd day of October 1972, as amended, (the “Lease™)
pertaining to the lease by the City to the Authority of its existing and after acquired water and
sanitary sewer systems in order to enable the Authority to secure any obligations issued by the
Authority by a pledge of its leasehold interest in such system, together with a pledge of revenues
and proceeds derived from the operation thereof; and, it is agreed that the term of the Lease shall
extend so long as the Revenue Note remains outstanding and unpaid.

Section 7. Finalization, Execution and Delivery of Documents Necessary for Issuance
of the Revenue Note. The Chairman (or the Vice Chairman in the absence of the Chairman), is
authorized and directed (i) to execute and deliver the Revenue Note to the Bank upon receipt of
the purchase price therefor and to determine the final rate of interest applicable to the Revenue
Note; (ii) to direct disbursement of the proceeds received from the Revenue Note, to include but
not be limited to the payment of costs and expenses of issuance of the Revenue Note as set out in
the Closing Order; and (iii) to finalize, modify, create, execute, record and file and deliver on
behalf of the Authority all bond, securities, tax, security and related documents and certifications
necessary to consummate issuance of the Revenue Note, and further to modify dates with respect
to the Revenue Note and other instruments and to modify the name of the Revenue Note; and, the
Secretary (or the Assistant Secretary in the absence of the Secretary) is authorized and directed to

3
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provide all attestations and certifications necessary to consummate issuance of the Revenue
Note; and, upon execution and delivery of all documents provided for or contemplated by this
Resolution, the same shall be conclusively deemed authorized and approved by the Authority.

PASSED AND APPROVED the 16™ day of October 2012.

TRUSTEES OF THE YUKON
MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
Chairman
ATTEST:
Secretary
(SEAL)
4
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STATE OF OKLAHOMA )
) SS:
COUNTY OF CANADIAN )

[, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Yukon Municipal
Authority, hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true, correct and complete copy of the
Resolution duly adopted by the Trustees of said Authority and of the proceedings of the
Authority in the adoption of said Resolution on the date therein set out as shown by the records
of my office.

[ further certify that in conformity with Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes 2011, Section 301-
314, inclusive, as amended (the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act), and in conformity with Title 60
Oklahoma Statutes 2011, Section 176, et seq. (the Oklahoma Public Trust Act), notice of this
meeting was given in conformity with the requirements of law.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Authority this 16th day of October 2012.

(SEAL)

Secretary

10.12.12-3.1



Yukon City Council Minutes
October 2, 2012

The Yukon City Council met in regular session October 2, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council
Chambers of the Centennial Building, 12 South Fifth Street, Yukon, Okiahoma.

The invocation was given by Pastor Bob Younts of First United Methodist Church.
The flag salute was given in unison.

ROLL CALL: (Present)  John Alberts, Chairman
Michael McEachern, Trustee
Nick Grba, Trustee
Rick Opitz, Trustee

(Absent) Ken Smith, Vice-Chairman

OTHERS PRESENT:

Mike Segler, City Attorney Doug Shivers, City Clerk

Tammy Kretchmar DeSpain, Asst. City Mgr  Kevin Jones, Fire Chief

John Corn, Chief of Police Robbie Williams, City Engineer

Arnold Adams, Public Works Director Jan Scoft, Park and Recreation Director

Josh Gotcher, Information Technology Jerome Brown, Information Technology

Bill Stover, Sanitation Mitch Hort, Community Development Director

Jeff Deckard, Parks Superintendent

Presentations and Proclamations

Mayor Alberts read a Proclamation acknowledging “Fire Prevention Week” and presented it
to Fire Chief Kevin Jones and fellow firemen, C. McDoulett, J. Graham, and T. Loveless.
Kevin Jones asked that we focus on fire prevention and have an escape plan.

Mayor Alberts presented a new award to recognize people who do things in our community.
This person makes Yukon a better place for you and me. The new award is called, Yukon’s
Best Citizenship Award. The first person to receive this award is Mr. Bob Wheeler. He has
taken the time to water trees, clean the pond, care for the geese and many other things to
make Yukon a better place. He is a leader and a fine example of a great neighbor and citizen
of Yukon. Mr. Wheeler said when you do something good others will too.

Visitors

There were no visitors.

(Recess as Yukon City Council and Reconvene as Yukon Municipal Authority)

1A. YMA Consent Docket

This item is placed on the agenda so the Yukon Municipal Authority, by unanimous consent,
can designate those routine items they wish to be approved by one motion. If an item does
not meet with the approval of all Authority Members, that item will be heard in regular order.

The City Manager recommends a motion to approve:
A) The minutes of the regular meeting of September 18, 2012
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The motion to approve the YMA Consent Docket, consisting of the approval of the minutes of
the regular meeting September 18, 2012, was made by Trustee Grba and seconded by
Trustee Opitz.

The vote:

AYES: Opitz, McEachern, Grba, Alberts
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

s

2A. Consider approving an expenditure of funds in the amount of $42,957.00, for a
Vaughn Chopper pump, from the Capital Improvement Fund, as recommended by
the Public Works Director.,

The motion to approve an expenditure of funds in the amount of $42,957.00, for a Vaughn
Chopper pump, from the Capital Improvement Fund, as recommended by the Public Works
Director, was made by Trustee McEachern and seconded by Trustee Opitz.

Trustee Opitz wanted to know if the old pump could be rebuilt for the next time it was to go
down. Arnold Adams, Public Works Director, stated the new pump is a different style of
pump. The current pump has been rebuilt three times in the past two years and to replace it
would cost $86,000. Trustee Opitz wanted to know if the new chopper pump could be rebuilt.
Mr. Adams stated, yes.

Mr. Bottom asked Mr. Adams to explain the reason behind going to a chopper pump. Mr.
Adams said that carpet and lumber is making its way into the sewer system. As of right now,
employees have to go down 15 feet in a hole, remove a plate and stick their hand in the pipe
to remove the trash. By going to the chopper pump, it will actually chop these items up and
allow the sewer system to keep flowing.

Trustee Grba questioned the life cycle of the chopper pump. Mr. Adams stated 20 years. -
Mayor Alberts wanted to know what the pump looked like. The old pump is water sealed and
the new pump is oil-sealed. Mayor Alberts wanted to know, if the new pump would shut its
self off. Mr. Adams said it will shut itself down, so it won’t burn up. The old pump did not
have that feature.
Trustee McEachern questioned the warranty of the chopper pump. Mr. Adams stated it has
one year of full replacement and pro-rated after that. Trustee McEachern wanted to know
about an extended warranty. Mr. Bottom said it is cheaper to repair because of pro-rated
warranty versus buying the extended warranty.
The vote:
AYES: Grba, Opitz, Alberts, McEachern
NAYS: None
VOTE: 4-0
MOTION CARRIED
(Adjourn as YMA and Reconvene as Yukon City Council)
1. Consent Docket conss

This item is placed on the agenda so the City Council, by unanimous consent, can designate
those routine items they wish to be approved by one motion. If an item does not meet with
the approval of all Council Members, that item will be heard in regular order.

The City Manager recommends a motion that will approve:
A) The minutes of the regular meeting of September 18, 2012
B) Payment of material claims in the amount of $551,840.50
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C) Designating the items on the attached list from the Technology Department as
surplus, and authorizing their sale, donation, or trade

D) Setting the date for the next regular Council meeting for October 16, 2012,
7:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers of the Centennial Building, 12 S. Fifth St.

The motion to approve the Consent Docket, consisting of the approval of the minutes of the
regular meeting of September 18, 2012; Payment of material claims in the amount of
$551,840.50; Designating the items on the attached list from the Technology Department as
surplus, and authorizing their sale, donation, or trade; Setting the date for the next regular
Council meeting for October 16, 2012, 7:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers of the Centennial
Building, 12 S. Fifth St.; was made by Council Member Opitz and seconded by Council
Member Grba.

The vote:

AYES: Alberts, Grba, McEachern, Opitz
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

2. Reports of Boards, Commissions and City Officials - Planning Commission, Larry
Taylor

Mr. Taylor named the members of the Planning Commission. He also referred to Mr.
McEachern as a previous member with Mr. Davis being appointed to his position, once he
became a Council Member. Mr. Taylor reviewed the duties of the Planning Commission,
agendas from last year and his history on the Board of Adjustments and Planning
Commission.

Council Member Opitz commended Mr. Taylor for the job he does and for serving this city.

Council Member McEachern repeated Mr. Opitz feelings. He served with Larry and things
are no longer pushed through.

Mr. Taylor stated his job is to do the background work, so the Council Members could make
an informed decision.

Mayor Alberts thanked Mr. Taylor for his support and information.

3. Consider approving an expenditure of funds in the amount of $25,379.66, for the
purchase of two Bobcat Utility Vehicles, from the Capital Improvement Fund, to be
reimbursed from the Master Lease Purchase, as recommended by the Parks and
Recreation Director.

The motion to approve an expenditure of funds in the amount of $25,379.66, for the purchase
of two Bobcat Utility Vehicles, from the Capital Improvement Fund, to be reimbursed from the
Master Lease Purchase, as recommended by the Parks and Recreation Director, was made
by Councit Member Opitz and seconded by Council Member McEachern.

Council Member Opitz wanted to know, if the vehicles could be legally driven on the road or
do they have to be hauled? Mr. Bottom stated they are road worthy, but have turf tires. Mr.
Opitz wanted to know, if there was a warranty? Mr. Bottom stated, yes.

Mayor Alberts would like the reimbursement explained. Mr. Bottom stated the Master Lease
Purchase was to even out the cash flow. We know every month the amount that will be
spent,

Councii Member McEachern would like more explanation. Council Member Grba said we are
actually paying ourselves back from the Master Lease Purchase into the Capital
Improvement Fund.
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The vote:

AYES: McEachern, Alberts, Opitz, Grba
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

4. Consider approving an expenditure of funds, not to exceed $42,500, for remodel
work at Station #2, from the Capital Improvement Fund, as recommended by the
Fire Chief.

-

The motion to approve an expenditure of funds, not to exceed $42,500, for remodel work at
Station #2, from the Capital Improvement Fund, as recommended by the Fire Chief, was
made by Council Member McEachern and seconded by Council Member Grba.

The vote:

AYES: McEachern, Grba, Alberts, Opitz
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

5. Consider approving an expenditure of funds in the amount of $63,800, for
restriping of the following streets, (1) Vandament - Holly to London, (2) N.W. 10" -
Shedeck to Vickery, (3) Cornwell - E. Mesa Verde to 1-40 Bridge Deck, (4) Cornwell
-Bass to Janice, (5) Garth Brooks - Main St. north to Railroad Tracks, from the
Capital Improvement Fund, as recommended by the Public Works Director.

The motion to approve an expenditure of funds in the amount of $63,800, for restriping of the = ==
following streets, (1) Vandament - Holly to London, (2) N.W. 10" -Shedeck to Vickery, (3)

Cornwell - E. Mesa Verde to I-40 Bridge Deck, (4) Cornwell -Bass to Janice, (5) Garth Brooks

- Main St. north to Railroad Tracks, from the Capital Improvement Fund, as recommended by

the Public Works Director, was made by Council Member Grba and seconded by Council

Member Opitz. 8

The vote:

AYES: Grba, Opitz, Alberts, McEachern
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

6. Consider approving an expenditure of funds not to exceed $60,000, for an
emergency repair to the bridge located 1/8 mile North of Wagner Rd. on Yukon
Parkway, from the Capital Improvement Fund.

The motion to approve an expenditure of funds not to exceed $60,000, for an emergency
repair to the bridge located 1/8 mile North of Wagner Rd. on Yukon Parkway, from the Capital
Improvement Fund, amended to include declaration of emergency, was made by Council
Member McEachern and seconded by Council Member Opitz.

s

Mr. Bottom stated the bridge is failing.

Council Member Opitz noted the road is a Dead End road. Mr. Opitz would like to see, if a
large tinhorn can be used. Wagner is well traveled and tinhorns are in place. This segment
of road dead ends to 12-15 homes and is less traveled than Wagner road. The cost, by using
tinhorns could be cut in half. Mr. Bottom said to make it a not to exceed number, if worried
about cost. Mr. Opitz does agree the bridge needs fixed right away, but should look at a
different way to fix it.

Council Member Grba agrees it needs repaired, but would like the city to explore other ways
to fix it.
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Mr. Bottom stated part of the cost is making a temporary road. It is the only way in and out of
this area. Arnold Adams stated the cost of the temporary road is $13,000.

City Engineer Robbie Williams said the 6X3 reinforced concrete box will last 50-100 years,
whereas the tinhorn will only last 10-20 vears.

Mr. Adams also stated the new bridge will be wide enough for two vehicles. Council Member
Grba wanted to know what it would be made of and if there would be any guard. rails? Mr.
Adams said it would be concrete with curbs on each side. Mr. Opitz was concerned that
Wagner Road, being more heavily traveled, with tinhorns in place, would not last as long.

Council Member McEachern stated all the area is in a flood plain. The bridge has to be
something substantial and it has to be fixed right. Wagner road will be a discussion later on,
it already has issues.

Mike Segler suggested amending the motion and including a declaration of emergency. He
stated that the emergency allows the City Manager to spend the funds not to exceed
$60,000, and allows for the bid to be unit-priced with Brewer Construction Company. Council
Member McEachern agreed to amend his motion as such.

Doug Shivers read ltem with amendment to include a declaration of emergency, and Council
Members voted as follows. Mr. Segler clarified that no separate vote for an emergency
clause was needed. The item as now stated gives the City Manager leeway to use the best
remedy to repair the bridge.

Mr. Opitz made a motion to approve the amendment, seconded by Mr. Grba.
A vote was taken for the amendment.

The vote:

AYES: Alberts, Opitz, McEachern, Grba
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

A vote was taken for the motion.

The vote:

AYES: Opitz, McEachern, Grba, Alberts
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

7. Consider approving Ordinance No. 1278, an Ordinance which provides
amendment to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Yukon, Oklahoma by
amending Section 98-11 by providing for future increases in fees for residential
removal and disposition of solid waste; and declaring an emergency.

The motion to approve Ordinance No. 1278, an Ordinance which provides amendment to the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Yukon, Oklahoma by amending Section 98-11 by providing
for future increases in fees for residential removal and disposition of solid waste; and
declaring an emergency, was made by Council Member Opitz and seconded by Council
Member Grba.

Council Member McEachern questioned the future increase in fees. Mr. Segler stated the
first increase will be in two weeks, at the first billing period after October 1, 2012, and the
ordinance allows for built in increases in the future.

Mayor Alberts would like to know why it is important to separate trash, water and sewer and
increase the rates. Mr. Bottom stated the sanitation rates were going up, so the City sent out
bids for sanitation operations. Upon reviewing the bids, it was realized the City running the
sanitation, would be cheaper. However, to recapitalize itself an operate as an enterprise
fund, the rate increase is needed.
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The water and sewer rate could be less for some residents. It depends on the amount of
water used as to whether or not you will see a rate increase. Sewer rates must equal 60% of
the water rates. Our sewer rates are at 30%, as of today. Over the years, we have had to
raise the water rates to cover the sewer rates. So, in order to increase the sewer rates, we
will need to unbuckle it from the water rate. By doing this, we do not have to raise the water
rates artificially high to cover the sewer. Secondly, sewer can stand on its own for
recapitalization. Ultimately sewer rates should be able to cover any improvements needed
for sewer plant projects.

Council Member McEachern stated we are dead center in rates among our surrounding
community. Mr. Bottom stated we are sensitive to rates in the surrounding community and
we will stay $1 below. We do not want to be considered the highest rate of utilities in the
surrounding community.

Mayor Alberts requested the comparable rate information be shared with the media. Mr.
Bottom stated he has already shared this information with the Yukon Review.

Council Member McEachern believes it is important for the city to understand the rates. The
community needs to know we are good caretakers of their money.

The vote:

AYES: Opitz, Grba, McEachern, Alberts
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

7A. Consider approving the Emergency Clause of Ordinance No. 1278,
The motion to approve the Emergency Clause of Ordinance No. 1278, was made by
Council Member Grba and seconded by Council Member McEachern.

The vote:

AYES: McEachern, Grba, Alberts, Opitz
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

8. Consider approving Ordinance No. 1279, an Ordinance which provides
amendment to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Yukon, Oklahoma by
amending Section 114-35 by providing future increase in fees for use and
maintenance of the Sanitary Sewer System; and declaring an emergency.

The motion to approve Ordinance No. 1279, an Ordinance which provides amendment to the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Yukon, Oklahoma by amending Section 114-35 by
providing future increase in fees for use and maintenance of the Sanitary Sewer System; and
declaring an emergency, was made by Council Member McEachern and seconded by
Council Member Opitz.

The vote: -
AYES: Opitz, Alberts, McEachern, Grba

NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

8A. Consider approving the Emergency Clause of Ordinance No. 1279.

The motion to approve the Emergency Clause of Ordinance No. 1279, was made by Council
Member Grba and seconded by Council Member Opitz.
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The vote:

AYES: Alberts, McEachern, Opitz, Grba
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

9. Consider approving Ordinance No. 1280, an Ordinance which provides
amendment to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Yukon, Oklahoma by
amending Section 114-34 by providing for future increases in fees for water
service; and declaring an emergency.

The motion to approve Ordinance No. 1280, an Ordinance which provides amendment to the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Yukon, Oklahoma by amending Section 114-34 by
providing for future increases in fees for water service; and declaring an emergency, was
made by Council Member Grba and seconded by Council Member McEacherm.

The vote:

AYES: Grba, Alberts, McEachern, Opitz
NAYS: None

VOTE: 40

MOTION CARRIED

9A. Consider approving the Emergency Clause of Ordinance No. 1280.

The motion to approve Consider approving the Emergency Clause of Ordinance No. 1280,
was made by Council Member Opitz and seconded by Council Member Grba.

The vote:

AYES: Alberts, Opitz, Grba, McEachern
NAYS: None

VOTE: 4-0

MOTION CARRIED

10. City Manager’s Report — Information items only
A. Events Report

Mr. Bottom stated that Saturday is Czech Festival. We have been getting ready all week
long. The weather forecast says it will cold, so dress accordingly.

Annually we give away 250 trees. These trees are made possible by Apache Oil and The
Tree Bank Foundation. You can receive two free trees per a person located at the City Park
football fields on October 12 from 5:30pm to 7:00pm.

Sounds of the Season is on Thursday, December 13. There will be more information at a
later time.

Christmas in the Park is ahead of schedule. Itis a big event and we host about 68,000 cars
and 250,000 people.

The City has been awarded a non-cash grant for our Community Development and Parks
and Recreation Department. This grant will be to design walking and biking paths throughout
the City of Yukon and will hopefully connect to Lake Overholser. The grant was from the
United States Department of Interior National Park Services.

Mr. Bottom presented a Yukon Moment. In May 1906 a town election was held. An
injunction was filed to prevent the seating of the Ward 3 candidate. The judge ordered the
council to recount the ballots at a later time and ordered the box to be secured in the jail.
When the time to recount the ballots came, the lock from the box was found in the jail cell
with a note saying “ballot box stolen”. Due to this, the judge had the referees give sworn
statements of the previous count and the Ward 3 Trustee was named.
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11. New Business  None at this time.
12. Council Discussion

Council Member Opitz loves the Yukon Moment. Yukon is a great city, please share any
thoughts or concerns with us. Please come to the Czech fest, it will be a great day.

Council Member McEachern encouraged the citizens to come to the Czech fest. He thought
it was special to recognize Bob Wheeler tonight. Also, Larry Taylor has served a lot of
different areas in the City of Yukon. We are very grateful to have the street sweeper. Yukon
is a great place to live.

Council Member Grba wants everyone to come to the Czech fest. Also wanted to piggyback
on the others remarks, Yukon is a great place.

Mayor Alberts thanked Mr. Andrews class for staying through the whole meeting. He enjoys
the discussions the council has and the progress they are making.

13. Adjournment

John Alberts, Mayor

Doug Shivers, City Clerk

v



KON

RECAP OF CLAIMS

FUND #

01 General Fund Claims

36 Sales Tax Claims

64 Special Revenue Fund

70 Water & Sewer Enterprise

71 Sanitation Enterprise

73 Storm Water Enterprise

74 Grant Fund

152,527.95

316,332.26

13,792.05

191,613.05

17,592.66

1,935.10

50,146.20

743,939.27

The above foregoing claims have been passed and approved
this 16th day of October, 2012 by the Yukon City Council.

Doug Shivers, City Clerk John Alberts, Mayor



10/11/2012 4:11 pMm PURCHASE ORDER CLAIM REGISTER PAGE : 1
FUND: 01 - General Fund
P.O.# VENDOR #  NAME DESCRIPTION DATE INVOICE AMOUNT
DEPARTMENT: 01 Legislative
13~49009 01-00101 City of vukon (BankOne)ADM Food Supplies 9/2012 Logans 216443 160.83
Food Supplies 10/2012  Homeland 10-02-12 21.47
Food Supplies 10/2012  carinos 9474 115.89
13-50260 01-00101 city of vukon (BankOneJADM Memorial Flowers 972012 vukonFlower 104191 49.00
13-50301 01-00101 City of vukon (BankOne)ADM Tea for Luncheon 7/2012  7-11 04-24-12 11.40
13-50302 01-00101 City of vukon (BankOne)ADM Luncheon Sandwiches 7/2012  CityBites 04-24-12 59.45
13-50304 01-00101 cCity of vukon (BankOne)ADM Soft drinks-Centennial 81 8/2012 Homeland 8-7-12 25.19
13-50141 01-02237 8MI Systems Corporation LF  named user LSAP 9/2012  ARINOG7995BMI 420.00
LF named user 9/2012  ARINOG7995BMI 5,000.00
13-50346 01-06815 compassionate Hands, Inc. bal due Jul-0ct 2012 10/2012  3ul-oct 2012 1,666.64
13-50317 01-31445 Margaret McMorrow-Love prof. services Augl2 1072012  fFoP 10-02-12 485.50
13-50312 01-44300 RS Meacham CPAs & Advisors AUP Procedures 9/2012 4251 15,000.00
13-50366 01-46940 sam's Club Direct-G.E.Capitannual administration fee 7/2012  Cr1207 50.00
annual membrshp fees 7/2012 999999 07/26/12 260.00
13-50367 01-46940 sam's Club Direct~G.E.capitfood/event supplies /2012  09/20/12 791.77
13-50313 01-57405  vukon Two L.P. EconomicDev Agreement 10/2012  oct '12 40,000,00
13-50013 01-60355 Xxerox Corporation paper Color Copier 9/2012 121032947 325.26
13-50347 01-62200  vukon cChamber of Commerce 3Jul '12 contract Services 7/2012 14548, 1,500.00
CR-1ul'12 payment 7/2012 14548 CrR 2,500.00-
Aug '12 Contract Services  8/2012  14606. 1,500.00
CR-Aug'12 payment 8/2012 14606 cr 2,500.00~
sep '12 Contract Services 9/2012 14732. 1,500.00
CR-5ep'12 payment 9/2012 14732 cr 2,500.00-
reimb a/c repl,vent clean  9/2012 Sep '12 reimb 1,513.25
oct '12 Contract Services 10/2012 14885 1,500.00
13-50321 01-62900 vukon Review Inc. Czech Fest Display 9/2012 YR56374 1,512.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 65,967.65
DEPARTMENT: 02 Finance
13-50305 01-1 0SU Center for Executive  OMCTFOA conf reg-Cp 10/2012 0 1-3150 punn 199.00
OMCTFOA conf reg-pMm 1072012 0 1-3150 Merry 199.00
13-50309 01-47660 shred-1t oklahoma City Doc.destruction-sel? 9/2012 9400887673 3.16
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 401.16
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DEPARTMENT: 03 Park Maintenance
13-50064 01-00110 city of vukon (BankOne)REC K. GAINER clothing 9/2012  walmart 04630A 91.15
J. MADDOX-clothing 972012  walmart 01422 100.00
S.NOKES-clothing 9/2012  walmart 01423 100.00
G. 0'BERG-clothing 9/2012  walmart 04629 100.00
J.PUCKETT-clothing 9/2012  walmart 06430 98.28
D.ROBINSON-clothing 9/2012  walmart 06429 99.77
B.WHITE-clothing 9/2012  Langstons 75340 100.00
J. DECKARD-CLOTHING 9/2012  Langstons 75746 134.91
13-50092 01-00110 <City of vukon (BankoOne)REC roof vent 9/2012 Locke 18761864-00 148.63
13-50119 01-38650 overhead boor fix park main garage door 9/2012  0232494-IN 300.00
13-50271 01-39410 peak Landscaping contract labor for Cip 1072012 2090 5,120.00
contract labor for CIp 1072012 2097 5,120.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 11,512.74
DEPARTMENT: 04 city Clerk
13-50305 01-1 0SU Center for Executive  OMCTFOA conf reg-DS 10/2012 o0 1-3150 shivers 199.00
OMCTFOA conf reg-SH 16/2012 o0 1-3150 Hancock 199.00
13-50309 01-47660 shred-1t Oklahoma City Doc.destruction-sel2 9/2012 35400887673 3.16
13-50339 01-50700 Triad Design Group A & E through sept '12 10/2012 8282 3,856.83
13-50365 01-50700 Triad Design Group '12 ¢pBG Application 9/2012 8258 1,168.83
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 5,426.82
DEPARTMENT: 05 Fire Department
13-49317 01-00105 city of vukon (BankOne)FD Samples - nomex pants 8/2012  casco 117904 101.00
13-49412 01-00105 cCity of vukon (Bankone)FD Nuckols Retirement 7/2012  vukonTrophy 712336 45.58
Nuckols Retirement 7/2012  Homeland 7-30-12 54.99
Nuckols Retirement 7/2012  walmart 04753 63.57
Nuckols Retirement 7/2012  walmart 02320A 89.89
Nuckols Retirement 7/2012  walmart 06512 83.24
13-49651 01-00105 cCity of vukon (Bankone) Fp Biswell-clothing allowanc  9/2012 s&sTextiles 33431 467.25
13-49652 01-00105 city of vukon (Bankone)rD Samples-shorts 9/2012 S&STextiles 33434 147.95
13-49657 01-00105 city of vukon (Bankone)Fp  Goodrich-polo 9/2012  s&sTextiles 33436 37.95
13-49659 01-00105 ity of vukon (BankOne)FD Graham-class A 8/2012 casco 118248 64.00
13-49660 01-00105 cCity of vukon (BankOne)FD Graham-polo,shorts 9/2012  s&sTextiles 33404 268.15
13-49681 01-00105 city of vukon (Bankone) Fp Trumbly-polo,tshirts,shor  9/2012 s&sTextiles 33433 195.95
13-49682 01-00105 cCity of Yukon (BankoOne)FD King-polo,class A's 9/2012 S&sTextiles 33403 151.80
13-50022 01-00105 cCity of vukon (Bankone)FD Flight&Rental car 9/2012  Expedia 09-16-12 1,660.84
13-50035 01-00105 City of vukon (Bankone)Fp  Long-jog shirt,tshirts 9/2012  s&sTextiles 33432 313.00
13-50036 01-00105 cCity of vukon (Bankone)Fp Long-Tion pants 9/2012 casco 119475 188.00
13-50081 01-00105 City of vukon (Bankone)Fp walls-polo,Tshirts 9/2012 S&STextiles 33435 146.00
13-50082 01-00105 city of vukon (Bankone)rp cClass A foam 7/2012  casco 115799 680.00
13-50083 01-00105 cCity of vukon (Bankone)FD Class A shirts-New Hires 8/2012 casco 117626 139.00
Class A shirts-New Hires 8/2012 casco 117627 139.00
Class A shirts-New Hires 8/2012 Casco 118051 139.00
Class A shirts-New Hires 8/2012 casco 117905 139.00
Class A shirts-New Hires 8/2012 casco 118124 136.00



10/11/2012 4:11 pm PURCHASE ORDER CLAIM REGISTER PAGE: 3
FUND: 01 - General Fund

P.O.# VENDOR # NAME DESCRIPTION DATE INVOICE AMOUNT
DEPARTMENT: 05 Fire Department
13-50084 01-00105 city of vukon (Bankone)FD Jump-pants 7/2012  casco 115802 246.00
Jump-FF boots 7/2012 Casco 115802 329.00
13-50085 01-00105 City of yukon (Bankone)FD Loveless-EF pants 7/2012 Casco 115801 282.00
Loveless-FF boots 7/2012  casco 115801 329.00
13-50086 01-00105 cCity of vukon (Bankone)Fp Southard-FF pants 7/2012  casco 115800 246.00
Southard-FF boots 7/2012  casco 115800 315.00
13-50087 01-00105 City of vukon (BankOne)FD FF Boots-Anderson 7/2012  casco 116394 329.00
13-50103 01-00105 cCity of vukon (Bankone)FD  Training Foam 9/2012  casco 119357 946.00
13-50131 01-00105 cCity of vukon (Bankone) FD Gallegos-flashlight 9/2012 casco 119474 120.00
13-50134 01-00105 cCity of vukon (BankOne)FD EMT Patches /2012  NREMT 89619 130.00
13-50196 01-00105 City of vukon (Bankone)FD cleaning supplies 972012  walmart 06912 350.47
batteries 9/2012  walmart 06912 76.67
ibuprofen 9/2012  walmart 06912 37.84
13-50217 01-39963 pitney Bowes Purchase PowerFire-postage 1072012 qtr 2 *'12 60.00
13-50197 01-41440 prostar Service-Oklahoma coffee service 7/2012 105676 88.99
DEPARTMENT TOTAL : 9,337.13
DEPARTMENT: 06 Municipal Court
13-50217 01-39963 Pitney Bowes Purchase PowerCourt-postage 10/2012 qQtr 2 '12 600.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 600.00
DEPARTMENT: 07 Community Development
13-50147 01-00107 city of vukon (BankOne)cMp travel exp-CertHealthcomm 9/2012 Mazzios 119 8.85
13~50240 01-00107 cCity of vukon (Bankone)cMD office reception chairs 10/2012  staples 10161 519.96
13-50266 01-00107 City of vukon (Bankone)cMd elec suppls-bld new desk 10/2012 Locke 18859273-00 87.41
13-49956 01-1 wohler Company Cabinets and counter top  10/2012 w 10-02-12 1,500.00
13-50200 01-30600 Lowe's Companies, Inc. hard hat flash 1ites 10/2012 01068 33.85
13-50217 01-39963 Pitney Bowes Purchase PowerCommunity Dev-postag 10/2012  qQtr 2 '12 600.00
13-50253 01-41440 prostar Service-oklahoma Coffee Filter 972012 106691 63.90
13-50214° 01-47660  shred-1t oklahoma City Document destruction 9/2012 9400887672 18.96
13-50159 01-71222 Audrey Fitzsimmons reimb expenses-CertHealth 9/2012 09-20-12 3.46
reimb expenses-CertHealth  9/2012 09-20-12 4.00
reimb expenses-CertHealth  9/2012  (9-20-12 4.00
reimb expenses-CertHealth 9/2012 09-20-12 1.15
reimb expenses-CertHealth 9/2012 09-20~12 1.15
13-50228 01-71900 Mitchell Hort ofma reimbursement EB 9/2012 2250 75.00

DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 2,921.69
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DEPARTMENT: 08 tibrary
13-48989 01-00108 cCity of vukon (BankOneJLIB Food for Library programs 972012  walmart 02636 16.58
13-49842 01-00108 City of vuken (BankOne)LIB pPostage for ILL 9/2012  usps 25 37.99
13-50033 01-00108 cCity of vukon (BankOne)LIB Tools and supplies 9/2012  walmart 02637 47.04
13-48980 01-04156 Book wholesalers, Inc. adult standing order 8/2012 168041k 10.79
Adult standing order 8/2012  170792& 50.35
Adult Standing order 8/2012 173326 10.19
Adult Standing order 8/2012  175088¢ 11.39
Adult standing order 9/2012  182115€ 11.99
Adult Standing order 972012 182116k 15.65
Adult Standing order 9/2012  177803¢ 11.99
Aadult Standing order 9/2012 187561 20.30
Adult standing order 9/2012 186295 16.24
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 260.50
DEPARTMENT: 09 Administration
13-49012 01-00101 city of vukon (Bankone)ADM OFfices supplies 9/2012  staples 54798 69.94
13-49586 01-00101 city of vukon (BankOne)ADM Lunch Meeting Expenses 9/2012 COTPA 536930 6.00
Lunch Meeting Expenses 972012 CoOTPA 537148 6.00
Lunch Meeting Expenses 9/2012 charleston 9-17-12 58.93
13-50121 01-00101 City of vukon (BankOne)ADM ITunes Charges 8/2012 iTunes 08-23-12 3.99
13-50302 01-00101 cCity of vukon (BankOne)ADM cord covers 7/2012  HobbyLobby 3-30-12 29.98
credit-cord covers 7/2012  HobbyLobby 4-2-12 29.98~
13-50303 01-00101  city of vukon (BankOne)AbM parking fees-ICSC 8/2012 Rrenaissanc 8-29-12 16.26
13-49020 01-41440 ProStar service-Oklahoma Coffee Service 9/2012 107519 14.91
13-50309 01-47660 Shred-1t Oklahoma City Doc.destruction-sel? 9/2012 9400887673 9.48
13-49013 01-62200 vukon Chamber of Commerce Chamber Luncheon 9/2012 14831 20.00
13-50286 01-70187 Grayson Bottom Reimb Parking expense 8/2012  PARCS 090421 2.00
Reimb Parking expense 9/2012  cotpa 537328 6.00
Reimb Parking expense 9/2012  coTPA 536951 6.00
Reimb Parking expense 9/2012  cCoOTPA 537161 6.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 225.51



10/11/2012 4:11 pMm PURCHASE ORDER CLAIM REGISTER
FUND: 01 ~ General Fund
P.O.# VENDOR #  NAME DESCRIPTION DATE INVOICE AMOUNT
DEPARTMENT: 10 parks & Events
13-49440 01-00110 City of vukon (BankOne)REC playground repairs 9/2012 Lowes 02545 19.68
13-50096 01-07390 Crosslands A & A Rent-aAll Sporta potties 9/2012 01-464754-24 63.00
porta potties 9/2012  01-402847-53 63.00
porta potties 9/2012  01-491661-09 252.00
porta potties /2012 01-502262-05 126.00
13-50213 01-08990 Dieco outdoor Advertising sign for Air Force 9/2012 811 189.00
13-50210 01-1 John Pansze magician for Spooksville 9/2012 P 09-29-12 350.00
13-50217 01-39963  pitney Bowes Purchase PowerPark & Rec--postage 1072012  qtr 2 '12 500.00
13-49909 01-47660 Shred-It oklahoma City document shredding 9/2012 9400887646 9.48
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 1,572.16
DEPARTMENT: 11 pPolice Department
13-49703 01-00111 ity of vukon (Bankone)Pp car charging system 9/2012 Harris 93121632 267.53
13-49859 01-00111 cCity of vukon (BankOne)Pp Corn clothing allowance 9/2012  Academy 266559 149.97
corn clothing allowance 9/2012  GTDistr webll4744 159.96
Corn clothing allowance 9/2012  LAPolGear 1580356 149.97
13-49903 01-00111 City of vukon (BankOne)pp prigmore uniform item 9/2012  OKHonda 92791076 45.00
13-50002 01-00111 cCity of vukon (BankOne)pD Knight/Brugh uniforms 8/2012  LAPolGear 1561085 499.90
13-50179 01-00111 city of yukon (BankOne)PD Stilley uniform items 9/2012  cCopsPlus 484662 116.44
13-50180 01-00111 <City of vukon (Bankone)Pp animal crates for cats 9/2012  Tractorsupp 129796 100.00
13-50073 01-1 North American Rescue, LL officer medical bag 9/2012 N IN110806 556.45
13-50104 01-1 Boundtree Medical cpr/rescue masks 9/2012 B 80885928 115.22
13-50217 01-39963 Pitney Bowes purchase powerpolice-postage 1072012 qQtr 2 '12 600.00
13-50105 01-41440 prostar service-okTahoma coffee for pp 9/2012 807891 68.32
coffee for pp 9/2012 807893 28.41
13~50232 01-47660 shred-It oklahoma City document shredding 9/2012 9400893977 18.96
13-49158 01-48410 special ops uniforms, Inc Uniforms jailers 8/2012 185520 279.96-
uniforms jailers 8/2012 185519 577.91
13-49313 01-48410 Special Ops uniforms, Inc Guth uniform items 8/2012 185384 50.97
Guth uniform items 1072012 186549 1,041.09
13-49538 01-48410 special Ops Uniforms, Inc Frame duty uniforms 8/2012 185320 177.96
Frame duty uniforms 8/2012 185323 40.50
Frame duty uniforms 1072012 186550 804.93
13-49539 01-48410 special oOps uniforms, Inc Bradford duty uniforms 8/2012 185322 531.93
Bradford duty uniforms 10/2012 186553 727.94
13-49540 01-48410 special oOps uniforms, Inc Catron duty uniforms 8/2012 185321 83.98
13-49604 01-48410 special ops uniforms, Inc walker boots/baton 8/2012 1858575 185.00
13-49724 01-48845  stitch Design Monogramming 9/2012 26564 96.00
13-49596 01-53410 ultramax TACT team ammo 9/2012 130891 651.00
13-48963 01-57475 wayest safety, Inc. mask fit tests 9/2012 1079729 400.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 7,965.38
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DEPARTMENT: 12 Property Maintenance
13-50113 01-00112 city of vukon (BankOne)PropNerf Bars for Truck 9/2012  AutoFX 12473 299.95
13-50014 01-1 Advanced Door Controls 2 Handicap Door Operators  9/2012 A 004988 3,000.00
13-49167 01-32790 Mother Nature's ExterminatiPest Control Services 10/2012 579017 27.50
Pest Control Services 10/2012 579188 27.50
Pest Control Services 1072012 579794 26.67
Pest Control Services 1072012 578589 27.50
pPest Control Services 16/2012 580897 19.00
Pest Control Services 10/2012 579491 23.75
Pest Control Services 10/2012 578766 19.00
pPest Control Services 10/2012 579793 19.00
Pest Control Services 10/2012 579572 23.75
pest Control Services 10/2012 580849 29.00
Pest Control Services 10/2012 579202 27.50
pest Control Services 10/2012 578900 38.00
Pest Control Services 10/2012 578927 23.75
Pest Control Services 10/2012 579319 23.75
Pest Control Services 10/2012 580730 28.00
pest Control Services 1072012 580520 25.67
Pest Control Services 10/2012 580625 19.00
Pest Control Services 10/2012 579964 19.00
Pest Control Services 10/2012 580519 26.67
13-50308 01-37600 oK Natural Gas Co Sservice-10 s Sth 10/2012  10-5-12 10 s 5th 26.94
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 3,800.90
DEPARTMENT: 15 Recreation Facilities
13-49441 01-00110 City of vukon (BankOne)REC camp supplies 9/2012  Academy 200275 217.97
13-49728 01-00110 cCity of Yukon (BankOne)REC RAC Food Supplies 9/2012  Buy4Less 9-28-12 46.64
RAC Food supplies 9/2012  BuydLess 9-13-12 7.72
13-50092 01-00110 City of vukon (Bankone)REC building toliet kits 9/2012  Locke 18761951-00 50.85
13-50212 01-04467 srakefield plumbing RAC grease trap 9/2012 0016577 285.00
13-50192 01-1 Kristy Knight Gazebo rental refund 9/2012 K 09-14-12 100.00
13-50211 01-1 England Refrigeration RAC Frig repair 9/2012 E 14056 239.00
13-50220 01-1 Lisa Powers face painter mummy son 10/2012 P 10292012 125.00
13-50217 01-39963 pitney Bowes Purchase PowerRec Facilities 16/2012  qtr 2 *12 200.00
13-49884 01-44625 rRegional Food Bank food for RAC 9/2012 AI174651 143.77
13-49885 01-46940 sam’s Club Direct-G.E.Capitfood for RAC 8/2012 6038 20.68
food for RAC 10/2012  4456A 324.73
13-50093 01-53450 united Linen - uniform Re linens for the RAC 7/2012 51519127 55.98
Tinens for the RAC 8/2012 1533457 69.43
linens for the RAC 9/2012 1545730 77.94

DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 1,964.71
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DEPARTMENT: 16 Fleet Maintenance
13-50320 01-37489 0K Tax Commission 2013 Chev 188710 1072012  C1-18756 40.00
2012 Ford €70520 10/2012  C1-18755 40.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 80.00
DEPARTMENT: 17 Human Resources
13-50291 01-00117 city of vukon (Bankone)HR Bullet Proof Employee Hb 9/2012 BusMgmtDai 9-27-12 39.95
13-50294 01-00117 City of vukon (BankoneJHR OfFffice Supplies 9/2012  staples 7090592372 120.27
13-50316 01-05385 suzanne R. Cannon, LPC, LADOCt '12 EAP Contract 1072012 oct '12 618.00
13-50328 01-31420 wMcBride Orthopedic non reg drug screen 10/2012 10-01-12 486.00
physical exam 1072012 10-01-12 60.00
13-50293 01-33500 Mustang News Meter Reader Advertising 9/2012 52454-001 16.00
13-50309 01-47660  Shred-It oklahoma City Doc.destruction-sel? 972012 9400887673 3.16
13-50292 01-62900  vukon Review Inc. Meter Reader Advertising 9/2012  YR56132 36.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 1,379.38
DEPARTMENT: 19 Street Department
13-49294 01-00180 cCity of vukon (BankOne)pw freight 8/2012  Trafficrart 355358 14.00
switch w bracket 8/2012  Trafficpart 355358 115.50
switch w houseing 8/2012  TrafficPart 355358 114.84
13-49762 01-00180 cCity of vukon (BankOne)prw signalit-voltage arrestor 9/2012 pinkley 18058 180.00
13-49771 01-00180 ity of vukon (Bankone)Pw red 3m Tight heads 9/2012  Gades 0060436-TN 450.00
yellow 3m Tight head 9/2012  Gades 0060436-1IN 825.00
green 3m light heads 9/2012  Gades 0060436-IN 1,237.50
13-49818 01-00180 cCity of vukon (BankoOne)Pw time clock w switch 9/2012 Trafficrart 356424 470.00
13-49912 01-00180 City of vukon (Bankone)Pw L Hibberd - clothing 9/2012 walmart 02677 99.85
3 Hi1l ~ clothing 9/2012  Kohls 09-12-12 85.98
R prake - clothing 9/2012 walmart 02046A 99.85
13-49913 01-00180 City of yvukon (BankOne)Pw L Hibberd - boots 9/2012  Academy 263752 149.98
D Buller - boots 9/2012  walmart 09012 123.78
13-49958 01-00180 City of Yukon (BankOne)Pw back pack blower 9/2012 GillesBros 1472 899.98
wheeled edger 9/2012 GillesBros 1472 499.05
star edger blade 9/2012  GillesBros 1472 9.37
13-50067 01-00180 cCity of vukon (BankoOne)Pw cold patch 9/2012  pMSI 10116453 1,357.72
13-50115 01-00180 City of Yukon (BankOne)pw screws, cap, ells 9/2012 Locke 18776996-00 71.97
13-50239 01-00180 cCity of vukon (Bankone)Pw wall band 10/2012 Locke 18827991-00 7.31
13-50050 01-01352 Anderson safety Products EL20S-gray 9/2012 639 81.00
13-49112 01-30680 Luther Sign Company new streets/signs markers  9/2012 90472 119.00
new streets/signs markers  9/2012 9041 469.90
new streets/signs markers 9/2012 9043 191.10
new streets/signs markers 9/2012 9044 595.74
new streets/signs markers 9/2012 9048 69.12
13-49111 01-47670  signalTek, Inc. signal Tight repairs 9/2012 8403 625.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 8,962.54
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DEPARTMENT: 23 Technology
13-50138 01-00123 ity of vukon (BankOne)TEC Internet/Cable Srvc-Au'l2  9/2012 cCox 09-17-12 474.95
Internet/Cable Srvc-AU'12  9/2012  <Cox 09-20-12 47.09
13-50139 01-00123 (City of vukon (Bankone)TEC wireless Serviceaul? §9/2012 verizon 6782957923 164.61
13-50199 01-00123 city of vukon (BankOne)TEC Mob Phone Srve-Sp'l2 972012  ATT 0922201 7,174.90
13-50233 01-00123 ity of vukon (BankOne)TEC AU'12 auction fees 972012 publicsurp 451070 612.43
SP'12 auction fees 9/2012  publicsurp 451070 377.17
13-50235 01-00123 cCity of vukon (BankOne)TEC Hasp for gen fence gate 10/2012  Ace 866146 4.99
13-50236 01-00123 City of vukon (BankOne)TEC PRI Service sp'l2 9/2012  ATT 405350891009 1,124.54
13-50237 01-00123  city of vukon (BankOne)TEC plexar Service-Sp'l12 9/2012  ATT 405350891809 404.29
13-50299 01-00123  City of vukon (BankOne)TEC HP Smart Array P800 card 10/2012  Amazon 10-05-12 240.00
13~50142 01-02237 BMI Systems Corporation PD copierlease sP'12 9/2012 CNIN1154988MT 1.046.00
PD base copies SP'12 9/2012  CNIN1154988MI 406.08
13-50152 01-05490 CDwW Government Inc. APC RBC24 Batteries 9/2012  RrR144040 2,960.73
APC RBC109 Batteries 9/2012  R144040 194 .46
APC RBC109 Batteries 9/2012  R211055 194.46
APC RBC109 Batteries 10/2012  RA456743 259.28
13-50198 01-05490 CDW Government Inc. Advan 100087 converter 10/2012 R436397 531.45
13-50297 01-12030 evault software Maint Renewal 9/2012 EVSMO002500 6,196.00
13-49940 01-32680 Mobile wireless, LLC NetMotion Renewal 9/2012 673 3,120.00
13-50281 01-50688 Travis voice & Data Renew Maint Agreement 9/2012 51055 2,700.00
13-50296 01-60351 Xerox Corporation D242v CH Tease SP'12 10/2012 064116211 1,373.18
D242VCH meter usage 10/2012 064116211 1.28
w5030 Pw lease SP'12 10/2012 064116213 280.75
D252EFICH LeaseSP'12 10/2012 064116212 261.04
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 30,149.68
FUND TOTAL: 152,527.95
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DEPARTMENT: 01 96 SALES TAX IMPROVEMENTS
13-49829 01-05490 CDW Government Inc. Panasonic Toughbooks 9/2012 883957 15,520.00
S5yr warranty 972012  RO35971 2,580.00
Gamber Docking Stat 9/2012 635139 3,500.00
13-50052 01-05490 cDw Government Inc. Cat3560 24-pt switch 9/2012 R276151 2,352.90
Cat3560 8-port swit 9/2012  R276151 864.90
Cat3560 8-port swit 9/2012  R321457 864.90
13-49534 01-1 IPL Inc. polycarts 972012 1 RX-205601 27,342.48
polycarts 9/2012 I RX-205670 27,342.48
polycarts 9/2012 1 RX-205722 27,342.48
polycarts 9/2012 I RX~205814 27,342.48
polycarts 9/2012 I RX-205866 27,342.48
polycarts 10/2012 1 RX-205969 27,342.48
polycarts 10/2012 I Rx-206134 26,978.20
13-50310 01-1 Traffic Engineering GarthBrooks Signal Timing 9/2012 T 8518 2,000.00
13-50311 01-1 Traffic Engineering Main street Signal Timing 9/2012 T 8517 1,000.00
13-50314 01-1 university of oklahoma OuU - Tomorrow's Yukon 8/2012 U 105247100-1 10,040.88
13-50315 01-1 North Star Destination Community Brand Print 9/2012 N 2689 24,000.00
13-50125 01-13475  Fence by seikel fence for Taylor park 10/2012 2918 1,790.00
13-50318 01-22440  1Integris canadian valley quarterly Installmen 10/2012 1014 50,000.00
13-50338 01-50700 Triad pesign Group SH4-0K66-5H3 1072012 8283 10,785.60
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 316,332.26

FUND TOTAL: 316,332.26
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DEPARTMENT: 23 Sspecial Events
13-49019 01-00101 city of vukon (BankOne)ADM Christmas Trees 9/2012  Autofoli 115904-1IN 1,534.06
13-49483 01-00101 City of vukon (BankOne)ADM Christmas Decor & Supplie 8/2012 K&K 0000830149 21.40-
Christmas Decor & Supplie 8/2012  A&BHome 0121543-IN 1,798.60
Christmas pDecor & Supplie  9/2012  a&BHome 0122280 640.43
Christmas Decor & Supplie  9/2012 wHalco 133290 591.06
Christmas Decor & supplie  9/2012 K&K 0000833013 922.16
Christmas Decor & Supplie  9/2012 RoundTop 9042 298.12
13-49957 01-00101  City of vukon (BankOne)aDM sSupplies for Christmas 9/2012  tLowes 01579 37.65
supplies for Christmas 9/2012  Ace 866184 185.94
supplies for Christmas 9/2012  Tractorsupp 129511 44.99
supplies for Christmas 9/2012  Locke 18711523-00 235.93
supplies for christmas 9/2012 Ace 865877 233.66
supplies for Christmas 9/2012  RegNow 3A75RP5 91.94
Supplies for Christmas 9/2012 Lightorama 9-~13-12 770.59
supplies for Christmas 10/2012  cEp 10-01-12 552.48
supplies for Christmas 10/2012  Lowes 01137 11.75
supplies for Christmas 10/2012  Ace 866156 29.50
Supplies for christmas 10/2012 Ace B66158 51.94
supplies for Christmas 10/2012  Ace 866225 9.99
13-50242 01-00101 city of vukon (BankOne)ADM supplies for christmas 9/2012 K&K 0000844022 814.82
13-50243 01-00101 City of vukon (BankOne)ADM Supplies for Christmas 9/2012  Hannadandi 1882808 118.20
13-50300 01-00101 City of vukon (BankOne)ADM Supplies-vYPS Breakfast 8/2012 walmart 08-13-12 8.59
13-50051 01-05490 C¢DW Government Inc. Lvo Thinkpad 9/2012 Q889074 1,564.07
3yr warranty 9/2012 RrO23771 147.06
LVO Case 9/2012 889074 27.99
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 10,700.12
DEPARTMENT: 44 Library state Aid
13-49100 01-00108 City of vukon (BankOne)LIB Summer Reading Prog. Supp 7/2012 Hastings 4856840 33.98
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 33.98
DEPARTMENT: 52 Recycle Friends
13-50322 01-00102 cCity of vukon (BankOne)FIN Catering 10/2012  cateringok 10-8-12 662.50
Gift cards 16/2012 walmart 02234 500.00
Gift cards 10/2012  Target 10-01-12 500.00
13-50323 01-55551  Genie vinson Postage Reimbursement 9/2012  09-24-12 36.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 1,698.50
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PURCHASE ORDER CLAIM

FUND: 64 - Special Revenue

REGISTER
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P.O.# VENDOR #  NAME DESCRIPTION DATE INVOICE AMOUNT

DEPARTMENT: 67 police Department

13-49871 01-00111 City of vukon (Bankone)PD cabinets for jail storage 9/2012 sStaples 7090115207 599.98

13-50181 01-00111 city of vukon (Bankone)PD shipping of 2 radar units  9/2012 staples 90392 18.11

13-50231 01-1 Kustom Signals, Inc. repair of radar unit 9/2012 K 470064 427.36

13-49706 01-48845 stitch Dpesign CPaA shirts 9/2012 26561 314.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 1,359.45
FUND TOTAL: 13,792.05



10/11/2012 4:11 pMm PURCHASE ORDER CLAIM REGISTER
FUND: 70 ~ water & Sewer Enterprise
P.O.# VENDOR #  NAME DESCRIPTION DATE INVOICE AMOUNT
DEPARTMENT: 01 utility Billing
13-50143 01-00123 cCity of vukon (BankOne)TEC MR phone servicespl2 9/2012  ATT 09222012 223.13
13-50287 01-00170 ity of vukon (Bankone)us ink for postage meter 10/2012  pitneyBowe 1553127 175.08
13-50207 01-06735 cClark oil pistributors, Incunleaded fuel 10/2012 1002205 531.38
13-50217 01-39963  pitney Bowes Purchase Powerug- Postage 10/2012  qQrr 2 '12 800.00
13-50309 01-47680  shred-1t Oklahoma City poc.destruction-sel? 9/2012 9400887673 28.43
13-50206 01-53901 U s post office Bulk Postage-Oct'12 1072012 oct '12 3,500.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 5,258.02
DEPARTMENT: 02 water Distribution
13-49422 01-00180 city of vukon (BankOne)Pw parts to repair vehicles 10/2012  Napa 512320 20.00
13-49597 01-00180 City of vukon (BankOne)Pw parts to repair vehicles 9/2012 ICM OKB802129pw 61.18
13-49786 01-00180 city of vukon (BankOne)Pw parts/repair wtr 1ines/hy  9/2012 Locke 18752028-00 20.41
parts/repair wtr lines/hy  9/2012 winwater 040969-00 860.00
parts/new meter sets 9/2012  oOkContract 0519201 436.00
13-49914 01-00180 city of vukon (Bankone)pw B8 -Griffin - clothin 9/2012  walmart 07630 29.88
B Hood - clothing 9/2012  walmart 05186 99.98
K Albert - cTothing 9/2012  walmart 05187 89.85
S Green - clothing 9/2012 walmart 05185 90.82
M vann - clothing 9/2012 walmart 05188 94.62
13-49915 01-00180 cCity of vukon (BankOne)Pw B8 Griffin - boots 9/2012  Redwin 00867034258 122.39
B Hood - boots 9/2012  Academy 243966 150.00
R Colley - boots 9/2012 Gellco S112753 150.00
13-50069 01-04475 Brewer Construction Co. 12" water main repai 1072012 2012-35 13,779.09
13-50245 01-04475 Brewer Construction Co. repair main brk-cam/ypky  10/2012 2012-36 3,513.16
13-50246 01-04475 Brewer Construction Co. repair water Tine well#15 10/2012 2012-37 4,222.45
13-50207 01-06735 Clark 011 pistributors, Incunleaded fuel 10/2012  1002205§ 791.50
diesel fuel 10/2012 1002205 359.97
13-49615 01-09525 Dpolese Bros. Company concrete, gravel, rock 9/2012  RrRM12067586 163.25
13-50217 01-39963 Pitney Bowes Purchase PowerPw Water Dist--posta 10/2012 qtr 2 ‘12 10.00
13-50339 01-50700 Triad pesign Group A & E through Sept '12 10/2012 8282 144 .22
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 25,208.77
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FUND: 70 - water & Sewer Enterprise

P.O.# VENDOR #  NAME DESCRIPTION DATE INVOICE AMOUNT

DEPARTMENT: 03 Treatment and Supply
13-50341 01-06775 commissioners of the Land Olul-Aug-Sep'12 well rent  10/2012  J-A-$ ‘12 5,389.69
13-50342 01-19016 wigdon Family Trust Jul-Aug-Sep'12 well rent  10/2012 3-A-S '12 4,960.03
bal due A-mM-3 '12 10/2012 A-M-3712 281.69
13-50343 01-28930 Leonhart Resources, LLC Jul-Aug-Sep'12 well rent 10/2012 I~A~% '12 4,960.03
bal due A-M-3 "12 1072012 A-M-3'12 281.69
13-50344 01-37650 OKC Airport Trust Jul-Aug~Sep 12 well rent 10/2012 3-A-% '12 34,020.91
13-50319 01-55800 veolia water North America Service for Sept ‘12 1072012 00020590 92,606.50
13-50345 01-58145 Estate of Clay wilson Jul-Aug-sep'12 Tand rent  10/2012 3J-A-§ '12 266.49
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 142,767.03

DEPARTMENT: 04 Fleet Maintenance

13-49070 01-00180 city of vukon (Bankone)pw Tubricants, oils, etc 9/2012  Napa 511291 7.98
Tubricants, oils, etc 9/2012  TheShop 492556 28.00
lubricants, oils, etc 10/2012  Hoidale 100519 147.00
13-49422 01-00180 City of vukon (Bankone)pw parts to repair vehicles 9/2012 Napa 511637 298.51
parts to repair vehicles 10/2012 Napa 512320 154.98
13-49597 01-00180 City of vukon (BankOne)pw parts to repair vehicles 9/2012 FrontEq 120923NOB 250.00
parts to repair vehicles 9/2012  Theshop 492555 30.75
13-49648 01-00180 cCity of vukon (Bankone)pw parts to repair vehicles 9/2012  oreily 0343-264531 446.99
parts to repair vehicles 972012  oreily 0343-262919 372.94
13-50007 01-00180 City of vukon (BankoOne)pw tires for 11-08-7721 9/2012  T&WTires 4998517 492.48
waste fee 9/2012  T&WTires 4998517 10.00
13-50016 01-00180 city of vukon (Bankone)Pw 16 ply tires 9/2012 T&wTires 4997166 1,971.48
dispoal, d/m, orings 9/2012 T&WTires 4997166 217.75
service call 9/2012 T&wTires 4997166 85.00
13-50027 01-00180 cCity of vukon (Bankone)pw pm4 puller 9/2012 Napa 511944 679.05
AW 24 crescent wrenc 9/2012 Napa 511944 149.80
AW 12 crescent wrenc 9/2012 Napa 511944 49.60
Freight 9/2012 Napa 511944 23.71
13-50028 01-00180 cCity of vukon (Bankone)Pw code reader 9/2012  oReily 0343-264525 269.99
tpms tool 9/2012  Oreily 0343-264525 438.13
13-50116 01-00180 cCity of vukon (Bankone)pw repair to tool 9/2012  nNapa 511731 250.00
13-50251 01-00180 cCity of vukon (Bankone)pw welding cap 10/2012  Aweldors 7015782 16.40
safety glasses 10/2012  Aweldors 7015782 9.63
welding shirts 10/2012  Aweldors 7015782 45.00
13-50050 01-01352 Anderson safety Products EL10S - clear 9/2012 639 27.00
13-50207 01-06735 cClark 0i1 pistributors, Incunleaded fuel 10/2012 1002205 9,261.11
diesel fuel 10/2012 1002205 2,623.04
13-50160 01-41440 Prostar Service-Oklahoma coffee service 9/2012 107526 22.91
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 18,379.23

FUND TOTAL: 191,613.05
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FUND: 71 - Sanitation Enterprise

P.O.# VENDOR # NAME DESCRIPTION DATE INVOICE AMOUNT
DEPARTMENT: 01 Ssanitation
13-49916 01-00171 cCity of vukon (Bankone)San B Stover-clothing 9/2012  Kohls 09-26-12 73.07
13-50194 01-00171 City of vukon (BankOne)SAN brooms 9/2012 Ace 866106 86.97
13-50244 01-00171 ity of vukon (BankOne)SaN parts for heater repair 10/2012 Locke 18837704-00 108.79
13-49070 01-00180 city of vukon (BankOne)pw Tubricants, oils, etc 9/2012 Napa 511886 9.98
13-49422 01-00180 city of vukon (BankOne)PW parts to repair vehicles 10/2012  nNapa 512320 79.32
13-49597 01-00180 City of vukon (Bankone)Pw parts to repair vehicles 9/2012  ATC 53594024 166.69
parts to repair vehicles 9/2012 Swrrailer AT04350 28.18
parts to repair vehicles 9/2012 Roberts 5-669519 171.33
parts to repair vehicles 9/2012  sealCo 556018 43.94
parts to repair vehicles 9/2012  Bruckner 375091cC 50.05
parts to repair vehicles 9/2012  Bruckne 375091C Cr 3.87~
parts to repair vehicles 9/2012  s&D 2436 157.47
parts to repair vehicles 9/2012  warrnCat 11C545098 135.99
13-49648 01-00180 city of vukon (BankoOne)Pw parts to repair vehicles 9/2012  OReily 0343-262919 311.97
13-50111 01-01352 Anderson safety Products blue latex palm glvs 9/2012 642 64.80
13-50207 01-06735 clark 0i1 pistributors, Incunleaded fuel 10/2012 1002205 329.77
diesel fuel 10/2012 1002205 3,297.37
13-50154 01-13500 Fentress 011 Company hydraulic oil 9/2012 653819 1,885.25
13-50270 01-57420 waste Connections of OklahoLandfill fees 9/2012 15954 9,390.59
13-50255 01-57425 waste Connections of oklahorolloff hauling charges 10/2012 1179958 710.00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 17,097.66
DEPARTMENT: 02 rRecycling
ro1loff hauling charges 10/2012 1179958 495,00
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 495.00

FUND TOTAL: 17,592.66
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P.O.# VENDOR # NAME DESCRIPTION DATE INVOICE AMOUNT
DEPARTMENT: 01 Stormwater

13-49869 01-00173 cCity of vukon (BankOne)sw educ. coloring books 7/2012  Kaeser 20410038 292.95

13-49993 01-00173  cCity of vukon (BankOne)sw OFMA conf hotel 9/2012  Embassy 87627328 231.00

OFMA conf hotel 8/2012  cCrackersarrel 3206 11.76

13-50040 01-00173 ity of vukon (Bankone)sSw COSWA meeting snacks 7/2012  vukonDonut 0035 16.39

13-50195 01-00173  City of vukon (Bankone)sw Excal visual [e1] 9/2012  Excal 278056 509.75

13-50307 01-06377  city of oOklahoma City E11iott~600 McConnel 1172012 11100212 39.50

13-50207 01-06735 clark oil Distributors, Incunleaded 10/2012 1002205 92.22

13-50183 01-36710 0OK Dept of Environmental QuMS4 Permit Renewal 972012 55300293 710.00

13-50217 01-39963 pitney Bowes Purchase Powerstormwater 16/2012  qQtr 2 '12 10.00

13-50238 01-47660  shred-1t oklahoma City doc destruction-Sepl2 9/2012 9400887674 9.48

13-50203 01-76180 Anna waggoner Reimb toll fees-OFMA Conf  9/2012 09-16-12 Aw 4.00

Retmb toll fees-OFMA Conf  9/2012 09-16-12 Aw 2.30

Reimb toll fees-OFMA Conf  9/2012  09-19-12 AW 4.00

Reimb toll fees-OFMA Conf  9/2012  09-19-12 Aw 0.60

Reimb toll fees-OFMA Conf  9/2012  09-19-17 Aw 1.15

DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 1,935.10

FUND TOTAL: 1,935.10
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P.O.# VENDOR # NAME DESCRIPTION DATE INVOICE AMOUNT
DEPARTMENT: 09 CDBG Year 9
13-50340 01-50700 Triad Design Group Year 10/11 $mall Cities 10/2012 1 47,208.35
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 47,208.35
DEPARTMENT: 20 Emergency mgmt Grants
13-49784 01-00125 City of vukon (BankOne)EM FLIR Scout Monocular 8/2012  Amazon 08-28-12 2,937.85
DEPARTMENT TOTAL: 2,937.85
FUND TOTAL: 50,146.20
GRAND TOTAL: 743,939.27



Technology Item Listing - October 16, 2012

Item #

100122
100253
100144
100416
100394
100161
100058
100168
100137
100056

Description
1994 Chevrolet S-10

Optiplex 745 Computer

Optiplex 760 Computer

Optiplex 170L Computer
Optiplex GX260 Computer

Precision 360 Computer
Dimension 9150 Computer
Dimension 2400 Computer

Precision 380 Computer
Dimension 1100 Computer
Dimension 2400 Computer

Model Number
$-10

Serial Number
1GCCS1429R8172905
H3C9MD1
JWIDIG1
H3F5191
1LBSwi1
H3ML531
6V0OVY91
H52X931
CYQNK91
DYNPLB1
H2MY931

Department
PUBLIC WORKS
TECHNOLOGY
TECHNOLOGY
TECHNOLOGY
TECHNOLOGY
TECHNOLOGY
TECHNOLOGY
TECHNOLOGY
TECHNOLOGY
TECHNOLOGY
TECHNOLOGY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

" November 10', 2011

Honorable Board of City Commissioners,
City of Yukon'™ g
Yukon, Oklahoma ‘

- We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Yukon, Okiahoma, (City) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2011, which collsctively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’'s management. Qur responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. ' , o :

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards appiicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. ‘An auditincludes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit aiso includes
* assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our original report dated November 10, 2011, we issued an unqua‘(iﬁeld opinion on the financial statements referred
to above but subsequently became aware of facts that existed at that date which affected our report. As more fully -
explained in Note 2 to the financial statements, the City did not present a revenue bond issue in the criginal financial

statements. T . T oo ' ‘

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each'major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Yukon, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
. accepted in the United States of America. o o : ‘

In accordance with' Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 10, 2011 on our
consideration of the City's intemal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
- scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internaj control over financial reporting-or on compliance. That reportis an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results
of our audit. : : ' S

Members of American Institute and Oklahoma Scciety of CPA's and Inpact Americas, an International Network of i ndependent accounting firms
Serving Our Clients Since 1960 i

i



City of Yukon
~ November 10, 2011

Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3-11, budgetary comparison information on pages 41 through 42
and the notes on page 43 are not a required part of the financial statements but are supplementary information
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and-express no

opinfon on it. :

" Ouraudit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City of Yukon's basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and is not
~a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual non-major ‘governmental fund
statements listed in the table of contents.are presented for additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. We subjected this information to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. .

(red Q‘a&xwﬁﬁ@&g% Li P
CBEW Professional Group, LLP . , -
Certified Public Accountants . ' :



Report of Boards, Commissions and Committees

i Planning Commission

Earline Smaistria Ward 1 2014
Larry Taylor Ward 2 2014
Bob Doggett Ward AL 2015
Terry Beaver Ward 3 2016
Roger Davis Ward 4 2016
Board of Adjustment/Board of Appeal
Sherry Huston Ward 1 2014
Rena Holland Ward 2 2014
Buddy Carpenter Ward AL 2015
Joe Horn Ward 3 2016
Russ Kline Ward 4 2016
Park Board
Joe Edwards Ward 1 2014
D.E. Brower Ward 2 2014
Ed Hatley Ward AL 2015
Ward Larson Ward 3 2016
Joe Baumann Ward 4 2016
Library Board
Charlotte Novak*
Beth Ridle*
Lee Welis Ward 2/1 2014
Joyce Roman Ward 2 2014
Ginger LaCroix Ward AL 2015
Jeanne Riggs Ward 3 2016
Margaret Albrecht Ward 4 2016

Traffic Commission

Charles Lee Ward 1 2014
Rebecca Parker Ward 2 2014
John Knuppel Ward AL 2015
Jay Tallant Ward 3 2016
Emil Albrecht Ward 4 2016

Larry Taylor, Representative

OK Environmental Management Auth.

Nick Grba, Representative
Dewayne Maxey, Alternate

Ray Wright, Representative
John Alberts, Alternate

Ken Smith, Member
John Aiberts, Alternate

Genie Vinson, Representative
Larry Taylor, Alternate

Sister City Committee ,

lllona Morris
Terry Beaver
Nancy Novosad
Edwin Shedeck

Recycling Committee

Rick Bolin
Beverly Kofoed
Gary LaRue

Carole Garner
Dennis Beringer
Genie Vinson

upcaed #27/12

*Members of Ladies’ Library Club are appointed by same



TRIAD DESIGN GROUP

My Architecture « Enginsering « Planning

Mr. Michael Malmfeldt September 3, 2012

City Clerk

City of Yukon, City Hall Bldg.

500 West Main

Yukon Oklahoma, 73099 Re: New Yukon Fire Station, 2011

Dear Mr. Malmfeldt,

Attached, please find one copy of the Contractors Final Application and Certificate for Payment
for the retainage, in the amount of $192,509.41. Also enclosed are the Contractor’s Consent of Surety
for approval of the final payment, and the Contractor’s Lien Release. We have reviewed the application
and have inspected the project and have found that, to the best of our knowledge, belief, and available
information, this application and certificate for payment and the project is complete in accordance with
the Contract Documents. We therefore recommend payment of this final application as submitted.

Payment breakdown for this project as of this date is as follows:

Contract Amount: $3.825.500.00
Change Orders to date: $ 24,688.25
Sub-Total: $3.850,188.25
Amount Paid (including this Pay Application) $3,850,188.25
Balance Remaining $ 0.00

If you have any questions, or require additional information, please advise.

Sincerely,
Triad Design Group, Inc.

Randy S. Thomas, P.A.
Encl.

Cc:  File A167.0
Tammy Kretchmar

3020 Northwest 149" Street e Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73134 Telephone (405) 752-1122 e Fax (405) 752-8855



Bond No. 09031607

M. BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That  we, ___ Downey Qontxacting, L.L.C. s a8
Principal, and Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland ’ , a8 Surety, are
held and firmly bound unto the CITY OF YUKON of the State of Okishoma, in the full and just sum of
Three Million Eight Hundred Twenty Five Thousanq Five Hundred Dollars & 00/100 DOLIARS
($3.825,500.00 ), such sum being equal 1o the contract amount for a period of ono (1)
year and thereafter for a period of one (1) additionsl year for the sum of
Five Hundred Seventy Three Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty Five & 00/100
DOLLARS ($573,825.00 ), such sum being not less than 15% of the contract price, for the
payment of which, well and truly to be made, we, and each of us, bind ourselves, our heirs, executors,
and assigns, themselves, and its successors and assigns, jointly and scverally, firmly by these presents.

Dated this _.day Of_ »AD., 20___,,,,..._

The conditions of this obligation are such, that wherceas, said Principal, has a certain contract

between  Downey Contracting, L.L.C. - and the CITY OF
YUKON dated this ____ day of : ,20___, agreed to construct in
the City of Yukon:
NEW YUKON FIRE STATION
CITY OF YUKON, OKLAHOMA

all in compliance with the plans and specifications therefore, made a part of said Contract and on file in
the office of the City Clerk of the City of Yukon; and to maintain the said improvement in the amounts
et forth above against sty fuilure due to workmanship or matorial for 8 period of two (2) years from the
date of acceptance of the completed project by the CITY OF YUKON.

MB-1.




NOW, THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall pay or cause to be paid to the Authority all
damage, loss, and expense which may result by reason of defective materials and/or workmanship in
connection with said work, occurring within a period of two (2) years from and after acceptance of said
projm: by the Authority; and if Pnncrpal shall pay or cause to be paid all Iabor and materials, qr:ludmg
the prime contractor and all mb-emtmctorx; and if Principal shall save and hold the Authority harmlm
from all damages, Ioss, and expense occasioned by or resulting from any failure whatsoever of said
Principal, then this obligation shall be rll and void, otherwise to be and remain in full force and offect.

"+ It is further agreed that if the said Principal or Surety herein shall fail 1o maintain said
improvements against any failure duc to defective workmanship and/or materials for a period of two (2)
years and at any time repairs shall be necessary that the cost of making repairs shall be determined by the
CITY OF YUKON, or some persou(s) designated by them to ascertain the same, and if, upon thirty (30)
days notice, the said amount ascertained shall not be paid by the Principal or Surety herein, or if the
necessary repairs are not made, that said amount shall become duc upon the expiration of thirty (30) days
and suit may be maintained to recover the amount so determined in any Court of competent jurisdiction.
And that the amount 8o determined shall be conclusive upon the parties as to the amount due on this bond
for the repair or repairs included therein, and that the cost of all ropairs shall be so detcrmined from time
to time during the life of this bond as the condition of the improvements may require,

1t ig further expressly agreed and understood by the parties hereto that no changes or alterations
in said Contract and no deviations from the plan or moda of ptocedurc herein fixed shall have the effect
of releasing the sureties, or any of them, from the obligations of this Bond,

TN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Principal has caused these presents to be exceuted in its
name and its corporate scal to be hercunto affixed by its duly authorized officers, and the said Surety has
cauged these presents to be exccuted in its name and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed by its
attorney-in-fact, duly suthorized 30 to do, the day and year first above written.

MB-2



Downey Oontracting, L.L.C,

By‘ d .
Principal  Brandon Downey, ger

Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland

ay_ LU PMM,,

Surety Cargy L. Payne,

Approved ag to form this day of . . JAD, 20 .
.éi_ty Attorney

Approved by the CITY OF YUKON thig day of ,AD,20 .
Mayor

ATTEST:

Sé'r’:ietary



Power of Attorney
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, a
corporation of the State of Maryland, by WILLIAM J. MILLS, Vice President, and GERALD F. HALEY, Assistant

Secretary, in pursuance of authority granted by Article V1, Section 2, of the By-Laws of said y, which are set forth on
the reverse side hereof and are hereby certified to be in full force and effect on the d ereby nominate,

“ AYNE and Carey L.
aRe, execute, seal and

deliver, for, and on its behalf as surety, and
such bonds or undertakings in pursuance ¢

intents and purposes, as if the -1@\5 3
its office in Baltimo @m own
STEVENS, Ann § L Dia
25, 2008. @ \geﬁg

The said Assistant @ does hereby certify that the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article VI,

Section 2, of the By-Laws of said Company, and is now in force.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Vice-President and Assistant Secretary have hereunto subscribed their names and
affixed the Corporate Seal of the said FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND., this 3rd day of September,

A.D. 2009,

. .ﬁﬁ pori said Company, as fully and amply, to all
o \% aekney cd by the regularly elected officers of the Company at

U‘B. power of attorney revokes that issued on behalf of Donna

EBB, Gary LILES, Patsy A. PAYNE, Carey L. PAYNE, dated August

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND

il 7 ety A
e, ‘ /
b By: /
Gerald F. Haley  Assistant Secretary William J. Mills Vice President

State of Maryland ss
City of Baltimore

On this 3rd day of September, A.D. 2009, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly
commissioned and qualified, came WILLIAM J. MILLS, Vice President, and GERALD F. HALEY, Assistant Secretary of
the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, to me personally known to be the individuals and officers
described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and they each acknowledged the execution of the same, and being
by me duly sworn, severally and each for himself deposeth and saith, that they are the said officers of the Company aforesaid,
and that the seal affixed to the preceding instrument is the Corporate Seal of said Company, and that the said Corporate Seal
and their signatures as such officers were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of

the said Corporation.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Official Seal the day and year first above
written.
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Constance A. Dunn Notary Public
My Commission Expires: July 14, 2011
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EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS OF FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND

“Article VI, Section 2. The Chairman of the Board, or the President, or any Executive Vice-President, or any of the Senior
Vice-Presidents or Vice-Presidents specially authorized so to do by the Board of Directors or by the Executive Committee,
shall have power, by and with the concurrence of the Secretary or any one of the Assistant Secretaries, to appoint Resident
Vice-Presidents, Assistant Vice-Presidents and Attorneys-in-Fact as the business of the Company may require, or to
authorize any person or persons to execute on behalf of the Company any bonds, undertaking, recognizances, stipulations,
policies, contracts, agreements, deeds, and releases and assignments of judgements, decrees, mortgages and instruments in
the nature of mortgages,...and to affix the seal of the Company thereto.”

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, do hereby certify
that the foregoing Power of Attorney is still in full force and effect on the date of this certificate; and I do further certify that
the Vice-President who executed the said Power of Attorney was one of the additional Vice-Presidents specially authorized
by the Board of Directors to appoint any Attorney-in-Fact as provided in Article VI, Section 2, of the By-Laws of the
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND.

This Power of Attorney and Certificate may be signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution of the
Board of Directors of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND at a meeting duly called and held on
the 10th day of May, 1990.

RESOLVED: "That the facsimile or mechanically reproduced seal of the company and facsimile or mechanically
reproduced signature of any Vice-President, Secretary, or Assistant Secretary of the Company, whether made heretofore or
hereafter, wherever appearing upon a certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company, shall be valid and
binding upon the Company with the same force and effect as though manually affixed.”

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the corporate seal of the said Company,

this 5M day of sﬁﬂ'?/ , 906?

Ve D arf—

Assistant Secretary
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John Alberts, Mayor & Council Member Ward || From the Office of the
Ken Smith, Vice-Mayor & Council Member At Large .
k Nick Grba, Council Member Ward { Emergency Managemen‘t Director
y O / ; Rick Opitz, Council Member Ward 11
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT Michael McEachern, Council Member Ward IV Frasty p eak

MEMO

TO:  City of Yukon City Council
Grayson Bottom

DATE: 09/27/2012

RE: Conversion of Eight (8) Whelen Sirens to Solar Power
Requisition #13-54947 Grimes Electric—Capitol Improvements Emergency Management

Request capital improvement funds for $39,200.00 dollars to convert power source on all sirens
from electricity to solar power energy, thereby mitigating against electrical outages.

Replace electric battery chargers on six (6) WPS sirens and two (2) Vortex sirens. Putting in six
(6) WPS solar panels and inverters, two (2) Vortex solar panels and inverters, and one (1) extra
solar panel inverter for a WPS siren.

City of Yukon 100 S. Ranchwood Bivd.
Yukon, Oklahoma 73099

Phone: 405.350.5413

Fax:  405.350.0786
fpeak@cityofyukonok.gov



G-27-2012 B:24 AM I SITIOHN REGIST
PACKET HO: 10999-EM 7017 09-27
REQ.¥: 13-54947 VENDOR: 01-~17510 Grimes Electric, LLC
STATUS: NEW APPROVED BY: Frosty Peak
DEPT:  emsr ORBERED BY: Corby Poursaba
SHIP-TO:  COY City of Yukon

B.O. DESCRIPTION: Solar panel conversion for all

ITEM /L ACCOUNT NAME DESCRIPTION
1 38 501-42%5 Cap. Improvements-Emerqg. MSiren Solar Panels

Siren Solar Panels

IS5UED: B/2172012 RELEASE
EST DEL: 9/271/2012 RECEIVE
spmmmmm—mes GEDERED ===
UNITS PRICE AMOUNT
39,200.00

TOTAL ORDERED 39,200.00

PRGE

FLAG:

FLAG: N



ORDINANCE NO. 1282

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 657, APPENDIX
A OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF YUKON, OKLAHOMA, BY
PROVIDING THAT THE ZONING DESIGNATION FOR A PART
OF BLOCK “B”, YUKON HILLS ADDITION, SECOND SECTION,
TO YUKON, CANADIAN COUNTY, OKLAHOMA, BE CHANGED
FROM “C-4” (PLANNED SHOPPING CENTER DISTRICT) TO "C-
3" (RESTRICTED COMMERCIAL DISTRICT); AND DECLARING
AN EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF YUKON, OKLAHOMA:

SECTION 1.

That Ordinance No. 657, known as the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Yukon,
(Appendix A) be and the same is hereby amended to change the zoning designation of a certain
tract of land in Yukon, Oklahoma from “C-4” (Planned Shopping Center District) to "C-3"
(Restricted Commercial District), said tract of land being described as follows, to-wit:

TRACT B1

The North 278.00 feet of the West 220.00 feet of Block "B” YUKON HILLS
ADDITION, SECOND SECTION, to Yukon, Canadian County, Oklahoma, according
to the recorded plat thereof.

More particularly described by metes and bounds as follows:

Commencing at the Southwest Corner of Block “B” in Yukon Hills Addition,
Second Section, an Addition to Yukon, Canadian County, Oklahoma; Thence
North 00°11'40" East on the West line of said Block “B” and the East Right-of-
Way line of Cornwell Avenue as the basis of bearing a distance of 276.99 feet to
the Point of Beginning;

Thence coatinuing North 00°11'40" East on said West line a distance of 278.00
feet to the Northwest corner of said Block “B” and a point on the South Right-of-
Way line of Bass Avenue, Thence North 90°00'00" East on the North line of said
Block "B” 2nd South Right-of-Way line of Bass Avenue a distance of 220.00 feet;
Thence South 00°11'40" West and parallel to said West line of Block "B” a
distance 0 278.00 feet; Thence South 90°00'00" West a distance of 220.00 feet
to the Point of Beginning.

SECTION 2.

That the Zoning Map of the City of Yukon, Oklahoma, shall be amended to reflect the
changes in zoning as reflected in Section 1 above.



SECTION 3. Emei‘gency.

An emergency is declared to exist and it is necessary for the public welfare, health and
safety that this ordinance take effect immediately upon passage, approval and publication
according to law.

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of ,2012, with the
Emergency Clause passed separately.
MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK

(Seal)



OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

To:
From:
Date:

Subject:

Yukon Oklahoma

MEMORANDUM

Doug Shivers, City Clerk
Michael D. Segler
October 10, 2012

Amendment to Ordinance No. 657, Appendix A
Zoning Application by John A. Henry & Company

Attached is a proposed amendment to Ordinance No. 657, Appendix A, rezoning
property requested in the application by John A. Henry to rezone from “C-4” (Planned
Shopping Center District) to "C-3" (Restricted Commercial District).

Please have this item placed on the City Council agenda. Thank you.

(405) 354-5276 + (405) 350-0537 Fax * P. O. Box 850126 « Yukon, OK 73085



John Alberts, Mayor & Council Member Ward Il
Ken Smith, Vics Mayor & Councii Member At Large
Nick Grba, Council Member Ward |

Michael McEachem, Council Member Ward IV
Rick Opitz, Councit Member Ward 11

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Planning Commission Minutes
October 8, 2012

The City of Yukon Planning Commission held a meeting September 10, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Centennial Building at 12 South 5™ St.

Invocation was given by Commissioner Davis
Flag Salute was lead in unison by Commissioner Terry Beaver

ROLL CALL: (Present) Larry Taylor, Chairman
Bob Doggett, Vice-Chairman
Earline Smaistrla, Commissioner
Robert Davis, Commissioner
Terry Beaver, Commissioner

OTHERS PRESENT: Gary Cooper, IT Director
Mark Osby, City Attorney
Cindy Wright, City Planner
Mitchell Hort, Community Development Director
Scarlett Ouren, Secretary

1. ITEM: APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2012 MEETING
Vice - Chairman Doggett made a motion to accept the minutes as written, seconded by
Commissioner Davis.

A roll call vote was taken.

The Vote:
Ayes: Smaistrla, Beaver, Taylor, Doggett, Davis
Nayes: None
Vote: 5-0
Motion Carried

2. ITEM: VISITORS

None



PC Minutes
Page 2
10/8/2012

ITEM: CONSIDER AN APPLICATION BY JOHN A HENRY &CO TO REZONE FROM C-4 (PLANNED
SHOPPING CENTER DISTRICT) TO C-3 (RESTRICTED COMMERCIAL DISTRICT]) FOR LOT B, YUKON
HILLS ADDITION

Jeff Norman with John A Henry & Company spoke on behalf of JAH. He stated that this is just a
follow up from the Councils direction we would apply for a re-zoning for the lot that we split off
fast month so we are here to seek that.

Chairman Taylor asked if any of the commissioners had any questions. He further stated that
this is what staff had asked for at the last meeting to rezone for the bank or financial institution
that will be located on the property. Chairman Taylor then asked if there was a motion,

Commissioner Terry Beaver made a motion “In the case of the Application for the rezone of Lot
B-1, of Block B, Tract B of the Yukon Hills Addition, Second Section, submitted by John A Henry,
we have read the staff report and received testimony at the public hearing. We find ourselves in
agreement with staff findings and all legal descriptions cited in the Staff Report. | move that this
item be approved”, seconded by Vice-Chairman Doggett.

A roll call vote was taken.

The Vote:
Ayes: Smaistrla, Taylor, Doggett, Davis, Beaver
Nayes: None
Vote: 5-0
Motion Carried

ITEM: CONSIDER A LOT SPLIT FOR LARRY RUSSELL HOMES BEING LOTS 7, 8, & 9, KINGSRIDGE
ADDITION, SECTION 3, YUKON, OK

Larry Russell stated that they need that because they have two houses that they are going to
build that are quite a bit larger and spread out they won't fit on the lots so we need the bigger
lots.

Chairman Taylor said so you are going to take Lot 8 and split it in half and give it to lot 7 and the
other half to lot 9 is that correct. Mr. Russell said yes, that is correct.

Chairman Taylor said we have done this several times before in that addition. He then asked if
there were any questions from the commissioners. Being none he asked if there was a motion.

Commissioner Smaistrla made a motion In the case of the Application for a lot split for Lot 8,
Block 11 of the Subdivision of Kingsridge Addition, Section 3, submitted by Larry Russell of Larry
Russell Homes, we have read the staff report and received testimony at the public hearing. We
find ourselves in agreement with staff finings and all legal descriptions cited in the Staff Report.
I move that this item be approved”, seconded by Commissioner Beaver.



PC Minutes
Page 3
10/8/2012

The Vote:
Ayes: Davis, Taylor, Doggett, Smaistria, Beaver

Nayes: None
Vote: 5-0
Motion Carried

7. ITEM: NEW BUSINESS
None

8. ITEM: QPEN DISCUSSION

Chairman Taylor stated that the city did a great job with Czech Day. It was a little cold. As |
understand it; it was the coldest October 6" on record. It's a great tradition and the city did a
wonderful job. The city staff always does a good job. It takes a lot of people to put that day
together. Chairman Taylor asked if there were any other comments or anything else for
discussion. Chairman Taylor announced that November 19" would be the next Planning
Commission Meeting,.

9. ITEM: ADJOURNMENT ~ NEXT MEETING NOVEMBER 19, 2012
Meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m.




PLANNING COMMISSION
PUBLIC HEARING
October 8, 2012

7:00 p.m.

SUBJECT: Rezone of Lot B-1, Block B, Tract B, Yukon Hills Addition, Second Section (John
A. Henry)

STAFF REPORT
Planner:  Cindy Wright, Johnson & Associates for Triad Design Group, Inc.

Date: September 27, 2012

The discussion herein considers the application materials from john A Henry for a rezone of
Lot B-1 Block B, Tract B of the Yukon Hills Addition, Second Section located at the intersection
of Bass Avenue and Cornwell Drive.  This commercial property is currently zoned for C-4,
“Planned Shopping Center” District and currently is developed with a commercial use on the
south half of the block., The rezone application is to bring into compliance a lot split previously
approved by the Planning Commission on September 10, 2012 in order to accommodate a
proposed bank on the hard corner

APPLICANT: John A, Henry

REQUEST: A rezone of Lots B-1 of Block B, Tract B of the Yukon Hills Addition, Second
Section, bringing into compliance a lot created by a lot split approved by the
Planning Commission on September 10, 2012 The lot split divided the block
roughly in half, east to west. The south half is currently developed: the north
half will accommodate a proposed bank

LEGAL

DESCRIPTION: The property subject is known as Block B, Tract B of the Yukon Hills Addition,
Second Section The legal descriptions for the proposed lots are noted on the
accompanying Exhibits.

LOCATION: The subject lot is located on the southeast corner of Cornwell Drive and Bass
Avenue,

STAFF

COMMENTS: John A Henry is requesting a rezone as directed by the Planning Commission

on September 10, 2012 to bring into compliance a lot created by a lot split.
Tract B-1 was the smallest piece. divided in order to accommodate a

Page 1 of 2




FINDINGS:

proposed bank  Tract 8.2 accommodates an existing commercial use and is
inciuded in the -4 zoning of the greater shopping center

The subject property is currently zoned C-4, “Planned Shopping Center”

District. The zoning requires that each lot be a minimum of 200,000 square
feet. have a minimum lot width of 300 feet at the building line among other
requirements. The lot created by the previously approved lot split did not
meet these requirements Tha C-3 District regulations permit a minimum lot
size of 12,000 square feet with a minimum lot width of 100 feet' the
Applicant proposed a lot size of 61,160 square feet with a minimum ot
width of 220 feet (along Bass Avenue) Lot B-] meets these criteria.

1. The proposed rezone of Lot B-1 brings into compliance with the Yukon
Zoning Ordinance the proposed bank fot split approved on September 10,
2012 Staff recommends that the requested rezone be approved and
permitted to move forward to Council.

Based on this finding, staff recommends approval of this application.

DRAFT MOTION:

“In the case of the Application for the rezone of Lot B-1 of Block B, Tract B of the Yukon Hills
Addition, Second Section, submitted by John A. Henry. we have read the staff report and
received testimony at the public hearing. We find ourselves in agreement with staff finding and
all legal descriptions cited in the Staff Report | move that this item be approved. (with the
following condition(s))”

CONDITIONS:

nun—ru—‘o”“”u‘-“*-—\u“*-“.—qa-«p—--—;“*—-_w“*‘—w*w““--‘m—-_c‘”’umu*“uqu
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August 27 2012

Scarlett Ouren

City of Yukon
Planning Secretary
10 South 5th St.

P O. Box 850500
Yukon, OK 73085

RE: Application for Rezoning
Southeast corner of Bass Ave. x Cornweli
61,160 s.f. (278 x 220°)

Dear Ms. Quren:

Pursuant to our discussion on Friday, | have prepared the attached application
for rezoning. In addition, a notarized ownership list, a check for $150 and fifteen
(15) copies of the legal description and site plan depicting the property we wish
to rezone.

It is my understanding you will initiate the rezoning process and attempt to get us
on the Planning Commission docket in October. Meanwhile, we will look forward
to seeing you at the September 10, 2012, Planning Commission meeting where
we hope to received a conditional consent from the City for the lot split and curb
cut onto Cornwell subject to obtaining the rezoning in October.

Please immediately advise me if you require any other documentation related to
this project.

Regards,

M

Jeff Norman
President

Enclosures
cc:  Charlie Allen-Allen Engineering

Steve Turner-Arvest Bank
Jim Martin-JAH Realty, LP.



AFTER RECORDING, RETURN 1O | Yukon Hills]

Zachary W Allen "
Mock, Schwabes Waldo, Elder, Reeves & Bryam

Two Leadeeship Square, 14" Floor

Dock#:R 2006 $642

oo, E("«’:“

s

fr

Bk&Pg:RB 3187 108-111

Oklghoma City, Oklahoma 73102 Filed:04-26-2006 DXC
02:31:0% mM WD

Canadian County, OK

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED

STATE OF OKLAHOMA

§
§ KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS THAT:
COUNTY OF CANADIAN §

JOHN A, HENRY & CO., LTD., A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
("Grantor”), in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and other good and
vatuable consideration in hand paid, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
does bereby grant, bargain, sell and convey unto JAHCO OKLAHOMA PROPERTIES I, L.L.C.,
an Oklahoma limited liability company ("Grantee"), whose mailing and notice address is P.O. Box
14586, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73113-0586, all of the real property and premises situated in
Canadian County, Oklahoma, and more particularly described on Exhibit "A” attached hereto and
made a part hereof, together with all the improvements thereon and the appurtenances thereunto
belonging, and warrants the title to the same (o be free, clear and discharged of and from all former
grants, charges, taxes, judgments, mortgages and other liens and encumbrances of whatsoever nature,
LESS AND EXCEPT all interests in and to the oil, gas, casinghead gas and other gaseous or lquid
hiydrocarbous or substances produced therewith, coal, metailic ores and other minerals in, under and
that may be produced from the real property described on Exhibit "A” attached hereto which have
been previously reserved or conveyed of record, and all rights, interests and estates of whatsoever
nature incidental thereto or arising thereunder, AND SUBJECT TO the matters described on Exhibit
"B attached hereto and imcorporated herein.

TOHAVE AND TO HOLD said described premises unto the Grantee, its successors
and assigns forever, free, clear and discharged of and from all former grants, charges, taxes,
judgments, mortgages and other liens and encumbrances of whatsoever nature, subject to the matters
described on Exhibit "B" attached hereto and incorporated herein.

[signatures appears on following pagej

Betty J. Cumming
Return original to: l/ First American Title & Trust

ft ')‘?070!” UK’ PO Box 1234

Oklahoma City, OK 73162

G DOCSZW Adohn Hensyul AHUOMGW - Yukon Hhils wpd



IN WITNESS WHERFEOF, Grantor has executed this General Warranty Deed as of
this wwﬂm day of April, 2006

JOHN A HENRY & CO., LTD.,
A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

By:  JAH Capital Corporation,
a Texas corporation, General Partner
Johm W Henry, TW 7
Presilent & CEO
EXEMPTION DOCUMENTARY STAMP TAX
OS5 TITLE 68, ART. 32, SECTION 3201, PAR. 4
STATE OF oKuAkema, )
COUNTY OF ©Kb ARona )

This instrument was acknow|
IV, as President & CEO of JAH Capital Corp

edged before me on April {2, 2006, by John A. Henry,
A. Henry & Co., Ltd., a Texas Limited P

oration, a Texas corporation, as General Partner of John
Mners}l;ip

Sl Walkso

otary Public

My Commission Expires:

gy,

awn g,

\ 4
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£ #,
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EXHIBIT “A"
Property Description

All of Block “A” YUKON HILLS ADDITION, SECOND SECTION, to Yukon, Canadian County,
Oklahoma, according to the recorded plat thereof

AND

All of Block “B” YUKON HILLS ADDITION, SECOND SECTION, to Yukon, Canadian County,
Oklahoma, according to the recorded plat thereof,

AND

A tract of land in the Southwest Quarter (SW/4) of Section 21, Township 12 North, Range 5 West
of the Indian Meridian, being more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Southwest corner of said Section 21;
Thence East along the South line of said Section 21 a distance of 644 00 feet;

Thence North along the East line of Block A, YUKON HILLS ADDITION, SECTION 2, a distance
0f 49260 feet to the Point of Beginning;

Thence North along the East line of said Block “A" a distance of 187 40 feet to the Northeast comer
thereof:

Thence West along the North line of said Block “A” adistance 0 291 68 feet to the Southeast corner
of Block “B”, YUKON HILLS ADDITION, SECTION 2;

Thence North along the East line of said Block “B” a distance of 554 99 feet to the Northeast corner
thereof;

Thence East on a projection of the North line of said Block “B” a distance of 100.00 feet to a point
of curve;

Thence Northeasterly on a curve to the left having a radius of 560.00 feet a distance of 283 .67 feet:
I'hence South parallel to the East of said Block “A” and “B” a distance of 732.71 feet;

Thence South 45°00'00" West a distance of 113.14 feet to the Point of Beginning.

G DGO AW Aohn Henry JAHCORGW D- Y ukon Hills wad




EXHIBIT “B”

Exceptions o Warranty of Title

i Ad valorem taxes for 2006 and subsequent years, not yet due and payable.

2 All easements, rights-of-way, restrictions and other rights, interests and exceptions of record
to the extent the same are valid and subsisting and affect the property.

¥

3. All matters that would be shown by a correct survey of the property.

GOUSEW Aohn Henry JAHCOGWD- Yukon Hills wpd
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Piat of Survey for Lot Line Adjustment
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Plat of Survey for Lot Line Adjustment
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RESOLUTION NO. 2012-10

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE INCURRENCE OF INDEBTEDNESS BY
THE YUKON MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY (THE “AUTHORITY”) ISSUING
ITS 2012 REVENUE NOTE (THE “REVENUE NOTE"), IN AN AGGREGATE
PRINCIPAL  AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $2,000,000; WAIVING
COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND AUTHORIZING SAID REVENUE NOTE TO
BE SOLD AT A PRICE LESS THAN PAR VALUE BY NEGOTIATED SALE
WITHIN THE LIMITS PROVIDED BY TITLE 60, OKLAHOMA STATUTES,
SECTION 176; AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A SALES TAX
AGREEMENT PROVIDING SECURITY FOR THE REVENUE NOTE:
DESIGNATING THE REVENUE NOTE AS “QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT
OBLIGATIONS” UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986:
PROVIDING THAT THE TRUST INDENTURE SHALL BE SUBJECT TO
PROVISIONS OF THE REVENUE NOTE; RATIFICATION OF LEASE
AGREEMENT AND OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE AUTHORITY AND AGREEING THAT
THE TERM OF THE LEASE SHALL EXTEND TO LONG AS THE REVENUE
NOTE REMAINS UNPAID; AND, AUTHORIZATION OF DOCUMENTS
AND PROCEDURES RELATED TO ISSUANCE OF THE REVENUE NOTE.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
YUKON:

Section 1. Authorization of Issuance of Revenue Note. The Yukon Municipal
Authority (the "Authority"), a public trust organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Oklahoma, the beneficiary of which is the City of Yukon, Oklahoma (the “City”), is hereby
authorized to incur an indebtedness by the issuance of its obligation designated:

Yukon Municipal Authority 2012 Revenue Note in the aggregate principal
amount not to exceed $2,000,000 (the “Revenue Note™),

for the purposes of providing capital improvements and equipment for the use and benefit of the
City and the payment of associated indebtedness, the payment of financing costs and for
expenses of issuing the Revenue Note; provided that the Revenue Note shall never constitute a
debt of the City.

Section 2. Waiver of Competitive Bidding on Sale of the Revenue Note. Competitive
bidding on the sale of the Revenue Note is hereby waived and the same is authorized to be sold
at a price less than par value by negotiated sale, pursuant to the terms of the Revenue Note, all
within the limits provided by Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 201 1, Section 176, as amended.

Section 3. Sales Tax Agreement The Mayor or Vice Mayor are hereby authorized to
enter into a Sales Tax Agreement providing security for the Revenue Note, by which the City
pledges funds of the City to the Authority for repayment of the Revenue Nofe, provided such
Sales Tax Agreement complies in all respects with applicable Oklahoma law, including
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Oklahoma law which provides that the City may not become obligated beyond its fiscal year
(July 1 through June 30), and all payments of City funds to the Authority for payment of the
Revenue Note are subject to annual appropriation by the City.

Section 4. Reasonable Expectations with Respect to Issuance of Tax-Exempt
Obligations and Designation of Revenue Note as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. The City
reasonably anticipates that the aggregate amount of “qualified tax-exempt obligations” (as
defined in section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™)),
which will be issued by the Authority, the City and all subordinate entities thereof during
calendar year 2012 will not exceed $10,000,000, and hereby covenants and agrees, as a material
inducement and consideration to the purchasers of its Revenue Note, that neither the Authority,
the City or any subordinate entity thereof will, during calendar year 2012, issue “qualified tax-
exempt obligations” (as defined in Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code), in an aggregate amount
exceeding $10,000,000. Further, it is the purpose and intent of this Resolution that the Revenue
Note shall constitute and is hereby designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” as defined in
Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code, in order that the purchasers of the Revenue Note may avail
themselves of the exception contained in said Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code with respect to
interest incurred to carry tax-exempt bonds. The City hereby covenants and agrees that it will not
designate as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” more than $10,000,000 in aggregate amount of
obligations issued by the Authority, the City or any subordinate entity thereof during calendar
year 2012. Notwithstanding other provisions of this section, the City and other related entities
may issue obligations, provided that the issuance of such obligations do not disqualify the
Revenue Note as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” as defined by Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the
Code. The City hereby covenants and agrees with the purchasers of the Revenue Note to take
such further actions and execute such documents and instruments as may be necessary or proper
to carry out the intent of this Resolution, and/or as may be in furtherance of the issuance of the
Revenue Note, and the Mayor (or Vice Mayor in the absence of the Mayor) is hereby authorized,
empowered and directed to take such actions and execute such documents as may be deemed
necessary or proper from time to time.

Section 5. Trust Indenture Subject to Revenue Note. The Trust Indenture dated as of
June 20, 1972, as amended, creating the Authority is subject to the provisions of the Revenue
Note.

Section 6. Ratification of Lease. The City hereby ratifies and confirms the Lease
Agreement and Operation and Maintenance Contract by and between the City and the Authority
dated the 3rd day of October 1972, as amended, (the “Lease”) pertaining to the lease by the City
to the Authority of its existing and after acquired water and sanitary sewer systems in order to
enable the Authority to secure any obligations issued by the Authority by a pledge of its
leasehold interest in such system, together with a pledge of revenues and proceeds derived from
the operation thereof; and, it is agreed that the term of the Lease shall extend so long as the
Revenue Note remains outstanding and unpaid.

Section 7. Finalization, Execution and Delivery of Documents Necessary for
Issuance of the Revenue Note. The Mayor (or the Vice Mayor in the absence of the Mayor) is
authorized and directed to finalize, modify, create, execute, record, file and deliver on behalf of
the City all bond, securities, tax and security documents and certifications necessary to
consummate issuance of the Revenue Note, and further to modify dates with respect to the
Revenue Note and other instruments and to modify the name of the Revenue Note; and, the City
Clerk (or the Assistant City Clerk in the absence of the City Clerk) is authorized and directed to
provide all attestations and certifications necessary to consummate issuance of the Revenue
Note; and, upon execution and delivery of all documents provided for or contemplated by this
Resolution, the same shall be conclusively deemed authorized and approved by the City.
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PASSED AND APPROVED the 16th day of October, 2012.
CITY OF YUKON, OKLAHOMA

(SEAL) Mayor
ATTEST:

City Clerk
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STATE OF OKLAHOMA )
) SS:
COUNTY OF CANADIAN )

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Yukon, hereby
certify that the above and foregoing is a true, correct and complete copy of the Resolution duly
adopted by the governing body of said City and of the proceedings of the governing body of said
City in the adoption of said resolution on the date therein set out as shown by the records of my
office.

I further cerﬁfy that in conformity with Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes 2011, Section 301-
314, inclusive, as amended (the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act), notice of this meeting was given
in conformity with the requirements of law.

WITNESS my hand and seal of said City the 16th day of October, 2012.

City Clerk

(SEAL)
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(Published in The Yukon Review on , 2012)

ORDINANCE NO. 1281

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SEC. 2-137(B) OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF YUKON BY DETERMINING THAT
CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS, INCLUDING THE YUKON MUNICIPAL
AUTHORITY 2012 REVENUE NOTE IN AN AGGREGATE
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,000,000, DO NOT
EXCEED DEBT LIMITATIONS; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING
ORDINANCE PROVISIONS; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF YUKON, OKLAHOMA:

Section 1.

The Code of Ordinances of the City of Yukon is hereby amended by amending the
existing language of Section 2-137(b), which new Section 2-137(b) is set out in its entirety

below, to-wit:

(b) The following bonds and indebtednesses are conclusively determined to be within
and not to exceed the limitations of Section 2-137(a), or any debt limitations of the Code of
Ordinances or the Charter of the City, and any conflicting provisions of the Code of Ordinances
of the City are modified to the extent necessary to fully validate the following:

®

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Yukon Municipal Authority Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2005A in the aggregate principal amount of $3,080,000.

Yukon Municipal Authority Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2005B in the aggregate principal amount of
$11,180,000.

Yukon Municipal Authority Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2007 in the aggregate principal amount of $7,575,000.

Yukon Municipal Authority Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 in the aggregate principal amount of
$4,430,000.

Yukon Municipal Authority Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2011 in the aggregate principal amount of $7,500,000.

Yukon Municipal Authority 2011 Revenue Note in the aggregate principal
amount of $2,000,000.

Yukon Municipal Authority Sales Tax and Utility System Revenue and

Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 in the aggregate principal amount of
$15,000,000.
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(viii)  Yukon Municipal Authority 2012 Revenue Note in the aggregate principal
amount of $2,000,000.

Section 2. Repealer.

All provisions of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Yukon which are inconsistent
with the foregoing are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, it being intended that the
foregoing Ordinance shall supersede and modify any conflicting provisions contained in the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Yukon.

Section 3. Emergency.

Whereas, it is necessary for the immediate preservation of peace, health and safety of the
citizens and residents of the City of Yukon, Oklahoma, that the foregoing Ordinance be enacted,
and that the provisions of this Ordinance become immediately effective, an emergency is hereby
declared to exist and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately from and after
its passage and approval as provided by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 16™ day of October 2012.
CITY OF YUKON, OKLAHOMA

Mayor
ATTEST:
City Clerk
(SEAL)
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STATE OF OKLAHOMA )
) SS:
COUNTY OF CANADIAN )

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Yukon, hereby
certify that the above and foregoing is a true, correct and complete copy of the Ordinance duly
adopted by the governing body of said City and of the proceedings of the governing body of said
City in the adoption of said Ordinance on the date therein set out as shown by the records of my
office.

I further certify that in conformity with Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes 2011, Section 301-
314, inclusive, as amended (the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act), notice of this meeting was given
in conformity with the requirements of law.

WITNESS my hand and seal of said City the 16th day of October 2012.

City Clerk

(SEAL)
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